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Financial and operational highlights i Kk & ERE

Financial performance B175%35 Global distribution network 2 k% 4494

In HK$mn In HK$mn 30 June 2012 30 June 2011
BEEET BEEET —E—=fF —2—F Chang
Year ended Year ended AA=+H ~NA=TH (214
30 June 2012 30 June 2011 N
BE-Z2-——=f HE-Z—F Change Hong Kong &%
XAE=+ALERE <A=+AILEE T Directly managed stores 41 39 T2
HEEERIEH
Revenue Uiz 2,744 2,642 4%
Gross profit EF 1,294 1,354 4% Mainland China EXk
Profit from operating activities # i # 7 54 168 y 68% Directly managed stores 350 456 V106
Profit for the year attributable to owners %5 AFE (54 A F| 16 130 4 88% HEEEER
Basic EPS (in HK cents) &BEARZF| (E1l) 0.99 8.07 ¥ 88% Franchised stores 248 315 V67
- S g Ak
Interim dividend per share (in HK cents) EA&-REARLE. (B(L) 1.10 2.20 ¥ 50% ;ii;/}ﬁﬁﬁ 508 771 V173
Final dividend per share (in HK cents) &R S (L) - 3.03 $100% N
Special dividend per share (in HK cents) S5 BIRE. (7&4L) - 1.20 4100%
Payout ratio (%) JEBLLE (%) 11% 80% 231% pts AEHE Taiwan &%
Directly managed stores 102 94 +8
Gross margin (%) EFIZ (%) 47% 51% V4% pts EEHE HEEEES
Operating margin (%) &&EF= (%) 2% 6% V4% pts EEHE
Net margin (%) JF&H% (%) 1% 5% V4% pts EEHE Singapore N
EBITDA KEHFIS - BIA - 178 REWHH AR 133 240 v45% g;ﬁ;g;g ged stores 30 29 "
EBITDA margin (%) R&tFIE - B - fréE REsHI A8 % (%) 5% 9% V4% pts HEDE
Capital expenditure &R 72 % v20% M;::ztsl;am&;f:;zgftores 0 21 421
HEEEER
Other countries HftEIxR
30 Jur:lse 201;_ 30 JU;E 201; h Export franchised stores 543 521 22
—=—= — ange s
~A=+H A~A=+8 e R
3 Total &#
Inventory turnoyer* (days) ﬁbt%?ﬁiﬁﬂf F,i>“_ 49 57 ¥ 8 days & Directly managed stores 523 639 v116
Inventory level (in HK$mn) FEKF (BEEST) 365 412 V1% S
Return on equity (%) BREEZEIHRE (%) 2% 17% V15% pts EEHE Franchised st 791 336 Va5
L . N ranchised stores
Current ratio (times) 7Bt E () 2.37 2.01 118% e
Net cash® (in HK$mn) B 55T (B EET) 249 332 ¥ 25% el
Total liabilities to equity ratio (%) #2 & EHRFERLE (%) 50% 68% V18% pts EEHE 1,314 1,475 V161

* Inventory held at year end divided by annualised revenue times 365 days 4F# B 2 17 5k A E (L a5 365K
T Time deposits, cash and bank balances less bank borrowings & #3717 15 & R $R1T45 4R 1T 92K

Revenue by geographical market #zl& i35 %8 2 W as
For the year ended 30 June 2012 HiZE —_T——_FA=1THILFE

Mainland China 2 B K
22% (25%)

Hong Kong &7
57% (53%)

Taiwan &7&
1% (11%)

Singapore ¥ N
9% (9%)

Malaysia™ 55278 ds~
1% 2%)

() Figures for the year ended 30 June 2011 are shown in brackets B#E =T ——F X A=+ HILFEZEHFUERER
~ Starting from November 2011, the Malaysian business was changed from directly managed to export franchising mode of operation
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Global distribution network
IR EHPE

Mainland China # B A Bz

Directly managed &# %12 350 (456)
Franchised 5 #F4E & 248 (315) 5 98 (77 1 )

Brunei 307 2(0) directly managed and franchised stores in mainland China
Cambodia 52 2(2) (AR B R B 1 B T2 R
Cyprus 2/ Hr 9(9)
Dominican Republic
Z BRI 5(5)
Egypt & & 5(6)
India E1fE 106 (107) 543
Indonesia E1fE 15(18) <52 1 >
Libya #tt 20 3(3) export franchised stores
Malaysia" &R " 19(21) emEs S 56
Malta 5 &b 4(8)
Middle East* & * 257 (246)
Mongolia 5 & 2(2)
Morocco B % & 0 (6)
Myanmar 4i 16 (16) 1 7 3
Nepal [E’H 5 2(2) <1 83)
Philippines JE2&E 8(12) directly managed stores in Hong Kong,
Reunion Island B EfE & 1(1) Taiwan, Singapore and Malaysia"
Romania & &2 6 (4) MIRE - I3 R 55 AR PR R ) B 1 B BRI A
Russia {8 7 5 1(1)
Thailand Z= & 67 (61)
Venezuela Z Ak 2(Q2)
Vietnam g 11 (10) * The Middle East includes Armenia, Bahrain, Iran, Iraq, Jordan, Kuwait,
— Lebanon, Oman, Qatar, Saudi Arabia, Syria and UAE
Hong Kong &8 41(39) 1 3 1 4 ('I 47 5) P RORERTE - Ik« - G - S - PR
Singapore #7in# 30 (29) ROW - S FEFE - DRTRE - KFERAARSERE
Taiwan &% 102 (94) ‘S;Ofes b, ab;g‘%% X} ”Ees W =2 \ () Figures at 30 June 2011 are shown in brackets
- > RoZ——FAA=+AZEFUERET

Regional retail performance indicators i@ =& #HERIRIEE

Same-store sales growth (%)* Net sales per sq. ft. (in HK$) Floor area (sq. ft.)
FEHERER (%)* BPHRFHER (BY) BEEE (FAR)
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2012 30 June 2012 30 June 2012
BE-E--F BE-Z--F —2-—fF
AA=THILEFE AA=THILLEE ARA=tH
Hong Kong &% 13% 11% 7,700 6,700 ™ 15% 140,200 140,400 0%
Mainland China 1 BIA -6% 1% 900 1,000 v 10% 417,900 486,300 V14%
Taiwan && 7% 3% 2,200 2,400 ¥ 8% 135,000 125,600 7%
Singapore F AN -6% 14% 6,700 7,100 ¥ 6% 35,500 35,600 0%
Malaysia® F53RFZE" 4% 8% - 1,700 ¥ 100% - 27,800 ¥ 100%
Total &t 4% 10% 2,600 2,500 4% 728,600 815,700 V11%
* Same-store sales growth is the comparison of sales of the same stores having A Starting from November 2011, the Malaysian business was changed from
full month operations in comparable periods directly managed to export franchising mode of operation
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CHAIRMAN'S LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
FRBB R

Dear Shareholders,

Fiscal year 2011/12 was a challenging year for Bossini as continued
difficulties and uncertainty affected the entire global economy.
With an as yet unresolved debt crisis in Europe, a sluggish United
States recovery, and a slowing growth throughout the Asian
region, consumers remain trepid and consumption weak. Increased
competition from overseas brands looking to find growth in our
core markets and supply imbalances that have led to aggressive

pricing have only added to the margin pressures of weak demand.

In the face of such adverse conditions, we managed to achieve
record-high top and bottom line in our Hong Kong retail and
export businesses, which, unfortunately, was severely offset by the

underperformance in our other core regions.

The Group reached total revenue in fiscal year 2011/12 of
HK$2,744 million, a new record high and a 4% increment over
the previous fiscal year. Profit attributable to owners for the Group

HMERBR
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amounted to HK$16 million for the year, a decrease of 88%. Given the challenging operating environment the
Group faced in fiscal year 2011/12, together with an expected greater external uncertainty going forward, the
Board does not recommend payment of a final dividend.

As in past years, building the strength of the “be happy” brand value formed the basis of the Group’s efforts.
Operationally, we focused on consolidating our network by shutting underperforming stores in mainland China
and expanding our export franchising network where appropriate. One of the results of these efforts was the
realignment of our Malaysian business from directly managed to export franchising mode of operation to drive
efficiency and better position the brand for strong future growth. Another was the wind-down of “b.style de
flyblue” brand to reform the Group’s network and allow it to reallocate its resources more effectively.

The Hong Kong retail market remained strong against the negative effects of the global economy slowdown
owing to its strong tourist flow. However, the strength of the market continues to attract overseas brands
which are driving fiercer competition and making for a more challenging operating environment. In spite of this,
the Group achieved remarkable results in the region during fiscal year 2011/12 as the Hong Kong segmental
operation, which includes directly managed retail and export franchising businesses, delivered record-high top
and bottom line. As in past years, this segment continued to generate more than half of the Group’s consolidated
revenue. On the Group’s level, we ended the year with HK$274 million in cash and bank balances, a net cash
balance of HK$249 million, and a considerable reduction in inventory turnover days, a strong footing from which
to meet potential future challenges.

CHAIRMAN'S LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
F R ER R K

BBUEBEI6TEL - E_T—— /——BHFEE AEFEERYH T &
EBRELERE BN EAKINERENTHAREZ  BERTE
HIRIB RIS -

ERENE AEERDRIGERE| WRIEEE EEAAEE
MBFES  EAESE RPRNBABEBE  EhE AR
KIRMBRMGES L RAEEEEMERD DB HE SRS - 5%
WOEBHER R -ESHRE LEEEEESHRALD
B S EEER  BIIESRERINE SIS TR - Bk ERE
£ B—HE  FBESERbstyle de flyblue ) &1 k2 & £ @ H
R LB O E B S EE R -

AMERBFABTE LN SEETEMSRADNARY - BAEES
BREERENEEPE - A HEENTHHEND BT A2EHm
MEINABRBRFHITY) > RE A REMERNEEIRE - B8O - &
TR/ CHBEE AEEEEANTEREARFEEEREDN
REIMEFEHR  WESAZE EREEF  FTEMERE/LE
BERM—FUALNGEARE RAFEFSE  AREMNRE RIRITHE
BHABE27MET REFBRABE249ET  FERAEHKERD -
EREREREREE RIELENLE -
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Strengthening the Brand in its 25th Anniversary

2012 marks our 25th anniversary, an important milestone in
the history of our Group and an opportunity to drive the future
strength of the brand. To this end, in fiscal year 2011/12 we
launched a number of 25th anniversary marketing campaigns,
released commemorative product lines, and held star-
studded events all to celebrate the Bossini heritage and drive
contemporary brand recognition.

In line with our proven co-branding and licensing strategy,
we also launched several well received new product lines in
fiscal year 2011/12. These included products that leveraged

the instant recognisability of such established franchises as

the Smurfs, Toy Story and Rilakkuma to bring unique and
playful concepts to our products and further strengthen
our brand value.

Rising to the Challenges of the Year Ahead

The global economy remains fragile and uncertainty
abounds. There is as yet no clarity about the resolution
of the Euro-zone debt crisis, and the long-awaited
recovery of other developed economies may well
be delayed further. While markets in Asia are still
growing, some significantly, there is no imminent
expectation that domestic demand or expansionary
government policies will drive growth rates
higher or back to pre-crisis levels. Faced with
such ambiguity and challenging conditions, our
current financial position remains strong to meet

challenge ahead, we remain confident that our

BAFEREmMERRBE—S

T FEREHERNEBK25EF
M—EEZERE  SHRMA—E®S K
mBE—FEEEAKR  BLBEME=Z
——/—ZHREE BT TEN25E
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CHAIRMAN'S LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
F R ER R K

ability and commitment to executing our core strategies FMgmB—@R25FAFHNENEE B8
A e RELMAREMERRE -
TERBERNT AL REE R AT

BEROTOD 2 —EHELE -

would deliver promising results and create shareholder
value. Throughout we will take every opportunity
to build and enhance our brand as we conclude
our 25th anniversary celebrations and move
forward profitably and sustainably into our
next quarter century.

]

REBEBTEFTMEOLER

BT ¥BERBEBEIN
BHMER - NN
WEBEERETIHEBEF

B HREE —RBEHE
BIpRRE REEEREE
b RABMPE—LHE
BRMEREIEEH - &1& - BRME
V% EBBHMRRRERHN
BONHE  BHEM —EUREE

Acknowledgments

We rely on the hard work and dedication

of our employees to thrive and prosper,

never more so than during challenging
economic times. | am grateful for the
tireless effort and commitment of our
management and staff in the past year, and

am proud of the contribution each and every

one of them has made to our organisation
and our unique "be happy” brand and
culture. I would like to also express my heartfelt

appreciation to our customers, to our business MR R -
partners, and to you — our shareholders — for your

continued support and faith in Bossini.

TSIN Man Kuen Bess TE

Chairman =5

Hong Kong BE

19 September 2012 —E—=—FhA+A1AH

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2 EBRERAR AR
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The financial year 2011/12 witnessed a renewed global
economic weakening and unprecedented uncertainty that
weighed heavily on consumer sentiment. The European debt
crisis continued to affect financial markets and the fragile
western economies. Fiscal austerity throughout the Euro-
Zone and persistently weak consumption slowed growth
and drove numerous countries into a double-dip recession,
whilst influencing the United States and the more resilient
economies of the developing world at the same time.
Moreover, long bullish Asian economies began to show signs
of slowdown in growth as both exports and internal demand
softened. On the other hand, the surged cotton price also
led to a high production cost which created strong gross
profit pressure for the peers in apparel retail industry during
the year under review, despite the cotton price had plunged
subsequently. As a result, most of our markets’ operating
environment remained challenging.

TR/ CURFE EREBAXT —HOEE
RENSBETAE BEFEHRBEEEL - BNEKR
BEBNBEZHERTS RKBHEREEE -BoiRE
BHETEHEEE O HERBERDTEERE  ZELAL
BRE FARFZEXBENEMRSEFNERPER - F
FoAREORABRE - —ERBEFHO MR
HEBETR - m—0H > RIEBBAAESEERAS -
HAHRBIEERDKNRBLE  DELBRFARRETE
EEENITEWRRNEEN - BFEME - REBRBLH™
HH)ERRFERATIME -



Faced with these exceptional circumstances and challenges, the Group’s losses in mainland China, Taiwan, and
Singapore widened in fiscal year 2011/12. On the other hand, the core Hong Kong retail and export franchising
businesses had performed remarkably well, delivering record-high top and bottom line, and a third consecutive
year of double-digit same-store sales growth in Hong Kong. While many of the Group’s competitors are still
experiencing inventory problem, the Group managed to improve its inventory turnover days considerably. The
Group also maintained a healthy financial position with positive net cash, rendering itself a decent level of
financial strength to meet challenges ahead.

Meanwhile, Bossini is celebrating its silver jubilee in 2012, a milestone that the Group is commemorating with a
series of special marketing campaigns and events throughout the year. Designed to honour and revere the brand,
as well as share the Group’s excitement and “be happy” brand value with its customers and many stakeholders,
these numerous activities are expected to push Bossini’s 25th birthday celebration into the limelight.

Financial Performance

During the year under review, the Group's revenue increased 4% to HK$2,744 million (2011: HK$2,642 million).
Gross profit decreased 4% to HK$1,294 million (2011: HK$1,354 million), while the gross margin declined to
47% (2011: 51%) mainly due to the intensified competition and the temporary surge in production cost. As a
result, operating margin also declined to 2% (2011: 6%). Operating profit decreased by 68% to HK$54 million
(2011: HK$168 million). EBITDA declined to HK$133 million (2011: HK$240 million), a 45% decrease, while profit
for the year attributable to owners decreased by 88% to HK$16 million (2011: HK$130 million). This resulted in
lower basic earnings per share of HK0.99 cent (2011: HK8.07 cents).

The Group ended the year with cash and bank balances of HK$274 million (2011: HK$460 million) and a net cash
balance of HK$249 million (2011: HK$332 million).

Operating Efficiencies
Same-store sales for the Group grew 4% (2011: 10%) during the year. Hong Kong remained the Group’s strongest
performing single market with same-store sales growth at 13% (2011: 11%,).

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
IEE u—_l-nFFH};Z jﬁ

AEHHEBTFNEHRBERUET  AKEB_T—— ——BHBF
ERHPBEARE  8ERFAMENEREN - Z—TH  FEMEZL
EBTERHOBHLLEARRARE  WEENBEEFHS &
AREHEREE-—FEHEFEUMTER -EEMARFHFNFEY
FERE AKRERELHE BEERGHXERD - I AEE
MBERRRFRE  BREMASFE  RUBENMBERUE S
RAEPE -

TE-—FRENENRERE  AEBEFAHRL - RITISHER
EmEEFEBNEERR ERINEEHBE LD EESHEERTHE
2 REBER-SBNEIFTRETENERLIHIRE I NZL
R EE R REMEMN2SRE RSE

B 5 R3R

EIEEFAN  AEEREERI%EBBE27.44187C
26.421870) - TEARBF IR EER AR E
BE12.9487T (ZT——F : BH¥13.54187T)
ﬁ——i-m%)vl%ﬂiﬁﬂ%ﬁTVEmuzﬁ——irmwo
EiBHN TIE68%ZEABBSATEIL(ZT——F : BHE1.68(EL) o K
FTRLE - BRIE - TE R AR B TR 45%:7@@%1 BEIT(ZE——
G ABB2401B70) c HEA ABMRFRGEF TSN EAB1.6TET
(ZF——F : BE130ET) SRELRBF A0.99BN (ZFT——
& 8.0781L) -

(ZF——%F: 8%
L ERTR4%ZE
CEMERTREAT% (=

AEBRFENBSRBITEBBEE2 748 (=2 ——F 1 B
4.60(B70) M FRMABE249EB T (T ——F : BH¥3.32ET) °

LB N

AEBNREHEERNREEEBI% (T ——4% 1 10%) g E -
BARARAEERBRENTS  8#5813% (22— F  11%) 8
EEHEEEER -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEETW& D

As of 30 June 2012, the Group had a total retail floor area of 728,600 sq. ft. (2011: 815,700 sq. ft.), a reduction
of 87,100 sq. ft. mainly due to our network consolidation in mainland China. Sales productivity improved slightly
as overall net sales per sq. ft. increased to HK$2,600 (2011: HK$2,500) during the year under review.

The Group’s operating expenses for the year ended 30 June 2012 accounted for 46% (2011: 46%) of its revenue.

The following table provides details of the Group's operating costs:

RZEB-—ZFRA=ZTH AEHZEEEELMAE728,600F FR

ZZT——%:815700FAR) - B87,100F AR » FEEHNES
REARPEMHEERLS - BBEFN BT RFHEE LAZEE2,600
T(ZZF——F : B¥2,5007T)  HEEENBESEHMABS -

HE_T——FRA-THLEFE  2EBRIEAEERYTELI60% (=
T——1F 1 46%) - AEBEERANFARNBTL T

Operating Costs Analysis ) N i
For the year ended 30 June
BEZEANA=1THLEE
2012 2011
—E——fF —T——%F
HK$ million % of revenue HK$ million % of revenue Change(%)
BYEET E =l BEEET HREA DL (%)
Revenue Yz 2,744 100% 2,642 100% +4%
Selling and distribution costs % & 5 $4 A A 945 34% 892 34% +6%
Administrative expenses 1T B 262 10% 284 1% -8%
Other operating expenses £ i 2 i& 7 % 52 2% 32 1% +64%
Total operating expenses 42 %8 fi 2 1,259 46% 1,208 46% +4%
Business Review EF L ACI=
MBIER

Network Expansion
The global economic slowdown and its effect on the mainland China market has caused the Group to retrench

and consolidate its network there, where the difficult market conditions and intensified competition are
continuously placing pressure on retail performance. As a result, while the Group continues to have presence in 36
countries and regions throughout the world, its number of stores declined to 1,314 (2011: 1,475) as of 30 June
2012. The majority of this reduction in store count occurred in mainland China. Of the total number of stores,
523 (2011: 639) were directly managed by the Group and 791 (2011: 836) were franchised as of 30 June 2012.

14 ANNUAL REPORT 2011/12 4%
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As of 30 June 2012, the Hong Kong's economy remained relatively healthy, while we have added 2 directly
managed stores for a total of 41 (2011: 39). The Taiwan operation also expanded, adding 8 directly managed
stores for a total count of 102 (2011: 94). In mainland China, as of 30 June 2012, the Group had a total of 598
(2011: 771) stores, a decrease of 173 stores compared to 30 June 2011. Of this total, 350 (2011: 456) were
directly managed stores and 248 (2011: 315) were franchised stores.

The Group also capitalised on opportunities in certain markets to add 22 franchised stores for a total of 543 (2011:
521) by 30 June 2012, including 19 stores converted after the Group restructured its Malaysian business from a
directly managed to an export franchising mode of operation.

The following is a breakdown of stores by geographical location and store type:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W R

RZZE—ZFRA=1TH EENKBMHARERE  KAEEIEH2
HEEEBREHFZ4IM(ZZ——F 39[) - MaEmi5 IR -
BESHEEEEEMEI102M (ZE——F  94f) - RZT——F X
A=+H AEEEFBEAKELXESISHM (ZT——F : 771[) /54 -
R-_T——FXAZ+TBERDI173M - EPEEEE/EFHSE &350
(ZT——% : 456f) ' FIrCEEHE R R248M (ZF——4%F : 315
FlEﬁ) °

REBTEGHRAZERBEINERNMS  RZE—ZFA=+H "
ORI R A E R B BESA3R (T ——4F : 521f) - HBh A

IO G RE W ARKERERRANRE AV EFFREEN -

BN ERLE D 2 o mmT

30 June 2012 30 June 2011
—E-ZHXH=1H —E-——HXA=1+H

Directly managed stores Franchised stores Directly managed stores Franchised stores

EEEEEMH R R E IR EEERIER R LR

Hong Kong &/ 41 - 39 -
Mainland China # B A Bz 350 248 456 315
Taiwan & /& 102 - 94 -
Singapore #1 1N3 30 - 29 -
Malaysia”® 5 2R FadeA - 19 21 -
Other countries and regions £ b B R & b [& - 524 - 521
Total # 5t 523 791 639 836

A Starting from November 2011, the Malaysian business was changed from directly managed to export franchising mode of operation.

A IR F+ AN SAASESHERERERANAEAKFLEELS -

Marketing and Branding

The Group’s 25th anniversary in 2012 is a remarkable milestone and provides a significant opportunity to celebrate
and promote the brand and its “be happy” message and culture with numerous campaigns, events and product
launches. The HA:PPY 25 Launch Party was successfully held in March 2012 with more than 200 regional media

™ 35 N on 1 R

CE-CFERNENGAFFERMEN —HEZRREME - FB R
SIMBER RS RMEMBMAEREREEE USHIHIREIOH
BRXfE s REBR -T—ZF= A RPHEEHAPPY 25858 - I
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I\/IANAGEI\/IENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEJELTRHH& *Fl'

and business partners attending. At the launch event, the Group officially appointed pop diva Ms. Joey Yung as
Bossini’s brand ambassador in Asia-Pacific region. The HA:PPY 25 marketing promotion campaign is composed of
product enhancement, promotions and a new store concept which are expected to further strengthen the brand
value. We have added innovative elements to the design and certain fabrics to enhance product functionality,
comfort, and the style of the new Ha:ppy collection, which complemented the Group’s strategy on new product
development.

Co-branded and Licensed Products

Co-branded and licensed products form an essential part of the Group’s brand building strategy by creating
appealing and recognisable campaigns that boost awareness of the “be happy” brand value. The Group sought
partnerships with internationally renowned brands that resonate with its customer base to create mutually
beneficial campaigns and brand building value.

The Group successfully launched bossini x Smurfs product series in the second half of 2011 to a strong market
perception, following the publicity surrounding the theatrical release of the Smurfs movie in August 2011. The Group
launched its very successful bossini x Toy Story co-branded and licensed campaign to coincide with the opening of
Toy Story Land at Hong Kong Disneyland in mid November 2011. This campaign enjoyed instant recognition among
consumers and received an overwhelmingly positive response from customers. The “Limited Edition” accessories and
clothing that were developed together with the renowned creative studio, AllRightsReserved, topped off the campaign
and provided an additional branding boost.

In March 2012, the Group released its bossini x Rilakkuma campaign with printed tees, slacks and body wear
for women and children. The various fashion elements and vibrant colour themes embodied a “happy moment”
feeling found successful reflection in the marketplace.

Operational Performance by Market

As in past years, the Hong Kong segmental operation, which includes directly managed retail and export
franchising businesses, remained the Group’s largest and most significant sales contributor, comprising 57%
(2011: 53%) of the Group’s consolidated revenue for the year ended 30 June 2012. This was followed by
mainland China, Taiwan, Singapore and Malaysia, which accounted for 22% (2011: 25%), 11% (2011: 11%), 9%
(2011: 9%) and 1% (2011: 2%) of the consolidated revenue for the year ended 30 June 2012 respectively.
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Hong Kong

The economy has strained under the dual stresses of the ongoing
European financial uncertainty and slowing global demand. However,
the retail environment in Hong Kong remains strong and buoyant, as
visitor numbers continue to grow, attracting overseas retailers who
continue to stream into the region, driving up costs and creating a
fiercely competitive marketplace. In spite of these challenges, the
Group continued to perform well in its home market and once again
delivered record-high top and bottom line from both its retail and export
franchising businesses. During the year under review, overall revenue
from the Hong Kong market increased 13% to HK$1,593 million (2011:
HK$1,410 million), while operating profit increased 11% to HK$250
million (2011: HK$225 million), resulting in an operating margin of 16%
(2011: 16%).

As of 30 June 2012, the Group directly owned and managed 41 (2011:
39) retail stores in Hong Kong. Overall, the Group managed a total
of 140,200 sqg. ft. (2011: 140,400 sq. ft.) of retail floor area in the
region. During the year under review, net sales per sq. ft. increased to
HK$7,700 (2011: HK$6,700). The performance of the Hong Kong stores
continued to improve, with same-store sales increasing 13% during
the year under review, outpacing the 11% rise recorded last year and
marking the third consecutive year of double-digit growth.

During the year under review, the Group’s export franchising businesses
continued to seize opportunities in emerging and developing markets,
adding 22 stores for a total of 543 (2011:
2012.

521) stores as of 30 June
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Mainland China

Numerous factors have conspired to weaken consumer demand in
mainland China during the year under review. Government policies
to control inflation, which were launched late in 2010, have resulted
in a tighter monetary policy and a slowdown in domestic demand.
Sluggish recoveries and renewed recession in major export markets
have also throttled export demand, slowed employment growth, and
shaken consumer confidence.

Mainland China’s operation in fiscal year 2011/12 was adversely
affected by the market’s slowing demand and fierce competition,
which caused the gross margin to be severely suppressed by the
clearance of excess inventory purchased prior to the economic
downturn, as part of a planned but later unexecuted network
expansion. Together with the Group’s continued efforts to wind
down its underperforming “b.style de flyblue” stores, total revenue
decreased 9% to HK$599 million (2011: HK$656 million). Operating
loss amounted to HK$156 million (2011: HK$58 million loss), with an
operating margin of negative 26% (2011: negative 9%).

As of 30 June 2012, the Group reduced its total number of stores in
mainland China to 598 (2011: 771), down by 173 stores. Of these,
350 (2011: 456) stores were directly managed and 248 (2011: 315)
stores were franchised operations. A total of 541 (2011: 615) stores
were operated under the “bossini” brand and 57 (2011: 156) stores
were operated under the "b.style de flyblue” label. As a result, total
retail floor area also declined, amounting to 417,900 sq. ft. (2011:
486,300 sq. ft.) with net sales per sq. ft. decreased to HK$900 (2011:
HK$1,000). During the year under review, the same-store sales in
mainland China recorded a decline of 6% (2011: 11% growth).
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Taiwan

Taiwan’s predominantly export dependent economy could not
escape the ravages of the Euro-zone debt crisis and the continued
anemic recoveries in other developed countries. The retail
environment remained challenging with consumer sentiment
worsened, spending slowed, and the continued entrance of
foreign brands into this market. During the year under review,
total revenue in Taiwan increased 1% to HK$297 million
(2011: HK$293 million) while operating loss was HK$28
million (2011: HK$4 million loss), representing an operating
margin of negative 9% (2011: negative 1%).

As of 30 June 2012, the number of directly managed stores in
Taiwan increased by 8 to 102 (2011: 94) stores, while the total
retail floor area increased 7% to 135,000 sq. ft. (2011: 125,600
sg. ft.). During the year under review, same-store sales recorded
a decline of 7% (2011: 3% growth), while net sales per sq. ft.
decreased to HK$2,200 (2011: HK$2,400).

Singapore

Subject to similar economic forces as Hong Kong and Taiwan, Singapore’s largely

trade dependent economy also lost momentum in fiscal year 2011/12, combined with

persistently high inflation, the slowdown continued to weigh on consumer confidence placing downward
pressure on the retail segment. This wayward sentiment, together with an increasing presence of overseas
brands, has increased competitiveness in Singapore’s retail market, which has adversely affected the Group’s
business there. During the year under review, total revenue in Singapore slightly increased 2% to HK$239
million (2011: HK$235 million), with operating loss of HK$11 million (2011: HK$9 million profit), representing
an operating margin of negative 5% (2011: positive 4%).

As of 30 June 2012, the Group operated 30 (2011: 29) directly managed stores in Singapore. Total retail floor
area remained virtually unchanged at 35,500 sq. ft. (2011: 35,600 sq. ft.). During the year under review, same-
store sales recorded a decline of 6% (2011: 14% growth) in Singapore, while net sales per sq. ft. decreased to
HK$6,700 (2011: HK$7,100).
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Malaysia

During)/the year under review, the Group changed its business model in the Malaysian market, shifting the directly
managed stores there to a local franchisee under its export franchising operation in November 2011. The Group is
confident that this change will leverage the local franchisee’s advantages to the benefit of both parties and result
in a great success in the marketplace going forward.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As of 30 June 2012, the Group’s cash and bank balances amounted to HK$274 million (2011: HK$460 million)
and its net cash balance was HK$249 million (2011: HK$332 million). The current ratio for the Group was 2.37
times (2011: 2.01 times) and the ratio of total liabilities to equity was 50% (2011: 68%).

The Group’s bank borrowings amounted to HK$24 million (2011: HK$127 million) as of 30 June 2012, resulting
in the gearing ratio, as determined by bank borrowings over total equity, of 3% (2011: 16%).

The Group has sales and investments in foreign operations which use currencies other than the United States
dollar and Hong Kong dollar. As such, the Group has some exposures to foreign currency risk, which it mitigates
by entering into forward currency contracts designed to lessen exposure to exchange rate fluctuations in material
transactions denominated in currencies other than the United States dollar and Hong Kong dollar.

As of 30 June 2012, the Group’s operational efficiency efforts resulted in a considerable improvement in average
inventory turnover days*, which was decreased by 8 days to 49 days (2011: 57 days). The return on equity for the
Group during the year under review was 2% (2011: 17%).

#  Inventory held at year end divided by annualised revenue times 365 days

Assessment on Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year ended 30 June 2012, the Group considered that certain property, plant and equipment were
subject to impairment loss because the cash generating units of those property, plant and equipment were non-
performing and suffered from substantial losses for the year, particularly in mainland China. As a result, an
impairment loss of HK$8 million was recorded.

Contingent Liabilities
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The Company has given guarantees in favour of banks to the extent of HK$769 million (2011: HK$694 million)
with respect to banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries. These facilities were utilised to the extent of
HK$67 million (2011: HK$179 million) as of 30 June 2012.

Human Capital

The Group had a total of 3,800 (2011: 4,400) full-time equivalent employees in Hong Kong, Macau, mainland
China, Taiwan and Singapore as of 30 June 2012. The Group ensures that its unique corporate culture permeates
throughout its organisation by holding regular training and other focused programme to imbue its people with
the “7 Habits®” and “7 Practices” that make up the “bossini way”. The Group maintains a performance-based
remuneration system that includes share options and discretionary bonuses, and offers comprehensive benefits,
such as insurance and retirement schemes.

Outlook

The global economy is in a protracted period of unprecedented uncertainty and instability. This uncertainty
and the accompanying worry about the global effects of a Euro-zone crisis have had far reaching impacts. In
the United States, a nascent economic recovery has stalled and consumers remain reticent as unemployment
refuses to improve. In Asia’s developing markets, and among its export-dependent tigers, growth has slowed
dramatically as global demand remains stubbornly weak. Even in mainland China, the powerhouse of global
growth, weaker than expected exports and a generally tighter monetary policy have caused economic growth to
slow considerably.

In such an uncertain environment, the Group intends to slow down its expansion and focus on improving
operational efficiencies in its core markets, recognising that the fiscal year 2012/13 will be a challenging year
for retail. Hong Kong will remain its largest market and the Group expects to achieve moderate growth there as
the retail market continues to grow despite the intensifying competition. The Group will continue to consolidate
its non-performing stores, wind down the remainder of its underperforming “b.style de flyblue” locations in
mainland China, Hong Kong and Singapore, and strengthen its supply chain capabilities. For export franchising
operation, the Group plans to take a pragmatic approach to expansion opportunities in markets less affected by
the global downturn.

Operationally, the Group will introduce a brand new store concept to create a more comfortable and appealing
shopping experience for customers while boosting operating efficiency at the store level. With major new features
like a giant LED storefront wall, a new racking system and an eye-catching interior design, the new stores will
improve product presentation and further enhance the brand image. At the same time, the Group will partner
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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with a strategic supplier to enhance the supply chain capabilities and ensure quicker responsiveness to market trends. The
Group also expects to enjoy benefits from the reduction in cotton price that will take effect in 2012/13, allowing higher
flexibility in margin management.

As 2012 is the 25th anniversary year of the Bossini brand, the Group will continue to mark the occasion with various
events and new product launches designed to boost awareness of the “be happy” value and celebrate this important
milestone with our customers and stakeholders.

The Group relies on the hard work and dedication of its employees to thrive and prosper, never more so than during
challenging economic times. With strong cohesion and unwavering efforts, our team will continue to help the Group
spread its brand message and achieve its strategic goals. The Group will continue to invest in its people, its “be happy”
culture, and the professionalism with which it conducts its daily business.

Overall, the Group’s management team remains cautious but confident about the business outlook in the coming year.
The specter of deepening global economic woes is balanced for the Group by its presence in the continuously growing
Asian markets, a relatively strong core Hong Kong business, and opportunities in selected export markets. While
competition is heating up across all of its markets, the Group will continue to build Bossini as one of the most valued
apparel brands wherever it is present.
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Bossini is a learning organisation that treasures
knowledge sharing and life-long learning. It encourages
employees to progress and excel every day by offering
them comprehensive on-the-job training and focused
programme.

In developing a unique corporate culture, the Group
launched “the bossini way” in mid 2002 to share
with all staff its vision, mission and shared values,
cultivating proactive and positive working attitudes.
Since May 2004, Bossini has been cooperating with
Right Management Hong Kong Ltd to provide training
for employees in the “7 Habits®".

We believe a corporate culture embracing “the bossini
way"” together with 7 Habits®” would align the vision
and thus the direction of the Group as a whole.
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Human Resources

In Bossini, we believe employees are our most valuable asset and source of competitive advantage. Enhancing staff
engagement and attracting, developing and retaining high caliber people are our key strategies for continuous
business growth.

As a learning organisation, we treasure knowledge sharing and life-long learning. We provide a wide range
of internal training and learning activities through our Bossini Academy and offer education sponsorship to
encourage our staff to excel in personal and professional development. In the area of talent development, we have
the "Bossini Future Leadership Program” to identify and develop talented individuals for future leadership roles.
To reinforce knowledge sharing, we have in place Knowledge Management Platforms. In April 2012, we were
awarded as Manpower Developer 1st (MD 1st) once again by the Employees Retraining Board in recognition of
our outstanding performance in manpower training and development.

In addition to linking staff performance to core and leadership competencies to enhance the performance
management system, we have refined our Vision, Mission and Core Values to strengthen our employer brand and
corporate culture. Besides putting focus on customer, execution, work with passion and live the 7 Habits®, we
also advocate the importance of innovation as one of the core values. To promote continuous improvement and
innovation, our senior management has taken the lead in participating in various related communication sessions
and training workshops.

Since 2010, we have introduced a bi-yearly “Happy Employee Survey” to keep track of our employees’
engagement level and to serve as a guide in implementing related initiatives. In the years ahead, we will continue
our commitment and investment in human capital and aim at creating a happy and sustainable organisation for
all stakeholders.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

Corporate Social Responsibilities

As a caring and responsible corporate citizen, Bossini dedicated to a long term commitment to the communities
that we serve. Over the years, we have been playing an active role to requite the communities by undertaking a
variety of corporate social responsibility programmes. Besides being awarded as the “Caring Company” by Hong
Kong Council of Social Service for the eight consecutive years, we have also been granted the “Grand Award”
of the Hong Kong Smoke-Free Leading Company Awards by the Hong Kong Council on Smoking and Health in
recognition of our initiatives and efforts in disseminating smoke-free messages to our employees.

In 2011/12, Bossini and our employee have continued our community care by joint efforts with a diversified range
of organisations, we continued the “Employee Volunteer Week” launching a number of volunteer activities in our
core regions from serving the underprivileged to caring the environment, including:

o Donating over 700kg of clothes, toys and books to Christian Action in Hong Kong

o Collaborating with Hong Kong Early Psychosis Intervention Society for FITMIND Charity walk

o Visitng Yan Chai Hospital Tsin Man Kuen Elderly Home

o Organising party and donating stationeries for children suffered from hearing loss in welfare centre in
Guangzhou

o Donating stationeries, books and clothes to the welfare centres in Guangzhou, Shanghai, Wuhan and Shenzhen

o Cleaning park at Lian Hua Park in Shenzhen

o Visiting elderly homes in Beijing and Chengdu

o Visiting and donating grocery and food to the orphans lived in children welfare centre in Nanjing

o Donating over 1,000 clothes to Association of The Family of Psychological Rehabilitation of Juridical
Association in Taiwan

o Donating books to Sunshine Social Welfare Foundation in Taiwan

o Partnering with Lion Befrienders Singapore to visit the elderly with a donation of over 100 grocery packs

In addition to the above initiatives, we have put a great deal of efforts in conducting campus recruitment talks
for colleague students to equip them with knowledge about the retail industry and help fostering positive values
among the teenagers.

Going forward, we will take further steps to promote corporate social responsibility culture and continue to work
hands in hands with our staff to contribute to the community we serve, we care and we love.
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The Board is committed to maintain a solid, transparent and sensible framework of corporate governance for the
Company and its subsidiaries and will continue to review its effectiveness.

On 1 April 2012, the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“Former CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to
the Rules governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) was
amended and renamed as Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (“New CG Code”).
The Board is committed to complying with the code provisions as stated in the New CG code to the extent that
the directors of the Company (“Directors”) consider it is applicable and practical to the Company.

The Company has complied with the code provision in the Former CG Code during the period from 1 July 2011
to 31 March 2012 and has complied with New CG Code during the period from 1 April 2012 to 30 June 2012,
except for the following deviation:

—  The Chairman of the Company is not subject to retirement by rotation. The Board considers that the
continuity of the Chairman of the Company and her leadership are crucial in maintaining the stability of the
Group’s business operations.

Board of Directors
Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the Board, which assumes the responsibility for
the leadership and control of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the business of the Group by
directing and supervising the Group’s affairs. All Directors should make decisions objectively in the best interests
of the Company.

The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or through Board committees. To ensure the Board is in a
position to exercise its powers in an informed manner, management provides monthly management accounts and
updates to the Directors who also have full and timely access to all relevant information and may take independent
professional advice if necessary.

The authorities reserved to the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Management Committee are more particularly discussed below.
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Board Composition

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills and experience desirable for effective
leadership of the Company and independence in decision making.

The Board currently comprises 6 Directors in total, with 3 executive directors and 3 independent non-executive
directors (“INED") whose biographical details are set out in “Directors’ profile” section on pages 46 to 47 and are
posted on the Company’s website at www.bossini.com. The Directors during the year under review and up to the
date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess (Chairman)
Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond
Ms. LEUNG Mei Han
Prof. SIN Yat Ming

The Company currently has 4 Board committees. The table below provides membership information of these

committees on which each Director serves.

EFRAEK
EEROEKBREARAGRES BIRENBEE 2 R RER

EERAMARBANVNESEN  BEZNURTEER B IIEHR
TEE([BUIFRPTESR]  SEFLEECHANFI6EEFLITR
ZIEBEEN ] RAREEwww.bossini.com ° LA T AR ADEEER
THEAREABRIEHES -

BITES

BEE2RZE(XF)
BEERE (THRER)
PR = 5 ok &

BYFHTES

FXEEE
REMEZL
PASEEE €5

ARBBRKREOEELEZREE - TRREASEFRREEELEZE
G PTEERBAL -

Audit Committee Remuneration Committee Nomination Committee Management Committee

5 REZER EERE®

Name of Directors & S 4 EL

Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess # £ 18 4& 1

Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund & 2 % 4
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul B £ 3 50 4
Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond 2= 32 % % 4
Ms. LEUNG Mei Han 2= %2+

Prof. SIN Yat Ming %t B 88 4%

< n <<

< n <<
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Notes:

C  Chairman of the relevant Board committees
M Member of the relevant Board committees

The Directors had no financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationship with each other at 30
June 2012.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year under review, the Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least 3 INEDs with at least 1 INED possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each INED of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. All INEDs are also members of the Company’s Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. These INEDs are high calibre executives who bring a diversified range
of expertise and serve the crucial function of providing checks and balances for safeguarding the interests of
shareholders and the Group as a whole.

All INEDs of the Company are appointed for specific terms, their length of service with the Company is one year
from the dates of their appointments which will be automatically renewed unless early termination by either party
serving not less than three months prior written notice or upon mutual consent on short notice. They are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings of the Company (“AGMs") in accordance
with the Bye-laws of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separated. Currently, Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess is the
Chairman and Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund is the Chief Executive Officer. The positions of Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer are held by separate individuals in order to preserve independence and a balance of views
and judgement.
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The responsibilities of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are clearly defined and set out in writing.
The Chairman is responsible for the overall direction of the Group. Supported by the other executive director and
senior management, the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the overall management and strategic planning
of the Group.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with specific written terms of reference. It comprises
5 members, namely, Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess (Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. MAK Tak Cheong
Edmund, Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond, Ms. LEUNG Mei Han and Prof. SIN Yat Ming. For appointment of new
Director, the background, experience, professional skills, availability to commit to the affairs of the Company and,
in case of INED, the independence requirements set out in the Listing Rules, of the potential appointee will be
taken into consideration.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, all newly appointed director of the Company shall hold office until the
next AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election. At each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being,
or if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not exceeding one-third,
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director, save any Director holding office as Chairman or
Managing Director, including those appointed for a specific term shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. The Directors to retire in every year shall be those who have been longest in office since
their last election but as between persons who became Directors on the same day shall be determined by lot,
unless they otherwise agree between themselves. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.

The Chairman of the Company are not subject to retirement by rotation. The Board considers that the continuity
of the Chairman of the Company and her leadership is crucial in maintaining the stability of the Group’s business
operations.

The Company’s circular to be despatched to shareholders of the Company on or about 3 October 2012 will
contain detailed information of the Directors standing for re-election.
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Training for Directors EFIE

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on his appointment, so as EHMEATEEELEARHEES—E2E  TREVEBEAZTENA
to ensure that he has appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Group and that he is fully Biigsl MBREUAEEEBNEEERENTH T2EMEE
aware of his responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. There BEETREBEAEIRET2BEREE EERER - AR7A
are also arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing and professional development to Directors at the NeZHREEREFEHNNEERE  BAAAQ A &AE-
Company’s expenses whenever necessary.

The Company provides regular updates and presentations on changes and developments relating to the Group’s RARMAEEBEBRERRDEREEREZ2ET  REHANEER
business and the legislative and regulatory environments to the Directors at regular Board meetings. SENNEBIEHTHETIRLRETY

The Directors are committed to complying with Code Provision A.6.5 of the New CG Code which came into effect EEARETAS TR —ABERZHCEEATNABRE

on 1 April 2012 on Directors’ training. All Directors have participated in continuous professional development to FEIZTAEXEASE HE-_ZE——FA=ZTHILEFE &

develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and provided a record of training they received for the year ended BESHEQHEERTHESNELFEZHEZERE  YEM

30 June 2012 to the Company. RATRBEEMEXFI 28 -

The individual training record of each Director received for the year ended 30 June 2012 is summarised below: SEENHEE-_E——FSA="1TtHULEFEMRESEIZ AR
T

Attending seminars/forums/
workshops /conferences relevant

Visiting senior management of other Attending internal briefing sessions to the business or directors’ duties
Reading regulatory updates companies/institutions and company'’s facilities (including delivery of speeches) HEEREBREETRENT

Name of Directors #EFE# % BB E R ENERER Feh E R B HENSREEERARRE HEAEBE R e (REREEH) w8/ T e

Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess £ 28 % + 4 v 4 4
Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund 212 & 5t 4 4 4 4 4
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul B = 5 5t & 4 4 4 4
Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond 2= 3 {%& %t & 4 = v v
Ms. LEUNG Mei Han 212 + v = v v
Prof. SIN Yat Ming & B BB v 4 v v
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Directors’ Attendance and Time Commitments BEE 2 HFE R KRR

For the year ended 30 June 2012, the Board met 7 times including for considering and approving the audited  EZTE—ZFANA-THLEFE EFRERTLERERE FEBZE
final results for the year ended 30 June 2011, unaudited results for the six months ended 31 December 2011, ERMEBE_T——F X A=ZTHLEFENLERZEZFEE BZE
continuing connected transactions, and budget of the Group for the year ending 30 June 2013. At these board “E——FF+ AT —HUEANERNREERES  BERERS
meetings, the Board also reviewed and discussed the Group’s business updates and strategies. &$'§ EHE_T—=FAA-+HLEFENYHELE -RREES

)%ﬁu%at %%Eﬁ*ﬁiuq&ujnﬂﬁzﬁﬁ.m%ﬁ%ﬁ@&ﬁﬁmk ©

The individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings of the Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration BEERHE_Z—FAAZTALTFENESR EXRLZED -
Committee and Nomination Committee, annual general meeting and special general meeting for the year ended FTHEZEES  REZECTLH BREEFASEABRIEFIAG ZHE
30 June 2012 is set out below: KR

Number of meetings attended/held
HE X, ¢

Audit Remuneration Nomination Annual Special
Board Meeting Committee Meeting Committee Meetmg Comm\ttee Meeting Meeting General Meeting
Name of Directors & £ % ExRes 2 2 M 3 eeE RREFAE BRRERIAE

Executive Directors $1{TE%E

Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess # 215+ 7/7 N/A 11 0/0 11 11
Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund Z & & % £ 717 N/A N/A 0/0 11 11
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul R £ & 5t 4 717 N/A N/A N/A 171 1771

Independent Non-executive Directors B #HTES

Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond Z=X & 5% & 5/7 2/2 0/1 0/0 0/1 0/1
Ms. LEUNG Mei Han 22+ 6/7 2/2 11 0/0 0/1 0/1
Prof. SIN Yat Ming %t B A% 717 2/2 IVl 0/0 0/1 7
Notes: B 5T
1. Nomination Committee was established on 21 February 2012. 1. REZEGRZZE—Z-F-_A=Z+—HKIL-
2. Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess was appointed as Chairman and Mr. MAK Tak Cheong, Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond, Ms. 2. BERIKIEZEIRRREZEEIR EEEXE FXEEE RER
LEUNG Mei Han and Prof. SIN Yat Ming were appointed as member of the Nomination Committee with effect from REREEBRAHRRBREEEGKRE HHE-_T——_F_A-+—HEE
21 February 2012. e
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Practices and conduct of meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board

and committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable information are generally sent to all Directors
at least three days before each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors apprised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company and to enable them to make informed decisions.

The Board meets regularly at least 4 times every year. The Directors participated in person or through electronic
means of communication. Regular Board meetings are scheduled in the prior year to provide sufficient notice
to the Directors and facilitate the maximum attendance of the Directors. The Board members are given an
opportunity to include additional matters for discussion and are supplied with relevant information by the senior
management and reports relating to the Group’s operational and financial performance before the scheduled
Board meetings in a timely manner.

Draft and final versions of minutes of Board and Committee meetings will be sent to all Directors or Committee
members for their comments and records respectively. The Board member can seek independent professional
advice in performing their duties at the Group’s expense, if necessary.

If a Director has a conflict of interest in a transaction to be considered by the Board and the Board has determined
this interest to be material, the individual is required to declare his interest and to abstain from voting. At least
1 INED who has no material interest in the transaction shall be present at the full Board meeting approving such

transaction.

Board Committees

The Company currently have 4 committees, namely, the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Management Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. Terms of
reference of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee are available on the
Stock Exchange's website and the Company’s website at www.bossini.com. The Board committees are provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee plays a vital role in corporate governance of the Group and comprises 3 INEDs, namely
Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond, Ms. LEUNG Mei Han and Prof. SIN Yat Ming. Ms. Leung, who has professional
qualifications in accounting and financial management expertise, is the Chairman of the Audit Committee. No
member of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors. The Audit
Committee is provided with sufficient resources, including the advice of external auditors and Internal Audit
Department to discharge its duties. The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial results for the
year ended 30 June 2012.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are set out clearly in the terms of reference which are of
no less exacting terms than those set out in the New CG Code and are available on the Company’s website. The
terms of reference for the Audit Committee are also aligned with the guidelines issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

The Audit Committee met 2 times during the year to review the accounting policies and practices adopted by
the Group with executive director, senior management and the Company’s internal and external auditors. It also
discusses matters related to financial reporting, internal controls, risk management and appointment of external
auditors. The Audit Committee is also responsible for reviewing the interim and final results of the Group. The
attendance of individual committee members is set out hereunder.

With effect from 21 February 2012, the Company amended the terms of reference of the Audit Committee to
make them correspond with the New CG Code.

The major works of the Audit Committee during the year are as follows:

(a)

reviewed the financial results for the year ended 30 June 2011 and interim financial results for the 6 months
ended 31 December 2011,

reviewed the progress report and report on internal audit results and internal controls for the year ended 30
June 2011 and 6 months ended 31 December 2011 prepared by Internal Audit Department respectively; and

approved and confirmed the annual audit plan for the year ending 30 June 2013 of Internal Audit
Department.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with specific written terms of reference. The
Remuneration Committee consists of 1 executive director and 3 INEDs, namely Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess, Mr.
LEE Man Chun Raymond, Ms. LEUNG Mei Han and Prof. SIN Yat Ming. Ms. Leung is the Chairman for the
Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
duties. The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are set out clearly in the terms of reference
which included the duties specified in the New CG Code and are available on the Company’s website.

With effect from 21 February 2012, the Company amended the terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee to make them correspondence with the New CG Code.

No Director is involved in any decisions as to his own remuneration. The Group’s remuneration policy seeks to
provide a fair market remuneration so as to attract, retain and motivate high quality staff.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting. The major works of the
Remuneration Committee during the year are as follows:

(@) recommended the proposed adjustment to the remuneration of executive directors and senior management
and the proposed performance bonus to the executive directors; and

(b) recommended the proposed changes to the remuneration packages of INEDs.
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Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management

The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band for the year ended 30 June 2012 is set out

EELEAEEESH
BE-T-—FAA-STALFEERERBZHFMARIMT -

below:
Remuneration bands (HK$) Number of persons A% AR B T)
$1,000,001 to $1,500,000 4 1,000,0017C%1,500,0007T
$1,500,001 to $2,000,000 3 1,500,0017T %#2,000,0007T
$2,000,001 to $2,500,000 1 2,000,0017c£2,500,0007T
$2,500,001 to $3,000,000 1 2,500,0017T £3,000,0007T

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid employees as required to be
disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements,
respectively.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 21 February 2012 with terms of reference in line with Code
Provision A.5.1 of the New CG Code which came into effect on 1 April 2012. The Nomination Committee
comprises 5 members, the majority of which are independent non-executive directors, namely Ms. TSIN Man Kuen
Bess (Chairman of the committee), Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund, Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond, Ms. LEUNG Mei
Han and Prof. SIN Yat Ming.
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The main duties of the Nomination Committee include the following:

(@) review the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
at least annually and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company'’s corporate strategy;

(b) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

() assess the independence of independent non-executive directors; and

(d) make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee did not hold any meeting.

Management Committee

The Board has delegated to the Management Committee the authority of dealing with the operational matters
of the Group, save for those matters which are reserved for the Board’s decision and approval pursuant to the
written terms of reference, which includes taking in charge of major decision making in relation to the day-to-
day business operations of the Company, administering the Company’s routine resolutions and dealing with ad-
hoc matters, ensuring adequate funding and reporting periodically to the Board. The Management Committee
consists of 3 executive directors and assumes full accountability to the Board for all operation of the Group.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance duties with its written terms of reference
as set out below:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management;
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(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the corporate governance code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

Company Secretary

Ms. WONG Suk May joined the Group in 2004 and has been the company secretary since 2007. She is an
employee of a fellow subsidiary of the Company and has day to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. As the
company secretary, Ms. Wong supports the Board by ensuring board procedures and all applicable law, rules and
regulations are followed. She is responsible for advising the Board on governance matters and facilitates induction
and professional development of the Directors. The appointment and dismissal of the company secretary are
subject to the Board approval in accordance with the Bye-laws. Whilst the company secretary reports to the Chief
Executive Officer on the Group’s company secretarial and corporate governance matters, all Directors have access
to the advice and services of the company secretary. Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules which came into
effect on 1 January 2012, the company secretary has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
in the year under review.

Internal Controls and Internal Audit

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and effective system of internal controls particularly
in respect of the controls on financial, operational, compliance and risk management, to achieve the Company’s
business strategies and the Group’s business operations. During the year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness
of the system of internal controls through the Audit Committee.

The Group’s internal controls are evaluated by the Internal Audit Department independently, operating since
August 2002, on an on-going basis and covered all major operations of the Group on a rotational basis. The key
tasks of which include:

(@) reviewing material aspects of the Group’s key activities and corresponding internal controls with unrestricted
rights of access;
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(b) conducting audits on the work practices, procedures and internal controls established by the business units
of the Group on a regular basis in order to evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal controls
system established;

(c) conducting special reviews and investigations into areas of concern identified by management; and
(d) monitoring the corrective actions taken by relevant departments.

The internal audit charter was approved and adopted by the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit Department
adopted a risk-based approach to develop the annual audit plan, which is reviewed and approved by the Audit
Committee. It furnishes independent and objective evaluations and recommendations in the form of an audit
report to management. Internal Audit staff is authorised to access any information relating to the Company and
to make enquiries to staff concerned, and the head of the Internal Audit Department will directly report to the
Audit Committee on the major audit findings and management responses.

The Internal Audit Department reports twice each year to the Audit Committee and the Board on significant
findings on internal controls. The Board has, through the works of the Audit Committee and the Internal Audit
Department, carried out ongoing examination and monitoring of the Company’s internal controls system and
completed the evaluation of the internal controls system.

The Bossini Group Policy sets forth a set of standards to all employees to govern the operations of the Group
in legal, financial, procurement, human resources, corporate governance and public relation spheres, and will
facilitate the ongoing examination and evaluation of the Group’s compliance with relevant rules and regulations
and of the effectiveness of internal controls. Employees are expected to strictly adhere to the Bossini Group Policy
and encouraged to alert senior management of potential cases of misconduct without fear of retribution. The
Bossini Group Policy was first issued in March 2004. It is taken up for review and renewal on an annual basis by
the designated Group Policy Committee.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Bossini Group Policy laid down a code of conduct regarding the directors’ securities transactions in terms
as stringent as those set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors and Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code") contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Based on the specific enquiry made, all Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Bossini Group Policy throughout the year. Employees are not
encouraged to deal in the securities of the Company within 30 days and 60 days before the interim and the
final results announcements respectively and prohibited to make use of price-sensitive information to deal in the
securities of the Company.

Directors’ interest at 30 June 2012 in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) are set out on
pages 52 to 53.

Financial Reporting and External Auditors’ Remuneration

The Directors recognise the responsibility for preparing the financial statements which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs and of the results and cash flows of the Group on a going concern basis with the support
from the Finance Department. The responsibilities of the Company’s external auditors with respect to the financial
reporting are set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 68 to 69.

During the year ended 30 June 2012, the auditors’ remuneration in relation to statutory audit work of the Group
amounted to HK$2.98 million, of which a sum of HK$2.46 million was paid to the Group’s principal external
auditor, Ernst & Young (“EY"). The remuneration for EY and its affiliated firms in respect of audit services and non-
audit services amounted to approximately HK$2.46 million and HK$0.61 million respectively.

Responsibilities in respect of the Financial Statements

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of annual and interim
reports, price sensitive announcements and other publications of the Company and other disclosures required
under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2012. The statement of the
external auditors of the Company about their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the “Independent Auditors’ Report” contained in this annual report.
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Shareholders’ Rights

The Company has only one class of shares. All shares have the same voting rights and are entitled to the dividend
declared. The rights of the shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) are set out in, amongst other things,
the Bye-laws and the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (“Companies Act”).

Convening special general meeting on requisition

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company or at the registered office of the Company, to require a
special general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition
pursuant to Section 74 of the Companies Act. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the provision of Section 74(3)
of the Companies Act.

The written requisition requiring a special general meeting to be called can be sent to the principal place of
business of the Company as set out in the “Corporate Information” section of this annual report for the attention
of the company secretary.

Proposing resolution at general meeting

Shareholders may by written requisition request for including a resolution relating to matters in a general meeting
by following the requirements and procedures as set out in Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act.

Subject to the provisions of the above-mentioned sections of the Companies Act, on the written requisition of
members representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights or 100 members, at the expense of
the requisitionists unless the Company otherwise resolves, the Company shall give shareholders of the Company
notice of any resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting and a relevant
statement.
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Procedures for nomination of Directors for election

Under bye-law 102(A) of the Bye-laws, shareholders are entitled to elect any person to be a Director at the annual
general meeting or at any special general meeting by following the requirement set out in bye-law 103 of the Bye-
laws. Details of the procedures for nomination of Directors for election are available on the Company’s website at

www.bossini.com.

Notice of general meetings and “bundling” resolutions

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.3, the Company will arrange for the notice to shareholders to be sent for annual
general meetings at least 20 clear business days before the meeting and to be sent at least 10 clear business days
for all other general meetings. Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual Directors. Where bundling the resolutions cannot be avoided, the Company
shall explain the reasons and material implications in the notice of the meeting.

Voting by poll

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a poll on resolutions at general meetings are
contained in the Bye-laws. In accordance with Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, all resolutions put to vote at
general meetings of the Company are taken by way of poll except where the chairman of the meeting, in good
faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by
a show of hands. Details of the poll voting procedures will be set out in the circular sent to shareholders prior to
each meeting. The chairman of a meeting shall ensure that an explanation is provided of the detailed procedures
for conducting a poll and answer any questions from shareholders on voting by poll. After each general meeting,
the poll results will be published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company in the manner
prescribed under Rule 13.39(5) of the Listing Rules.
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Shareholders” Communication Policy

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information on the Group to shareholders through the
publication of notices, announcements, circulars, interim and annual reports. Moreover, additional information is
also available to shareholders through the Investor Relations section on the Company’s website. The Board also
welcomes the views of shareholders on matters affecting the Group and encourages them to attend shareholders’
meetings to communicate any concerns they might have with the Board or management directly.

Corporate Transparency and Investor Relations

The Group disseminates information on business development on a timely basis through various channels to
maintain transparency of its operation. The Company meets individually with analysts and institutional investors
from time to time to facilitate their analysis on the Group. The Company also holds group meetings with them in
which the Company’s management directly distributes relevant information and addresses to their queries.

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents for the year ended 30 June 2012.
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Executive Directors

Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess MH, aged 58, was appointed as the Executive Chairman of the Company in October
2010, is also the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Ms. Tsin joined the Group in November 2009 as the Non-executive Chairman of the Company. She
received the “Medal of Honour” (MH) from the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administration Region
in 2008. Ms. Tsin is currently the permanent advisor of the board of directors of Yan Chai Hospital. She was the
chairman of the board of directors of Yan Chai Hospital from 2007 to 2008, the vice-chairman of the board of
directors of Yan Chai Hospital from 2002 to 2007 and the director of Yan Chai Hospital from 1997 to 2002.
She has over 12 years’ experience in serving as the school supervisor and director of certain schools of Yan Chai
Hospital. She is responsible for the overall direction of the Group.

Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund, aged 48, was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the Group in October
2010, is also a member of the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Mak graduated from the University
of Windsor, Canada with two Bachelor’s Degrees in Computer Science and Commerce. He is also a member of
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Mak joined the Group in February 2007 as the Director of Finance. He has over 22
years’ experience in auditing, financial management and corporate finance in audit firm, consumer electronics
and communications products, real estate service, food retail chain and internet service industries. Mr. Mak is
responsible for the overall management and strategic planning of the Group.

Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul, aged 41, was appointed as the Executive Director and the Director of Finance of
the Group in August 2010. Mr. Chan graduated from the University of Toronto, Canada and the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology with a Master’s Degree in Business Administration. He is also a member
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has over 18 years’ experience in auditing and financial management with audit firm and
various listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is responsible for the overall financial management, legal,
internal audit and investor relation functions of the Group.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond B8S, Jp, aged 41, was appointed in September 2004, is also a member of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Lee is the chief
executive officer as well as founder of Lee & Man Paper Manufacturing Limited, a company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 2314). He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in
Applied Science from The University of British Columbia in Canada. Mr. Lee is currently involved in a number of
public engagements. Mr. Lee has been awarded honorary citizenship of Dongguan and reputational citizenship of
Changshu. Mr. Lee was awarded the “Young Industrialist Award of Hong Kong 2002" and the “2003 Hong Kong
Ten Outstanding Young Persons Selection Awardees”. In addition, Mr. Lee received the “Bronze Bauhinia Star”
(BBS) from the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in 2005 and was also appointed non-
official Justice of the Peace (JP) in 2007. Mr. Lee was also appointed the CPPCC National Committee in 2008.

Ms. LEUNG Mei Han, aged 54, was appointed in September 2004, is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee of the Company. Ms. Leung holds
a Bachelor’s Degree in Commerce from The University of Queensland, Australia and is a fellow member of CPA
Australia. She has over 27 years’ experience in accounting, securities, corporate finance and related areas. Ms.
Leung is also an independent non-executive director of Four Seas Mercantile Holdings Limited (stock code: 374),
Yue Da Mining Holdings Limited (stock code: 629) and Xiangyu Dredging Holdings Limited (stock code: 871), all
listed on the Stock Exchange, since 1998, 2007 and 2011 respectively and a director of AMCO United Holding
Limited (stock code: 630) listed on the Stock Exchange since 2012.

Prof. SIN Yat Ming, aged 57, was appointed in October 2005, is also a member of the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Prof. Sin holds a Ph.D. from The
University of British Columbia, Canada. He is a director of Master of Science Programme in Marketing and a
professor of Department of Marketing of The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
TEMHRE

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the five years ended 30 June 2008, 30 June 2009, 30 June 2010, 30 June 2011 and 30 June 2012, as extracted from the published

audited financial statements, is set out below.

UTARAEBRHZE_ZZNFEAA=TH ZZETAFAA=TH ZE-ZFRA=ZTHE  Z2——FRAZ+TERZZE—ZFRAZTRLTEFEZ X8 - EERBERE - e

HETBEEXMB®RE

Results ¥4&5

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

30 June 2012 30 June 2011 30 June 2010 30 June 2009 30 June 2008

—E-—=fF T T TF —ZThEF —TENE

ANA=1H ~A=+H ~A=+AH ~A=+A ~A=1+H

HEFRE IFEE IEFE IEFE IFERE

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT BT BETT BT

REVENUE W 2,743,707 2,641,967 2,306,260 2,254,126 2,316,869
PROFIT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

EEERGR 54,242 167,567 114,421 59,812 89,728

Finance costs @h& XA (8,798) (7,548) (4,939) (2,707) (2,204)

PROFIT BEFORE TAX BR%i A F 45,444 160,019 109,482 57,105 87,524

Income tax expense FT{S8i 5 %2 (29,445) (29,906) (19,031) (6,853) (23,949)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE

TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
KA TR AL ERBER 15,999 130,113 90,451 50,252 63,575

Assets and Liabilities EE N A&

30 June 2012

30 June 2011

30 June 2010

30 June 2009

30 June 2008

—2--F —F——F —T-TF —TTNF —TT)N\F

AA=+H NA=TH ANA=T+H NA=t+H ANA=T+H

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T BT BT T BT

TOTAL ASSETS BE#&E 1,089,629 1,335,894 1,169,217 1,011,511 911,545
TOTAL LIABILITIES & &4 E (363,915) (538,460) (437,444) (338,751) (256,503)
725,714 797,434 731,773 672,760 655,042
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESRHRESE

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements of the Company and the Group for the
year ended 30 June 2012.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature
of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

Results and dividends
The Group's profit for the year and the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at 30 June 2012 are
set out in the financial statements on pages 70 to 167.

An interim dividend of HK1.10 cents per ordinary share was paid by the Company on 2 April 2012. The
directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend in respect of the year.

Summary of financial information

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the five years ended 30 June 2008,
2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012, as extracted from the published audited financial statements, is set out on page
48. This summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

Property, plant and equipment and investment properties

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and investment properties of the Group during
the year are set out in notes 14 and 15 to the financial statements, respectively. Further details of the Group’s
investment properties are set out on page 168.

Share capital and share options
There was no movement in the Company’s authorised share capital during the year.

Details of movements in the Company’s issued share capital and share options during the year are set out in
notes 30 and 31, respectively, to the financial statements.

Pre-emptive rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

50 ANNUAL REPORT 2011/12 43

EERBENUREARARAEEHE T ——FRA=ZTHIFEZE
ERMEEREECYBEERE

FEER
ARBZEIBEBRIREZER - HXE2WB AR Z TEXBFBHIIN
MBREMF77 - AKBZEREBUEERNAFRIBEAEE -

EBERRE
AEERAFEZ I RAAIBALRER-E——FA=+HZH
BRRE IR ETOE167H 2 HFERRNA -

ARBER T —_FWHA - HIRETHREGREBRI0ENL - &
ETEIRAFEIRERABRE -

HREERNBE

AEBHE-_TT)\F —TTNF T FTF . _FT——FR-_F
—ZHEXNA=ZTRALAREFEZEQAHES BEENABREIHINE
488 - W EERE B TR EER 2 MIERE - WREDTHEKRLEZ
kR 2 — 515 °

M BERKEUARRENR
AEENE  BERRBARKRENENRAFERE 2 EHFED BN
BRI 1415 - AEBEREM R ZFRBHNE168H -

B A5 fE IR R
ARAPEEBRARAFE R EEMEES o

AAREEITRAKIBRERRNEE 2 FEFE D RIE B 758 5% M
FF30831 °

BB
ARBZRAERARRARBEGEREBREGT  REARE
PVARMBREBRIZEFRELPIZENK -

el



Reserves
Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the year are set out in note 32 to
the financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

Distributable reserves

At 30 June 2012, the Company’s reserves available for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted to HK$157,809,000. Under the laws of Bermuda, the
Company'’s share premium account, in the amount of HK$17,937,000, may be distributed in the form of fully
paid bonus shares.

Major customers and suppliers
In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted for less than 30% of the total
sales for the year.

Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the total purchases for the
year.

Save as disclosed in note 36(a)(i) to the financial statements, none of the directors of the Company or any of
their associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group'’s five largest suppliers.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:

Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess

Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond

Ms. LEUNG Mei Han

Prof. SIN Yat Ming

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund and Prof. SIN Yat Ming will retire
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond, Ms.
LEUNG Mei Han and Prof. SIN Yat Ming, and considers them to be independent.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESRHRESE

Directors’ biographies
Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on pages 46 to 47 of the annual report.

Directors’ service contracts

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

Directors’ remuneration
The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group has been set up by the board of directors or executive
directors on the basis of their merit, qualification and competence.

The remuneration payable to the directors of the Company will be decided by the board of directors on the
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.

Directors’ interests in shares and underlying shares

At 30 June 2012, the interests of the directors in the share capital and underlying shares of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were
as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

Number of shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

BFRYE SORESENEHE

EEAE
ARRBEFBHEFEHIINFREI6EATA »

EERBEK
REERREFAS LERSEE,ES  SERARQRFILARE A
R—FEREILEMBASINEE CEEMERIN ZBRBELH -

EEME
AEMES Y MeBEHESRANTESREI 2 AR - BERE
TITSE -

ARRIEZCHERRESTRRTMEZESZEBUEFT2HY  BE
RRBARAEE 2 ZEMETE

EERKRORBBKR G 2 #Em

R-ZZF-—_FX A=1H EFRARAIHEEREE (AR5 IR
0] ([5825 R AR ARG ]) EXVEBFIRE T 28 %) 2 BRA KR D+
BEARRERES GGG EI2GFE 2 BLMACSH s
HRE LT RRBEFETESRKZNFRESTR (MRETA D) BMEAR
RAIREBBMARZAARNE ([BAPT]) 2 EHEMT

AR A EBRAFE -

Directly Percentage of
beneficially the Company’s
Note owned Total issued shares
HiE AR R B BT
Name of director hE=d BEREE &5t BHOBESH EEnE
Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess (a) 1,093,091,098 1,093,091,098 67.47 EE/rt
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Directors’ interests in shares and underlying shares (continued)
Long positions in share options of the Company:

Number of options directly
beneficially owned

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESRHREE

EERNROREEKRGD 2B (&)
RERFIERIB IR -

Name of directors EEEZEECEREZEB BEEHF

Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess 4,000,000 BEeBRZT

Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund 21,650,000 BEERE

Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul 4,510,000 =k e
30,160,000

Note: B RE -

(@) Such interests arose by attribution through her spouse, Mr. LAW Ka Sing, whose interests have been mentioned in the
section headed “Substantial shareholders’ interests in shares and underlying shares”.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2012, none of the directors had registered an interest or short position
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ rights to acquire shares or debentures

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ interests in shares and underlying shares” above and in the section
“Share option scheme” below, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any director or their respective spouses or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Further details of the
Scheme are disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements.

() FRARENERERBERELLRSA  HESEKIEERRNED KE
R 2 #es | —Hf o

B EXPIREEN  RIB—F R A=1TH EFHEREAARNHE
EREEER 2D - HAROHESRT  BERERESLRE G
FEIETURBZEBEIORR  IRBRETAAME AR ERER
P 2 s SRR e

E=RERONES ZEF

B EXTEERBRN RARRO Z#E] — R T X BkEE] —&
FIREESN  ARRRAFEAEAREABER TENEEREEEA
ZEERANFFRBRBARBZBOIES MBS ME 2 EHN - M
WENBETREMNZSEN  ARRREEAMBERARNFARESE
IR BEEEANMEMEMEABRESIL SRR -

fB IR E ST &

ARARBEELESS ([ZEHE])  REAEEXBKINMELERIZA
B2 EERHNBERE - ZA3 2 FBERPBHRRMEIRE -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SEREEE
Share option scheme (continued) BIRERE (E)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year: TRBBEFARRDA]HEARITEREREZ &
Number of share options
BREZER
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of Exercise
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June grant of Exercise period price of
of participants 2011 the year the year the year 2012 share options of share options  share options
(note a) (note b)
R=Z——F R-ZB-—=F R R
SEATHERER +tA—-H FRTH FRTE FRRHK AA=+H = BRETES BRETEE
GEL) (Bt 5Eb)
HK$
per share
BRRES T
Directors £
Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess 800,000 - - - 800,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2011 to 0.780
f:3-3 kg —ZE-ZF+HA+-H 11 October 2020
“E——tHtTZHE
~F-TFTATE
1,200,000 = = = 1,200,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2013 to 0.780
—Z-ZF+HA+=H 11 October 2020
—E—=ftHAtZHZE
~EF-TFTATE
2,000,000 = = = 2,000,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2015 to 0.780
—Z-ZFt+Ht+=H 11 October 2020
—E-RETATZHE
—Z_THE+THA+—H
4,000,000 = = = 4,000,000
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SERBEE
Share option scheme (continued) BRESTE (&)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year: TREBFARRRIMRITEBREZ S : (B)
(continued)
Number of share options
BREZE
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of Exercise
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June grant of Exercise period price of
of participants 2011 the year the year the year 2012 share options of share options  share options
(note a) (note b)
RZB——F R=-Z—=f% R R E
SHEATHERER +tA—H FRATL FRTE FREK AA=+H =] BRETES BRETEE
(P4%ta) (Bt 5Eb)
HK$
per share
BRRBEE T
Directors £
Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund 1,200,000 1,200,000 4 July 2007 4 July 2008 to 3 July 2017 0.530
EEELE —EELFLAMA —ZENFLANAE
—T—+Ft+tH=H
1,800,000 1,800,000 4 July 2007 4 July 2010 to 3 July 2017 0.530
—TELFLAMA —ET-TFELAMAZE
—T—+FtH=H
3,000,000 3,000,000 4 July 2007 4 July 2012 to 3 July 2017 0.530
—TELFLAMA —ET-—F+HAMAZE
—T—+FtH=H
1,080,000 1,080,000 5 July 2010 (note d) 0.503
—ZT-TFtHARA (Pt 5Ed)
2,800,000 2,800,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2011 to 0.780
—T-TE+HTZH 11 October 2020
“E——%+A+=HZE
~F-TFLATE
4,200,000 4,200,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2013 to 0.780
—“Z-TF+H+CZH 11 October 2020
“E-=F+HA+=HZE
—ZZF+HAT—H
7,000,000 7,000,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2015 to 0.780
—F-FTFt+A+T=A 11 October 2020
—Z-RFT+HATZHAE
—Z-_THFE+HA+—H
570,000 570,000 12 October 2010 (note e) 0.780
—E-ZF+A+=H (Fig5Ee)
21,650,000 21,650,000
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EERBEE
Share option scheme (continued) BRESTE (&)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year: TREBFARRARIMRITEBREZEE) : (B)

(continued)
Number of share options

BREA
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of Exercise
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June grant of Exercise period price of
of participants 2011 the year the year the year 2012 share options of share options  share options
(note a) (note b)
NZB——f R=B——% B BRE
ZHEATHEHER +tHA—A FREH FRITE FRZHK AA=tAH A BRETES BRETEE
GEL) k)
HK$
per share
FRAEE T
Directors E=

Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul 240,000 - - - 240,000 19 November 2007 19 November 2008 to 0.370

BREFRESE —EZLF+-ATNA 18 November 2017

—EENF+—ATNHE

—E—tF+—A+N\H
360,000 = = = 360,000 19 November 2007 19 November 2009 to 0.370

—ZZ+F+—A+AhE 18 November 2017

—EZAE+-ATAAE

—T—+tFt+—ATN\H
600,000 - - - 600,000 19 November 2007 19 November 2010 to 0.370

—ZEZ+E+—A+TANA 18 November 2017

—E-EZEE+-A+HAE

—E—tF+—A+NH
360,000 = = = 360,000 5 July 2010 (note d) 0.503

—Z-TFtHARA (Bt Ed)
560,000 - - - 560,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2011 to 0.780

—Z-TE+H+ZH 11 October 2020

“T——%t+HT+ZHZE

—ZT-_THE+HA+—H
840,000 = = = 840,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2013 to 0.780

—ZT-TE+H+TZH 11 October 2020

“T—=f1+A+=ZHZE

“2-2F+A+—H
1,400,000 = = = 1,400,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2015 to 0.780

—Z-TE+HR+ZH 11 October 2020

“T-hFT+HA+ZHZE

“2-2E+A+-H
150,000 - - - 150,000 12 October 2010 (note e) 0.780

—E-Z5+HA+=H (Fig5Te)

4,510,000 - - - 4,510,000
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EERWMEE
Share option scheme (continued) BIRERE (E)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year: TREBFARRRIMRITEBREZ S : (B)
(continued)
Number of share options
BREZE
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of Exercise
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June grant of Exercise period price of
of participants 2011 the year the year the year 2012 share options of share options  share options
(note a) (note b)
RZB——F R=-Z—=f% R R E
SHEATHERER +tA—H FRATL FRTE FREK AA=+H =] BRETES BRETEE
(P4%ta) k)
HK$
per share
BRRBE® T
Other employees Eft{E &
In ajlggregate 1,500,000 = (100,000) = 1,400,000 4 July 2007 4 July 2008 to 3 July 2017 0.530
& ZEELFLAMA —ZENFLANBE
—T—tFtH=H
3,000,000 = (900,000) = 2,100,000 4 July 2007 4 July 2010 to 3 July 2017 0.530
—EELFLAMA —T-TFLANAZE
“T—+tFtH=H
9,500,000 = = = 9,500,000 4 July 2007 4 July 2012 to 3 July 2017 0.530
—EELFLAMA ZET——F+tHAMAZE
—T—tFtH=H
240,000 = = = 240,000 19 November 2007 19 November 2008 to 0.370
—EELF+—HATNA 18 November 2017
—ZEENF+-ATABE
—E—+FT+—A+/\H
660,000 - - - 660,000 19 November 2007 19 November 2009 to 0.370
—ZZ+F+—A+NHE 18 November 2017
—ZThE+—-ATHIEBEE
—E—tF+—A+N\H
1,800,000 - - - 1,800,000 19 November 2007 19 November 2010 to 0.370
—ZEELF+—-A+TANA 18 November 2017
—Z-THE+—-A+NBE
—E—tF+—A+N\H
3,000,000 = = = 3,000,000 26 March 2008 26 March 2013 to 0.357
—ETN\F=A=+H 25 March 2018
—E—=f=HA=+A~BZE
—E-\¥=A=+HH
1,740,000 - - - 1,740,000 15 July 2008 15 July 2011 to 14 July 2018 0.333
“EZN\FtA+AH “E——%tAThHEZE

—“ZE-)\FtA+t@EA
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EERBEE
Share option scheme (continued) BB 8 ()
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year: TREBFARRARIMRITEBREZEE) : (B)

(continued)

Number of share options

BRERE
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of Exercise
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June grant of Exercise period price of
of participants 2011 the year the year the year 2012 share options of share options  share options
(note a) (note b)
R=ZB——% R=B-—=% R RE
SRATHERER tA-8 Frz FRTRE FREREK AA=+H B BRETEE BRETEE
(Fft 5Fa) (Fft 5Fb)
HK$
per share
FRAE% T
Other employees Ett{E &
In aggregate 900,000 - - - 900,000 15 July 2008 15 July 2013 to 14 July 2018 0.333
aft —ZET\FEtHATHHAE —ZT—=5+A+HHEZE
—E-N\FtA+mA
600,000 = = = 600,000 31 October 2008 31 October 2009 to 0.160
—FENF+HA=T—H 30 October 2018
i o S e e =
—E-N\Ft+HA=TH
900,000 = = = 900,000 31 October 2008 31 October 2011 to 0.160
—FENF+A=1t—H 30 October 2018
—Z——fTA=T—HZE
—“Z-)\ftH=1H
1,500,000 = = = 1,500,000 31 October 2008 31 October 2013 to 0.160
—EFN\FTHA=T—H 30 October 2018
“E-=f+tHA=1t—HE
—E-\EtH=+H
480,000 - - - 480,000 4 February 2010 4 February 2011 to 0.456
—T-TF-HAMA 3 February 2020
—T——f-A@HZE
“E-FF-A=H
720,000 - - - 720,000 4 February 2010 4 February 2012 to 0.456
—E-FTF-AmMA 3 February 2020
—T--F-AWAZE
—TTFE_HA=H
1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000 4 February 2010 4 February 2013 to 0.456
—Z-TF-_AmMA 3 February 2020
=
—E-ZEF_H=H
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EERBEE
Share option scheme (continued) BIRERE (E)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year: TREBFARRRIMRITEBREZ S : (B)
(continued)
Number of share options
BREZE
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of Exercise
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June grant of Exercise period price of
of participants 2011 the year the year the year 2012 share options of share options  share options
(note a) (note b)
R-Z——f R-B-=fF RiBRE
SHEATHERER +tA—H FRATL FRTE FREK AA=+H =] BRETES BRETEE
(Pt zEa) k)
HK$
per share
BRRBE® T
Other employees Eft{E &
In aggregate 14,060,000 - - (600,000) 13,460,000 5 July 2010 (note d) 0.503
& —E-ZFtAAA (Pg3Ed)
992,000 - - - 992,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2011 to 0.780
—E-ZF+HATH 11 October 2020
—T—%+HA+=ZHZE
e LA
648,000 - - - 648,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2012 to 0.780
—E-ZF+HA+=H 11 October 2020
“E-—F+A+ZHE
—ZE-TFE+HAT—H
1,920,000 - - - 1,920,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2013 to 0.780
i W = 11 October 2020
—F-=#+A+=R%
—Z-_TFE+HA+—H
1,400,000 - - - 1,400,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2015 to 0.780
—E-ZEF+HATH 11 October 2020
“E-AF+A+=HE
—EZTF+HA+—H
254,000 - - - 254,000 12 October 2010 (note e) 0.780
—E-ZF+A+=H (PFig5Te)
216,000 - - - 216,000 3 January 2011 3 January 2012 to 0.922
—Z——%—H=H 2 January 2021
—ET-——F—-HA=HZE
—ZEZ-—%—H_-H
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EERBEE
Share option scheme (continued) BRESTE (&)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year: TEREBEBFARAG RARITEEREZE - (B)

(continued)

Number of share options

BREHE
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of Exercise
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June grant of Exercise period price of
of participants 2011 the year the year the year 2012 share options of share options  share options
(note a) (note b)
R=B——% R-B-—=% RERE
SEATHESER tA-H FrE FRITHE FRRY ~A=+H A BRETEE BRETEE
(Pft 5Fa) (B D)
HK$
per share
BREET
Other employees Eft1{E &
In aggregate 324,000 = = = 324,000 3 January 2011 3 January 2013 to 0.922
o 4f —E——F%—H=H 2January2021
—ET—=F—H=HZE
—E--&—f=H
540,000 = = = 540,000 3 January 2011 3 January 2014 to 0.922
—T——F—H=H 2 January 2021
—E-ME—-HA=RAZ
—E-—#%—HAZH
225,000 - - - 225,000 3 January 2011 (note f) 0.922
—Z——%—-H=H (Pft 5Ef)
80,000 = = = 80,000 3 May 2011 (note g) 0.894
—E——%AA=H GED)
= 216,000 = = 216,000 4 July 2011 4 July 2012 to 3 July 2021 0.880
—T——%+HWA T+ HAWAZE
—_E_—F+H=H
= 324,000 = = 324,000 4 July 2011 4 July 2013 to 3 July 2021 0.880
—T——%tHAMmA —E-=F+HAWAZE
—E_—%tH=H
= 540,000 = = 540,000 4 July 2011 4 July 2014 to 3 July 2021 0.880
—E——FtHAmA —T-NFLANAZE
—E-_—%tH=H
= 296,000 = = 296,000 4 July 2011 (note h) 0.880
—T——%tHAMmA (P Eh)
- 240,000 - - 240,000 1 November 2011 1 November 2012 to 0.720
—2——%+—H—H 31 October 2021

“E——f+—A—HZ
—E-—%+A=+—H
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ESRHLE
Share option scheme (continued) BRESTE (&)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year: TREBFARRRIMRITEBREZ S : (B)
(continued)
Number of share options
BREHE
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of Exercise
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June grant of Exercise period price of
of participants 2011 the year the year the year 2012 share options of share options  share options
(note a) (note b)
R-Z——F R-B-—Z=F RHBRE
SEATHZHER tHA—H FRARH FRITE FRRK AA=+H =R BRETESE BRETEE
(BT (B D)
HK$
per share
FRBBT
Other employees E1ti{E &
In iggregate - 360,000 - - 360,000 1 November 2011 1 November 2013 to 0.720
G —F——%t—AH—H 31 October 2021
—T—=f5T—H—HZE
—E-—Ft+HA=1—H
- 600,000 - - 600,000 1 November 2011 1 November 2014 to 0.720
—T—%+—A—AH 31 October 2021
“E-ME+—A—HF
T —FTH=+—H
- 86,000 - - 86,000 1 November 2011 (note i) 0.720
—E——%+—-HA—H (P =Ei)
- 162,000 - - 162,000 3 January 2012 (note j) 0.590
—E-——F—H=H (B =Ey)
- 216,000 - - 216,000 1 March 2012 1 March 2013 to 0.592
—E——F=H—H 28 February 2022
—E-=F=A—HZE
—Z-__%_HZ-+N\H
- 324,000 - - 324,000 1 March 2012 1 March 2014 to 0.592
—E--F=H—H 28 February 2022
—Z-NFE=A—RHZE
St Sl e JAN =
- 540,000 - - 540,000 1 March 2012 1 March 2015 to 0.592
—E-—F=H—H 28 February 2022
—E-RAF=A—HZE
—ECCF-HAZ+N\H
- 28,000 - - 28,000 1 March 2012 (note k) 0.592
—T—=-%=8—H (Pf5Ek)
- 122,000 - - 122,000 2 May 2012 (note I) 0.550
—E—-#AAZ=H (P =ED)
48,399,000 4,054,000 (1,000,000) (600,000) 50,853,000
78,559,000 4,054,000 (1,000,000) (600,000) 81,013,000
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESRHRESE

Share option scheme (continued)
Notes to the table of share options outstanding during the year:

(a

(b)

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the commencement of the exercise
period.

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or
other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 3 July 2012, 1,358,000 share options were granted to
other employees with an exercise price of HK$0.490 per share in respect of their services to the Group in
the forthcoming years. Vesting of these share options is subject to certain conditions, details of which are
disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements.

On 1 July 2012, 1,500,000 share options granted to an employee on 4 July 2007 were forfeited with an
exercise price of HK$0.530 per share and an exercise period from 4 July 2012 to 3 July 2017. On 1 July
2012, 7 July 2012, 23 July 2012, 31 July 2012 and 1 September 2012, 540,000, 90,000, 210,000, 90,000
and 90,000 share options granted to certain employees on 5 July 2010 were forfeited on the respective
dates. The exercise price of the share options forfeited is HK$0.503 per share with exercise period from the
next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of the Group for
the years ending 30 June 2013 to 4 July 2020.

These share options are exercisable from the next business day of publication of announcement of the
audited consolidated results of the Group for the year ending 30 June 2013 to 4 July 2020. Vesting of
the share options is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees and the
achievement of 3-year corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ending 30 June 2013, including
but not limited to the achievement of strategic goals, financial and operational performance targets. The
share options or any portion thereof shall lapse if the relevant 3-year corporate goals cannot be achieved.

These share options are exercisable from the next business day of publication of announcement of the
audited consolidated results of the Group for the year ending 30 June 2013 to 11 October 2020. Vesting
of the share options is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees and the
achievement of 3-year corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ending 30 June 2013, including
but not limited to the achievement of strategic goals, financial and operational performance targets. The
share options or any portion thereof shall lapse if the relevant 3-year corporate goals cannot be achieved.

62 ANNUAL REPORT 2011/12 4%

BREE (&)
FAREARITERIAET KM T

(a)

(b)

(d)

BhEARNSEROEMEFERTEYIRMAAL

B2 17 AR RIS B ATALR - AR RIRA 2 K A SE
S BT TIABE -

RBERRE  R_T——FtA=0 AEEEMEEREERN
RIRFE BALBEIREARIS M 1,358,000 B AE - 1TEEB AT
f&7E50.4907T - ZEHIRERN SR B X BB TIRGFTAER - F BN
TR MI 315 EE o

R-TE——F+tA—HB R_ZETELtFLtANAET—REEZ
1,500,00017 B8 B # B 48 W - 1T B A SR #0.5307T + 171 85
BT —_F+ANHE-_Z—+tHF+tA=H -R-_ZT——FtA
—RB 2=t AtH - ZFT—=—FtA=-+t=H ZF—=
F+rtA=+—HBR=ZZE—=-—FhLhA—H R-_ZE—ZFFtAHH
% T T 418 8 2540,0005 ~ 90,0001 + 210,00017 + 90,0007 &
90,0007 IR £ RIR £l B 8RR UK - B REBRRAE 2 1T(E (B
AERAEES03T  THEHATIEAEREE—_T—=F A=+
AIFEZRBRRAEBEAGRBEENEERARKR 22228
FLAWA -

ZERREEETIEAEEEE S =F A NA=THLEFEZE
BERGAEBAMBREENEEBIRBTR E- T - TF AN
H-BhENEBIENARANRRARBE_T—=F A=T
BIE=5H8H AEEZEI =F5E0 % (BEE RN ZEHRR
B MBREEXRFER SHMHAR WAEEREHU=F&
B BE - HRERE AR g RA -

ZEBERESBTEAEEBREZE T —=ZF R "A=THILEFREZ
RECGERENMREZNEXZARGBTR E-_F_FF 1A
T— B -BRENBBXENARANKALBE_T—=FH
=ETHIE=F8M AEEEN=FKE R (BFEETRNER
REER WBEREERRBFR) FHRERR - WAREEXNER=
FHEEBR  AEBREIXETAHRNEE RN -



Share option scheme (continued)
Notes to the table of share options outstanding during the year: (continued)

(f)

These share options are exercisable from the next business day of publication of the announcement of the
audited consolidated results of the Group for the year ending 30 June 2013 to 2 January 2021. Vesting
of the share options is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees and the
achievement of 3-year corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ending 30 June 2013, including
but not limited to the achievement of strategic goals, financial and operational performance targets. The
share options or any portion thereof shall lapse if the relevant 3-year corporate goals cannot be achieved.

These share options are exercisable from the next business day of publication of the announcement of
the audited consolidated results of the Group for the year ending 30 June 2013 to 2 May 2021. Vesting
of the share options is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees and the
achievement of 3-year corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ending 30 June 2013, including
but not limited to the achievement of strategic goals, financial and operational performance targets. The
share options or any portion thereof shall lapse if the relevant 3-year corporate goals cannot be achieved.

These share options are exercisable from the next business day of publication of the announcement of
the audited consolidated results of the Group for the year ending 30 June 2013 to 3 July 2021. Vesting
of the share options is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees and the
achievement of 3-year corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ending 30 June 2013, including
but not limited to the achievement of strategic goals, financial and operational performance targets. The
share options or any portion thereof shall lapse if the relevant 3-year corporate goals cannot be achieved.

These share options are exercisable from the next business day of publication of the announcement of the
audited consolidated results of the Group for the year ending 30 June 2013 to 31 October 2021. Vesting
of the share options is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees and the
achievement of 3-year corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ending 30 June 2013, including
but not limited to the achievement of strategic goals, financial and operational performance targets. The
share options or any portion thereof shall lapse if the relevant 3-year corporate goals cannot be achieved.

These share options are exercisable from the next business day of publication of the announcement of the
audited consolidated results of the Group for the year ending 30 June 2013 to 2 January 2022. Vesting
of the share options is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees and the
achievement of 3-year corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ending 30 June 2013, including
but not limited to the achievement of strategic goals, financial and operational performance targets. The
share options or any portion thereof shall lapse if the relevant 3-year corporate goals cannot be achieved.
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BREE (&)
FARRITERBBRES KM - (B)

)

ZERREERTIEAEEEE S =G A=THLEFEZL
ERGEEELAMEZENEXRARGTE E-F_—F A=
H-BRENGBIENARANRREEBE T —=F A=
BIt=8H AKEZI =F58 8% (ER/RETRNZZRE
BR MBREERRBR FHRERR - HREEXNEB=F&
B1R - HEBREREEMROHERE -

ZERBREERTIEAEEBE T =F A AA=THLEFEZE
BREEEBEAMREENEXARNGTE E-F - —FAA-
H-BRENBBXENARANRARBE_ZT—=F A=1
BIE=F8F A&EZ2I =F588F(BRETRNZZRE
B MHBREERRBR FHRRR - HAREEKEB=F5%
iR - HEERE S H MO B & R -

ZEERESHTEAEBEE T =F A A=ZFTALFEZE
ERGAEBEAMEEENEXRARKBTE E-F - —F A=
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AR MBREERRBR FHRERR - HAREEXNEB=F&
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ZEBRESBATNEAEEHEE S —=F A=1TRHILFEZ
REZGERENMREZNEXARBTE - E-F_—F1A
=t—H -BRENBBIXENARANRRELBE T —=FRX
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HRBEER MBREERRBR) FHRAEBRR - HAREEZKEH
=EKERE  HRBRESIETASBOHERR -

ZEBREFATEARAEEBEE T —=FNA=ZTHILFEZL
BREEEBEAMRERNEXAMGTE 2T - —F A=
H- - BRENGBXENARANKRERBE_ZT—=FA="
BIE=F8F A&EZI =F58 8% (E/RETRNEZZRE
AR UHBREERRBFR FHRERR -HREEKEB=F5%
BiE - HEBERE R AR B SR -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESRHRESE

Share option scheme (continued) BRESTE (&)
Notes to the table of share options outstanding during the year: (continued) FRmARITEBREN KM T : (&)

(k) These share options are exercisable from the next business day of publication of the announcement of the k) ZEERESHAUIEAEEBZE-_Z—=FA=THLFEZ

audited consolidated results of the Group for the year ending 30 June 2013 to 28 February 2022. Vesting REZREFEANMERENEEARGBITE E-2F-_—_F_ A
of the share options is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees and the Z+N\B - BRENGEBZENARANKREERBE-ZZE—=F<
achievement of 3-year corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ending 30 June 2013, including A=+THIE=F8H A&EEI=F5E0ZF (BEETRNE
but not limited to the achievement of strategic goals, financial and operational performance targets. The BHERAE MBREERRARFR) SHRERR - MARELEKEH
share options or any portion thereof shall lapse if the relevant 3-year corporate goals cannot be achieved. —FEEEE HEBREIHEEMODEZRY -

(I) These share options are exercisable from the next business day of publication of the announcement of () ZEEREEHTIERAEESE S —=FA=THILFEZILK
the audited consolidated results of the Group for the year ending 30 June 2013 to 1 May 2022. Vesting BERMEERNMERENEXEARRKITE 22 -__FHHA—
of the share options is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees and the H-lBRENEBXENARANKRERBEEZE S —=F5-A=1
achievement of 3-year corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ending 30 June 2013, including HIE=%8M NEEZEIN =458 F (BFEETRNETRR
but not limited to the achievement of strategic goals, financial and operational performance targets. The BiZ BIBEREERIBAE) SKGER - MAREEKREB=F%
share options or any portion thereof shall lapse if the relevant 3-year corporate goals cannot be achieved. BiZ - BRI BB MG RK -

El

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before the exercise dates of the (m) AR RGN REBAETTER B IR 2 N FHRTHERSRERE

share option was HK$0.750 per share. The closing prices of the Company’s shares immediately before the 0.7507C e AR AR N EEBRELE_T——F+-AWB - =F

dates on which the options were granted on 4 July 2011, 1 November 2011, 3 January 2012, 1 March ——%+—f—H8 —ZT——F—HA=H —E——F=ZA—HK

2012 and 2 May 2012 were HK$0.870 per share, HK$0.750 per share, HK$0.580 per share, HK$0.580 per —E-—FhHA-HERE BRI 2 KHED R AFKRAEE0.8707T -

share and HK$0.540 per share, respectively. R H0.7507T BB H0.5807T « FRLA0.5807T K& F IS
0.5407T -

The directors have estimated the values of the share options granted during the year, calculated using the EFRACEARREERXGAFANEREBRENELERAZE

trinomial option pricing model as at the date of grant of the options: & :
Number of Theoretical
options granted value of
during the year share options
FRERHUHBRERE BREERER
HK$'000
Grantees BT T ARA
Other employees 4,054,000 1,343 =
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Share option scheme (continued)

The trinomial model is a generally accepted method of valuing options, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. The significant assumptions used in the calculation of the
values of the share options were the risk-free interest rate, expected life of options, expected volatility and
expected dividend. The expected life of the options is based on the historical data over the past 10 years and is
not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption
that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.
The measurement dates used in the valuation calculations were the dates on which the options were granted.

The values of share options calculated using the trinomial model are subject to certain fundamental limitations,
due to the subjective nature of and uncertainty relating to a number of assumptions of the expected future
performance input to the model, and certain inherent limitations of the model itself.

The value of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any change to the
variables used may materially affect the estimation of the fair value of an option.

Directors’ interests in contracts
No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Substantial shareholders’ interests in shares and underlying shares

At 30 June 2012, the following interests of 5% or more of the issued share capital and share options of the
Company were recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO:

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESRHREE

BREE (&)

Z“HABEATNEBRRM BREGEL  EEBRETEETRHE
Btz SRR RGNS - RAEBREEESMRAZEABRRAE
R AIE - BT FH  RAKE) RIS - AR Z TR F
DRBEBETF2ELBBETE  ROERRAEHR 2 BRETR
B - HHEKB HIRIBE LR EHBARRBY SRR TERMN
N MEMERZFERRRBRERTIAH -

R=BEABEAAE L BRREEZEBREDNRIFINETEER &4
BREASTARRERMENZARR - IR TBHBRTEE
AE - URFAEEANAERS -

BREE TEAEEKE“FI&WE”“ZTI—J R MES BT
MEFHKSHBRELATFHEERERTE

ZJSEJ*WEﬁé%EZJK Tiﬁ&ﬂﬁﬁ% RAFER MBAEBEHRBFEK
FEZENANTERKREREEEAER -

FERRRROREEKSG 2 ER

R-ZZB——FRNA=1TH ARAERIHFRAEERIIEIB6HEFE L
BEZRMET  THALREARBEBETRARBRERHEF %K
A et

Long positions: 4R
Percentage of
Number of ordinary Number of share the Company’s
Name Capacity and nature of interest shares held options held issued shares
HARATERT
®E SO REEME FrisZEREA FrsiE R EE A RiBADH
Mr. LAW Ka Sing Directly beneficially owned
BRERE ERERHEA 1,093,091,098 - 67.47
Family interest
ENI $a - 4,000,000 0.25
Total
B 1,093,091,098 4,000,000 67.72
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Substantial shareholders’ interests in shares and underlying shares (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2012, no person, other than the directors of the Company, whose
interests are also set out in the section “Directors’ interests in shares and underlying shares” above, had
registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required to
be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Sufficiency of public float
Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at
least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

Purchase, redemption or sale of listed securities of the Company
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year.

Connected transactions and continuing connected transactions

During the year, the Group had the following continuing connected transactions, certain details of which are
disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). Further details of the transactions are included in note 36 to the
financial statements.

Purchase of garments

On 11 May 2009, the Group renewed a purchase agreement with a subsidiary of Laws International Group
Limited (“Laws International”), Sky Dragon International Industrial Limited (the “Purchase Agreement”) which
was effective from 1 July 2009 to 30 June 2012 for purchases of garments from Laws International and its
subsidiaries. Certain directors of Laws International and its subsidiaries, who have beneficial equity interests
therein, are relatives of Mr. LAW Ka Sing, a substantial shareholder of the Company, and Ms. TSIN Man Kuen
Bess, a director of the Company. According to the Purchase Agreement, the annual value of the purchase of
garments from Laws International and its subsidiaries by the Group for the year ended 30 June 2012 will not
exceed HK$497,000,000. On 3 May 2012, the Group renewed the Purchase Agreement with a subsidiary of
Laws International, Sky Dragon International Industrial Limited, for purchases of garments for the period from 1
July 2012 to 30 June 2015. According to the renewed Purchase Agreement, the annual values of the purchases
of garments from Laws International and its subsidiaries by the Group for the years ending 30 June 2013,
30 June 2014 and 30 June 2015 will not exceed HK$292,000,000, HK$385,000,000 and HK$504,000,000,
respectively. The prices of the products are to be determined by reference to the prevailing market prices.
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Connected transactions and continuing connected transactions (continued)

Purchase of garments (continued)

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed the continuing connected
transactions in relation to the purchases of garments set out above and have confirmed that these continuing
connected transactions have been entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms available from
independent suppliers; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant Purchase Agreement and on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole. The independent
non-executive directors of the Company have further confirmed that the values of purchases of garments
from Laws International and its subsidiaries by the Group for the year ended 30 June 2012 did not exceed
HK$497,000,000.

Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditors, were engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with reference to Practice
Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above
by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Auditors
Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
TSIN Man Kuen Bess
Chairman

Hong Kong
19 September 2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
R G

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
= ik

To the shareholders of Bossini International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bossini International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 70 to 167, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 30 June 2012, and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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Auditors’ responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 30 June 2012, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

22/F, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central
Hong Kong

19 September 2012
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

maRERER

Year ended 30 June 2012 HE=ZT—=—FA=+HILFE

Notes 2012 2011
in HK$ thousand Bt s —E-C-F —E——F BT T
REVENUE 5 2,743,707 2,641,967 I 3
Cost of sales (1,449,703) (1,287,740) SHEE R AR
GROSS PROFIT 1,294,004 1,354,227 EF
Other income 5 18,839 21,213 =N )
Selling and distribution costs (944,829) (891,841) HE R D KA
Administrative expenses (261,722) (284,199) TE X
Other operating expenses (52,050) (31,833) Hp @MY
PROFIT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 54,242 167,567 EEEK R
Finance costs 6 (8,798) (7,548) BEKA
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7 45,444 160,019 BRBE AR R
Income tax expense 10 (29,445) (29,906) FrisBiF %
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE RARFEEAENL
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 11 15,999 130,113 F RIBEA
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) Hit2E W (EE)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign BESIEBCEREZE
operations (4,115) 309
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR KA EEANELER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 11,884 130,422 2HEK A
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY ARTEEEEZEEA
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 13 EhEEREF
Basic HK 0.99 centi& 1l HK 8.07 cents/& Ll LN
Diluted HK 0.98 centi&{ll HK 7.97 centsi&ll g

Details of the dividend paid for the year are disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
REMBRRE

30June 2012 —ZE—=FA=1+H

Notes 2012 2011
in HK$ thousand B zE —E--F —T——F BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment 14 124,066 147,634 Y% - BB &G
Investment properties 15 30,918 32,686 WEMEE
Trademark 16 1,164 1,164 iz
Deferred tax assets 29 3,476 1,101 EEFRIAE B
Deposits paid 20 75,909 74,759 EfiEe
Total non-current assets 235,533 257,344 EMBEERE
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories 18 364,997 412,166 FE
Debtors 19 67,119 71,248 JE W AR 3R
Bills receivable 31,852 7,033 FEUE &
Deposits paid 20 39,494 36,510 [EENE &
Prepayments and other receivables 21 59,551 75,992 TR A R IE B E A R U BR 18
Due from a related company 24 777 = FEUL BEiE A B FIR
Structured deposit 25 15,779 15,858 ER TR
Derivative financial instruments 26 996 - TESRTA
Pledged bank deposits 22 779 1,701 BEEBRITHER
Cash and cash equivalents 22 272,752 458,042 ReRBEEHMEER
Total current assets 854,096 1,078,550 M EEEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
REMEMRR K

30June 2012 =E—=F<XA=1+H

Notes 2012 2011
in HK$ thousand BisE —E-—Cf —E——fF BET T
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Trade creditors, other payables and accruals 23 232,680 292,369 FEATRRER « Ho i FE < 3RIB R FE 5T AR IR
Bills payable 35,038 46,107 FE %
Tax payable 54,251 53,505 JE S5 35 5K
Due to related companies 24 11,203 12,734 JERTEE R RIFKIA
Derivative financial instruments 26 895 1,241 ?ﬁi@%ﬂiﬂ
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 27 24,432 127,484 FFEIRITER
Provision 28 1,790 2,747 Bt
Total current liabilities 360,289 536,187 nEaEEeE
NET CURRENT ASSETS 493,807 542,363 REEEFE
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 729,340 799,707 RABEEREEHAE
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities 29 2,277 1,893 LR IEA G
Other payable 23 1,349 380 H A FE S FRIE
Total non-current liabilities 3,626 2,273 EREBEERE
Net assets 725,714 797,434 BEFHAE
EQUITY =
Issued capital 30 162,018 161,918 BEEBITRA
Reserves 32 563,696 635,516 1
Total equity 725,714 797,434 WmeE
Details of the dividend paid for the year are disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements. FARFEENREZFENTBHIRRMT12HREE -
MAK Tak Cheong Edmund ZE& CHAN Cheuk Him Paul R &5
Director % Director &
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERDBERE

Year ended 30 June 2012 HE=ZZT—=—F X NA=+tHIFE

Share Share Capital Contributed Asset Exchange Reserve
Issued premium option reserve surplus revaluation fluctuation funds Retained Total
Notes capital account reserve (note a) (note b) reserve reserve (note ¢) profits equity

in HK$ thousand BT & & BiRE EXEE BARR BE SME R B REES
BETT i =E (&S HER it (Fft 5Fa) (PBt5EDb) EffHE it (Bft 7Ec) REEF EEREE
At 1 July 2011
RZZE——F+tA—H 161,918 17,174 12,026 (4,987) 90,258 9,395 21,386 1,810 488,454 797,434
Profit for the year
RE g Al - - - - - - - - 15,999 15,999
Other comprehensive loss for the year:
AEZHMEEES :

Exchange differences on translation

of foreign operations

MEBIEBZELER - - - - - - (4,115) - - (4,115)
Total comprehensive income for the year
FRAEHERERE - - - - - - (4,115) - 15,999 11,884
Final 2011 dividend declared
BER-_ZT——FRPKS - - - = = = = - (49,092)  (49,092)
Special 2011 dividend declared
BER-Z——FHHKRE - - - - - - - - (19442) (19,442)
Interim 2012 dividend
“T-_FHHRE 12 - - - - - - - - (17,822) (17,822)
Exercise of share options
1T B AR 30 100 763 (333) - - - - - - 530
Equity-settled share option arrangements
REEEEREZH 31 - - 2,222 - - - - - - 2,222
At 30 June 2012
RZE——FA=1H 162,018 17,937* 13,915* (4,987)* 90,258* 9,395* 17,271* 1,810* 418,097* 725,714
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GABNEHER

Year ended 30 June 2012 HE—ZT——FA=1+HILFE

Share Share Capital  Contributed Asset Exchange Reserve
Issued premium option reserve surplus  revaluation fluctuation funds Retained Total
Notes capital account reserve (note a) (note b) reserve reserve (note ¢) profits equity
in HK$ thousand BR1T P An it BARRE NG BE SN B REES
BT W EN i (BRR & GEL)) (Bt Eb) Sffhf#E & GE RE & H EnEE
At 1 July 2010
RZZE—ZF+A—H 160,192 6,674 11,557 (4,987) 90,258 9,395 21,077 1,810 435,797 731,773
Profit for the year
REZ g A - - - - - - - - 130,113 130,113
Other comprehensive income for the year:
REFEMEE R
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations
BEBMNEBCERER - - - - - - 309 - - 309
Total comprehensive income for the year
FRAREKHEHE - - - - - - 309 - 130,113 130,422
Final 2010 dividend declared
EER-_ZE—ZFRAKE - - - - - - - - (37,041) (37,041
Special 2010 dividend declared
BEER-_Z-ZFHHKE - - - - - - - - (4,832) (4,832)
Interim 2011 dividend
—Z——FhHRE 12 - - - - - - - - (35583) (35,583)
Exercise of share options
TTIE B AR 30 1,726 10,500 (4,354) - - - - - - 7,872
Equity-settled share option arrangements
BaeaEBRELY 31 - - 4,823 - - - - - - 4,823
At 30 June 2011
RZZE——%,HA=7H 161,918 17,174* 12,026* (4,987)*  90,258* 9,395*  21,386* 1,810%  488,454** 797,434
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERRBBWMR

Year ended 30 June 2012 HE=ZZT—=—F X NA=+tHIFE

*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$563,696,000 (2011: HK$635,516,000) in the * hERERARSIINGEMBARRRA 246 FEHE 563,696,000 (=
consolidated statement of financial position. T ——4 : B¥635,516,0007T) °

#  The retained profits comprised the proposed final dividend of HK$49,061,000 and proposed special dividend of tRBREAMBEEHE —FRA=ZTHLEFEZHRIERBAREABE
HK$19,430,000 for the year ended 30 June 2011. 49,061 ,OOOn&ﬁ/)ﬁ%EIJHx,%\;%%9,430,00073 o

Notes: 3T

(@) The capital reserve of the Group represents goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries in prior years. @ AEBZEARERBTFERENBARMEEZEE -

(b) The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference between the nominal value of the share capital issued b) AEBZHABRBRABRARERTRAZEABRARTIROR—NAN=ZF L
by the Company and the aggregate of the share capital and the share premium account of the subsidiaries acquired MAMREEREAMKRBZHB AR ZBRA KRB EERMAE =5 -
pursuant to the Group reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares in 1993.

(©) In accordance with the financial regulations applicable in mainland China, a portion of the profit of a subsidiary in (0 MEBEERRPEAREZMBEHRL  REAE—MBARzBHENEEEE
mainland China has been transferred to the reserve funds which are restricted as to use. ERGIPAGZ EEES -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SERERER
Year ended 30 June 2012 HE-ZT——F X XA=+HIFE

Notes 2012 2011
in HK$ thousand Bz —Z2--F —T——F BT T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES EEXBCRERE
Profit before tax 45,444 160,019 W 56 AT 4 7
Adjustments for: RE
Finance costs 6 8,798 7,548 A& A AR
Interest income 5 (3,928) (3,202) MEUA
Provision for inventories 7 8,038 11,096 GFERE
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of property, & MEE - BE R
plant and equipment 7 346 1,436 BRZERE
Impairment of items of property, plant and equipment 7 7,997 - ME - BERFZHIER ZRE
Fair value losses/(gains), net on derivative financial AR I A A FEFER, (W)
instruments — transactions not qualifying as hedges 7 (5,365) 4,202 —TREEHFENRS
Fair value loss/(gain) on a structured deposit 7 79 (433) HEBEFERZ AFEER (W)
Depreciation 7 82,814 75,734 e
Equity-settled share option expense 7 2,222 4,823 BmEEBERERS
Write-back of provision 7 = (1,313) B R E
Impairment of debtors 7 228 295 JE U5 BR FORUE
146,673 260,205
Decrease/(increase) in inventories 38,365 (128,666) FERL /(1)
Decrease/(increase) in debtors 3,731 (13,273) FEURBR FOR 4> (18 n)
Decrease/(increase) in bills receivable (24,819) 4,250 FEUR Z= 40 A (18 0)
Increase in deposits paid (4,273) (13,006) [RENE sl
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments and other receivables 16,298 (24,729) B4 FRIE K H At FE U BR IEIR A (32 00)
Increase/(decrease) in trade creditors, other payables and FEATBRFR - H At & 5RI8 R FEETHR IR
accruals (58,278) 26,308 #m, Cfd)
Increase/(decrease) in bills payable (11,069) 11,073 R REEM, CRD)
Movements in balances with related companies (2,308) (8,724) HRE A R RIA 2 B8
Increase/(decrease) in derivative financial instruments 4,023 (2,522) PTESBMI A M, Cad)
Decrease in provision (879) - R
Cash generated from operations 107,464 110,916 EBEBGMGEZES
Interest paid (8,798) (7,548) EATAE
Hong Kong profits tax paid (27,398) (16,633) EREBNEH
Overseas taxes paid (3,473) (2,097) EAEINEIIR
Net cash flows from operating activities 67,795 84,638 LEEBIMERENEFHE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n/T\ IE%/)ILE%%

Year ended 30 June 2012 HE=ZZT—=—F X NA=+tHIFE

Notes 2012 2011
in HK$ thousand P& —E-ZF —T——F BT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZHZRERE
Interest received 3,928 3,202 EYFE
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment 14 (72,050) (89,740) BE JF%% WE RFEEE
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, plant LEWE - Jﬁ’i%& SEIE R
and equipment 5,031 263 P15 3Kk T
Decrease in non-pledged bank deposits with original {5 Hﬂ? FIHA AR R = (A A
maturity of more than three months when acquired - 96,000 ZEERRITFEIORSD
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities (63,091) 9,725 BEES S/ () REREFHA
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES METHCRERE
Proceeds from issue of shares upon exercise of AT EREmEITRMN 2
share options 30 530 7,872 FTig ,iﬁ’\
Dividends paid (86,356) (77,456) ERMBRE
New bank loans 200,258 380,038 I IRITE R
Repayment of bank loans (305,195) (316,096) BEERITER
Net cash flows used in financing activities (190,763) (5,642) BMEEB 2 MER S REFHE
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH RERBASEEBEBAZF
EQUIVALENTS (186,059) 88,721 #hn GRd)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 459,743 366,591 E%ﬂzfﬁ/ﬁ&fﬁ %(EEE
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net (153) 4,431 HNEE H R E ) 2 ?7.5. R
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 273,531 459,743 FRZATRASEHEER
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH ReRBELEEER
EQUIVALENTS EER D AT
Cash and bank balances 22 188,781 275,809 e MIRITREER
Non-pledged bank deposits with original maturity BERREINHALR=FEAZ
of less than three months when acquired 22 83,971 182,233 EIEIRTTE JX
Pledged bank deposits with original maturity BRERREINHALR=FEAZ
of less than three months when acquired 22 779 1,701 BEFIEITER
273,531 459,743

=
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FBAA R T

30June 2012 =ZE—=FxA=1+H

Notes 2012 2011
in HK$ thousand BisE —E-—Cf —E——fF BET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries 17 143,162 143,162 KRB AR ZIEE
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Due from subsidiaries 17 210,010 276,979 [ CENEI B
Prepayments 21 199 182 TR IR
Cash and cash equivalents 22 495 400 ReRREFHEIER
Total current assets 210,704 277,561 MBEERE
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables and accruals 23 1,791 2,726 Hth JE < 3RIE R BT AR IR
Tax payable 396 408 FE BT
Total current liabilities 2,187 3,134 mEARERE
NET CURRENT ASSETS 208,517 274,427 REEEFE
Net assets 351,679 417,589 BEFE
EQUITY E=
Issued capital 30 162,018 161,918 BEBITRA
Reserves 32 189,661 255,671 i
Total equity 351,679 417,589 EmAE

Details of the dividend paid for the year are disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements.

MAK Tak Cheong Edmund &g
Director %
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2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Bossini International Holdings Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered
office of the Company is located at Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda. Its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in investment holding and the retailing, distribution
and wholesaling of garments.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for derivative financial instruments and a structured deposit, which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$") and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2012. The financial statements of
the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All intra-group
balances, transactions, unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends
are eliminated on consolidation in full.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is attributed to the non-controlling interest even if that
results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

2.1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Lupy RS e

30June 2012 —ZE—=FA=1+H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IR RAR M L

30June 2012 =E—=F<XA=1+H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities
of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair
value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or

retained profits, as appropriate.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s

financial statements.

HKAS 24 (Revised)

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments
HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 Amendments

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010

Related Party Disclosures

Amendments to HKFRS 1 — First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards — Severe Hyperinflation and
Removal of Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters

Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Financial Instruments: Disclosures —
Transfers of Financial Assets

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 — Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs issued in May 2010

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of HKAS 24 (Revised), and amendments to
HKFRS 3, HKAS 1 and HKAS 27 included in Improvements to HKFRSs 2010, the adoption of the new and
revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect on these financial statements.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
The principal effects of adopting these HKFRSs are as follows:

(a)

(b)

HKAS 24 (Revised) — Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 24 (Revised) clarifies and simplifies the definitions of related parties. The new definitions
emphasise a symmetrical view of related party relationships and clarify the circumstances in which
persons and key management personnel affect related party relationships of an entity. The revised
standard also introduces an exemption from the general related party disclosure requirements for
transactions with a government and entities that are controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by the same government as the reporting entity. The accounting policy for related parties
has been revised to reflect the changes in the definitions of related parties under the revised standard.
The adoption of the revised standard did not have any impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group. Details of the related party transactions, including the related comparative information,
are included in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 issued in May 2010 sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs.
There are separate transitional provisions for each standard. While the adoption of some of the
amendments may result in changes in accounting policies, none of these amendments has had a
significant financial impact on the financial position or performance of the Group. Details of the key
amendments most applicable to the Group are as follows:

e HKFRS 3 — Business Combinations: The amendment clarifies that the amendments to HKFRS 7,
HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 that eliminate the exemption for contingent consideration do not apply to
contingent consideration that arose from business combinations whose acquisition dates precede
the application of HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008).

In addition, the amendment limits the scope of measurement choices for non-controlling
interests. Only the components of non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are measured at either fair value or at the present ownership instruments’
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless another measurement
basis is required by another HKFRS.

The amendment also added explicit guidance to clarify the accounting treatment for non-replaced
and voluntarily replaced share-based payment awards.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
(b) (continued)

e HKAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements: The amendment clarifies that an analysis of each
component of other comprehensive income can be presented either in the statement of changes
in equity or in the notes to the financial statements. The Group elects to present the analysis of
each component of other comprehensive income in the statement of changes in equity.

e HKAS 27 — Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements: The amendment clarifies that the
consequential amendments from HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008) made to HKAS 21, HKAS 28 and
HKAS 31 shall be applied prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009 or
earlier if HKAS 27 is applied earlier.

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements —
Presentation of [tems of Other Comprehensive Income 2

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Income Taxes — Deferred Tax:
Recovery of Underlying Assets '

HKAS 1 Amendments

HKAS 12 Amendments
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HKAS 19 (2011)
HKAS 27 (2011)
HKAS 28 (2011)
HKAS 32 Amendments

HKFRS 1 Amendments
HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 Amendments

HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12
HKFRS 13
HK(IFRIC)-Int 20

Annual Improvements Project
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Employee Benefits 3

Separate Financial Statements 3

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 3

Amendments to HKAS 32 — Financial Instruments: Presentation —
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities *

Amendments to HKFRS 1 — First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards — Government Loans 3

Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Financial Instruments: Disclosures —
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 3

Financial Instruments >

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 —
Transition Guidance 3

Consolidated Financial Statements 3

Joint Arrangements 3

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 3

Fair Value Measurement 3

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine 3

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle 3
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015

ooa woN

Further information about those changes that are expected to significantly affect the Group is as follows:

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase 1 of a comprehensive project to entirely replace
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This phase focuses on the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Instead of classifying financial assets into four categories, an entity
shall classify financial assets as subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair value, on the basis
of both the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. This aims to improve and simplify the approach for the classification
and measurement of financial assets compared with the requirements of HKAS 39.

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to HKFRS 9 to address financial liabilities (the “Additions”)
and incorporated in HKFRS 9 the current derecognition principles of financial instruments of HKAS 39.
Most of the Additions were carried forward unchanged from HKAS 39, while changes were made to the
measurement of financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss using the fair value option
("FVO"). For these FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair value of a liability that is attributable
to changes in credit risk must be presented in other comprehensive income (“OCI”). The remainder of the
change in fair value is presented in profit or loss, unless presentation of the fair value change in respect of
the liability’s credit risk in OCI would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. However,
loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts which have been designated under the FVO are
scoped out of the Additions.

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its entirety. Before this entire replacement, the guidance in
HKAS 39 on hedge accounting and impairment of financial assets continues to apply. The Group expects
to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 July 2015.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)
HKFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies to all entities including special purpose entities
or structured entities. It includes a new definition of control which is used to determine which entities
are consolidated. The changes introduced by HKFRS 10 require management of the Group to exercise
significant judgement to determine which entities are controlled, compared with the requirements in HKAS
27 and HK(SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. HKFRS 10 replaces the portion of HKAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that addresses the accounting for consolidated financial
statements. It also includes the issues raised in HK(SIC)-Int 12.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and HK(SIC)-Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-
Monetary Contributions by Venturers. It describes the accounting for joint arrangements with joint control.
It addresses only two forms of joint arrangements, i.e., joint operations and joint ventures, and removes
the option to account for joint ventures using proportionate consolidation.

HKFRS 12 includes the disclosure requirements for subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
structured entities that are previously included in HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements, HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and HKAS 28 Investments in Associates. It also introduces
a number of new disclosure requirements for these entities.

Consequential amendments were made to HKAS 27 and HKAS 28 as a result of the issuance of HKFRS
10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, and the
consequential amendments to HKAS 27 (2011) and HKAS 28 (2011) from 1 July 2013.

HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and a single source of fair value measurement and
disclosure requirements for use across HKFRSs. The standard does not change the circumstances in which
the Group is required to use fair value, but provides guidance on how fair value should be applied where
its use is already required or permitted under other HKFRSs. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 13
prospectively from 1 July 2013.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 change the grouping of items presented in OCI. Items that could be reclassified
(or recycled) to profit or loss at a future point in time (for example, upon derecognition or settlement)
would be presented separately from items which will never be reclassified. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 July 2012.

HKAS 12 Amendments clarify the determination of deferred tax for investment property measured at fair
value. The amendments introduce a rebuttable presumption that deferred tax on investment property
measured at fair value should be determined on the basis that its carrying amount will be recovered
through sale. Furthermore, the amendments incorporate the requirement previously in HK(SIC)-Int 21
Income Taxes — Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets that deferred tax on non-depreciable assets,
measured using the revaluation model in HKAS 16, should always be measured on a sale basis. The Group
expects to adopt HKAS 12 Amendments from 1 July 2012.

HKAS 19 (2011) includes a number of amendments that range from fundamental changes to simple
clarifications and re-wording. The revised standard introduces significant changes in the accounting for
defined benefit pension plans including removing the choice to defer the recognition of actuarial gains
and losses. Other changes include modifications to the timing of recognition for termination benefits, the
classification of short-term employee benefits and disclosures of defined benefit plans. The Group expects
to adopt HKAS 19 (2011) from 1 July 2013.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly,
so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s profit or loss to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 TEEHHEME ()

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred
is measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether it measures the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition costs are expensed
as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value as at the acquisition date through profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is deemed to be an asset
or liability will be recognised in accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is classified as equity, it will not be remeasured.
Subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. In instances where the contingent consideration
does not fall within the scope of HKAS 39, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate HKFRS.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred,
the amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum
of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired,
the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 30 June.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition
date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities
of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included
in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation.
Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment properties), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting
policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill and certain financial assets is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued
asset.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of a parent of the Group;
or
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)
(b) (continued)

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

The asset revaluation reserve arising from the revaluation of property, plant and equipment is realised
and transferred directly to retained profits on a systematic basis, as the corresponding asset is used by the
Group. The amount realised is the difference between the depreciation based on the revalued carrying
amount of the asset and the depreciation based on the asset’s original cost. If the total of this reserve is
insufficient to cover an impairment loss, on an individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged
to profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the deficit
previously charged. On disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve
realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as a movement in reserves.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 TESHBRBE (&)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost or valuation of each item of
property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:

Land and buildings 2% to 5% or over the lease terms, whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements 15% to 33% or over the lease terms, whichever is shorter

9% to 25%
15% to 33% or over the lease terms, whichever is shorter

Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment
Motor vehicles 15% to 33%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost or valuation
of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least
at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. The Group has adopted the cost model under HKAS
40 to account for its investment properties and such properties are stated at cost less depreciation and any
impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of investment properties to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The annual depreciation rate used for this purpose is 3%.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognised in profit or loss
in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition. The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating leases are
credited to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives received from the lessor are charged to profit
or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included in the cost of the land
and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.
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30June 2012 =E—=F<XA=1+H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 TESHBRBE (&)
Investments and other financial assets RENHMESREE
Initial recognition and measurement 2 ER R E

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, and loans and receivables, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value
plus transaction costs, except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

The Group's financial assets include cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits, debtors, bills and
other receivables, deposits paid, amount due from a related company, a structured deposit and derivative
financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39. Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. These net fair value changes do not include any interest earned on these financial assets,
which are recognised in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
date of initial recognition and only if the criteria under HKAS 39 are satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (held for trading) to assess
whether the intent to sell them in the near term is still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group
is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets and management’s intent to sell them in
the foreseeable future significantly changes, the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets. The
reclassification from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss to loans and receivables, available-
for-sale financial investments or held-to-maturity investments depends on the nature of the assets. This
evaluation does not affect any financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss using the fair
value option at designation as these instruments cannot be reclassified after initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost
is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in profit or loss in finance costs for loans and
in other operating expenses for receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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30June 2012 =E—=F<XA=1+H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 TESHBRBE (&)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses individually whether objective
evidence of impairment exists for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance account
and the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because
of an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later recovered, the
recovery is credited to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of loans and borrowings, directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade creditors, bills and other payables, certain accruals, amounts
due to related companies, derivative financial instruments and interest-bearing bank borrowings.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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30June 2012 =E—=F<XA=1+H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 TESHHBEME (H&)
Financial liabilities (continued) tREE (H)
Subsequent measurement Higi2

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in
the near term. This category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that
are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in profit or loss. The net fair value
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at
the date of initial recognition and only if the criteria of HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require a payment to be made
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as
a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the
higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period; and (i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or
expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active markets is determined by reference to
quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price for short
positions), without any deduction for transaction costs. For financial instruments where there is no active
market, the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation techniques. Such techniques include using
recent arm'’s length market transactions; reference to the current market value of another instrument
which is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis; and option pricing models.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 TESHHBEME (H&)

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, to hedge its foreign
currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried
as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except
for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in other comprehensive income.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-
out basis and includes all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided
that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision is the present value at
the end of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in profit or loss.

Income tax
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or
loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

O8 ANNUAL REPORT 2011/12 %%

)

TTEEMITA

AR R A E G =

AEEFERRPINESGOSETES BT AP EINER R M#m
ST APV TESNE B2 AT ERR  ERBEA
ﬁ%%°ﬁ$lﬂﬁ@$ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%§§ﬂ%'%%%ﬁuﬁﬁ
HIIER o

FRESREBHPZ AR O NEMEEKEERIN  TTETARF
BEEPELZEMRRNBRHERIABREA -

FE
FEDLEKRAERAZEFEMETRIEEIR - KAEZEAL
HRRTE - WRBREMABERAN LT EEERFHE R EREMN
PESE Z BAMBAA - A] B3R FHE TR IE i 5t 85 & B RS (E (A A 8H
EMRHRZEFTRAFHE -

\

B
FIBE B ELRA AT TS  AATEBEDAARAR
FEH AT EAERS © BB T OATER - WA AL S IR TR
tfiat -

WIrRFEEN  BBERAZCEARAARIFBRITREZAR
XN mERRZBEE - BRERAMERS I RIREZMAFA
BERZBERRK -

Frig®
PR H BRI REEN IR - BNERIMERBBR B ZAEHRN
BRIER  DRR At ERRIEENERER

BIEI R B I 2 BIEIT IH B E M A ERRIEN S HRATE 8 M
SEEBRMZRE (RFER)  UEBAAEEXREMEBRR ZRT
REREHRFEZBFURERBRMRARBEEASN 2SR

HHE -



2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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30June 2012 =E—=F<XA=1+H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 TESHHBEME (H&)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by applying the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset;

(c) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease terms; and

(d) royalty income, on a time proportion basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreements.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate allocation of retained profits within the
equity section of the statement of financial position, until they have been approved by the shareholders in
a general meeting. When these dividends have been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the Company’s memorandum,
articles of association and bye-laws grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment transactions, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair values are determined using
appropriate option pricing models, further details of which are given in note 31 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group'’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if
the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction,
or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and
any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the control of either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a
new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 TESHBRBE (&)
Employee benefits (continued) EERA (&)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)
The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of
earnings per share.

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their employment contracts on a calendar
year basis. Under certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the end of the reporting
period is permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the respective employees in the following year. An
accrual is made at the end of the reporting period for the expected future cost of such paid leave earned
during the year by the employees and carried forward.

Pension schemes

The Group operates two pension schemes in Hong Kong, namely the Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
and a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme as defined in the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance (the ""ORSO Scheme”), for all of its employees in Hong Kong.

Under the MPF Scheme, contributions of 5% of the employees’ relevant income with a maximum monthly
contribution of HK$1,250 per employee are made by each of the employer and the employees. The
employer contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

Under the ORSO Scheme, contributions of 5% of the employees’ basic salaries are made by the employer
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the ORSO Scheme.
The rates of contributions made by the employees are either 0% or 5% of the salary of each employee
at the discretion of the employee. When an employee leaves the ORSO Scheme prior to his/her interest in
the Group’s employer contributions vesting fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the Group may be
reduced by the relevant amount of forfeited contributions.

The assets of the MPF and ORSO Schemes are held separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Pension schemes (continued)

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

The Company’s subsidiaries in Singapore participate in a Central Provident Fund Scheme, which is a
contribution plan established by the Central Provident Fund Board in Singapore.

The Group operates two pension schemes in Taiwan under the Labour Standards Law (the "’Old Scheme”)
and under the Labour Pension Act which became effective on 1 July 2005 (the ““New Scheme”). Under the
Old Scheme, the Taiwan Branch of one of the Company’s subsidiaries makes regular contributions to the
Old Scheme to meet its employees’ retirement and termination benefits. Currently, the contributions have
been approved to be made at 2% of the employees’ total salaries. The fund is administered by a committee
and is deposited in the committee’s name with a government approved financial institution, Central Trust
of China, which acts as the trustee. Under the New Scheme, the Taiwan Branch and a Taiwan subsidiary
contribute each month 6% of the salaries of the employees who choose to participate in the New Scheme,
and deposit these amounts into individual pension accounts at the Bureau of Labour Insurance.

The Company’s subsidiary in Malaysia participates in a state pension scheme, the Employees Provident
Fund, and contributions are based on the employees’ gross salaries.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interests and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 TESHBRBE (&)

Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to
use.

Loyalty programme
The Group operates a loyalty programme which allows customers to accumulate points when they
purchase products from the Group.

The consideration received is allocated between the products sold and the points issued, with the
consideration allocated to the points being equal to their fair value. Fair value is determined by applying
statistical techniques.

The fair value of the points issued is deferred and recognised as revenue when the points are redeemed.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. All differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are taken to profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
The gain or loss arising on retranslation of a non-monetary item is treated in line with the recognition of
the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are currencies other than Hong Kong dollar.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company at exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period and
their statements of comprehensive income are translated into Hong Kong dollar at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in
profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollar at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollar at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event previously causing the impairment no longer
exists, the Group has to exercise judgement in the area of asset impairment, particularly in assessing: (1)
whether an event has occurred that may affect the asset value or such event affecting the asset value has
not been in existence; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the net present value
of future cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset or derecognition;
and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management to determine the level of impairment, including the discount rates or the growth
rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially affect the net present value used in the
impairment test.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Provision for inventories

Management reviews the aged analysis of inventories of the Group at the end of each reporting period,
and makes provision for obsolete and slow-moving inventory items identified that are no longer suitable for
sale. The assessment of the provision amount required involves management judgements and estimates.
Where the actual outcome or expectation in future is different from the original estimate, such differences
will have an impact on the carrying value of the inventories and provision charge/write-back of provision
in the period in which such estimate has been changed. In addition, physical counts on all inventories are
carried out on a periodical basis in order to determine whether provision needs to be made in respect of
any obsolete inventories identified. The Group carries out an inventory review at the end of each reporting
period and makes provision against obsolete and slow-moving items. Management reassesses the
estimation at the end of each reporting period. The Group is satisfied that sufficient provision for obsolete
and slow-moving inventories has been made in the consolidated financial statements. The carrying
amounts of the Group’s inventories as at 30 June 2012 was HK$364,997,000 (2011: HK$412,166,000).

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and investment properties

The Group determines whether an asset is impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the asset. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the asset and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. The carrying amounts of the Group'’s property, plant and equipment
and investment properties as at 30 June 2012 were HK$124,066,000 (2011: HK$147,634,000) and
HK$30,918,000 (2011: HK$32,686,000), respectively.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. The amounts of
unrecognised tax losses for subsidiaries situated in Hong Kong, mainland China, Taiwan, Singapore
and Malaysia at 30 June 2012 were HK$4,447,000 (2011: HK$653,000), HK$202,282,000 (2011:
HK$87,579,000), HK$106,652,000 (2011: HK$90,801,000), HK$40,056,000 (2011: HK$40,079,000)
and HK$6,628,000 (2011: HK$5,388,000), respectively. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it
is not considered probable that taxable profit will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
Further details are contained in note 29 to the financial statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of debtors

The Group conducts impairment reviews of financial assets whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable in accordance with the relevant accounting
standards. Determining whether an asset is impaired requires an estimation of the future cash flows and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, the Group would be required to revise the basis of making the allowance and its future
results would be affected. As at 30 June 2012, a provision for impairment loss of debtors of HK$228,000
(2011: Nil) was made and the carrying amount of debtors was HK$67,119,000 (2011: HK$71,248,000).

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units that offer products to customers
located in different geographical areas and has four reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) Hong Kong

(b) Mainland China

(c) Taiwan

(d) Singapore and Malaysia

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated
based on reportable segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before tax. The
adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit before tax except that
interest income and finance costs are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.
Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank borrowings, deferred tax liabilities and tax payable as
these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
third parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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30June 2012 =E—=F<XA=1+H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Group
Geographical segments

The following tables present revenue, profit/(loss) and certain asset, liability and expenditure information
for the Group’s geographical segments for the years ended 30 June 2012 and 2011.

4, BESHEH (FH)

%8
55

TREVWAEEEE T —FR - T——FXA=THILFER
Mg sBEzWE B (BR)RETEE BERFAXEH -

Hong Kong Mainland China Taiwan Singapore and Malaysia Consolidated
B B K B =) | g R SRAED ey

in HK$ thousand 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
BT —E-CF —E——F —E--F —2—F —E--F —T——F —E--F —2—F —E-CZF —T——F
Segment revenue:
DEWES

Sales to external customers

HE THNEEE 1,592,578 1,410,166 598,638 655,770 297,262 292,658 255,229 283,373 2,743,707 2,641,967

Other income

HAp A 12,013 9,432 1,928 7,564 572 751 398 264 14,911 18,011
Total
HET 1,604,591 1,419,598 600,566 663,334 297,834 293,409 255,627 283,637 2,758,618 2,659,978
Segment results
DHEEE 247,686 222,984 (156,962) (58,464) (28,358) (4,895) (12,052) 4,740 50,314 164,365
Interest income
B UA 3,928 3,202
Profit from operating activities
BB X R A 54,242 167,567
Finance costs
BE AR (8,798) (7,548)
Profit before tax
BR T ADRE ) 45,444 160,019
Income tax expense
FTiS R X (29,445) (29,906)
Profit for the year
F R Al 15,999 130,113

The revenue information above is based on the location in which the sales originated.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Y 3% R 2 B

30June 2012 —ZE—=FA=1+H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. RETBEHR (E)
Geographical segments (continued) 35 o5 38 (4)

Hong Kong Mainland China Taiwan Singapore and Malaysia Consolidated

o] o B A BE =) Fh03 R 5B R A o SE

in HK$ thousand 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
BETT —E--F —T——F —E--F —T——F —E-—F —T——F —E-—F —T——% —E-—F —T——F
Segment assets
DHEEE 558,909 710,476 330,557 388,255 98,932 118,302 97,755 117,760 1,086,153 1,334,793

Unallocated assets

AN EE 3,476 1,101

Total assets
BEE 1,089,629 1,335,894

Segment liabilities
DEAEE 173,460 219,493 75,710 90,175 24,017 30,878 9,768 15,032 282,955 355,578

Unallocated liabilities

AN EE 80,960 182,882
Total liabilities
waE 363,915 538,460
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30June 2012 =E—=F<XA=1+H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, REDSFER (HF)
Geographical segments (continued) 35 5 8 ()
Hong Kong Mainland China Taiwan Singapore and Malaysia Consolidated
i B KB =) | N3 R 55 A EE mE

in HK$ thousand 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
BETT —B-C—fF —E——f —B-Cf —F——F —EB-Cf —F——F o A -5 o A —T——F
Other segment information:
HttpBER

Capital expenditure*

BARRX* 26,951 38,784 27,692 23,040 11,167 18,297 6,240 9,619 72,050 89,740

Depreciation

e 36,438 31,301 26,779 24,237 13,255 11,204 6,342 8,992 82,814 75,734

Impairment of items of property,

plant and equipment
ME - BERREBEE ZRE 78 - 7,027 - - - 892 - 7,997 -
Loss/(gain) on disposal/write-off

of items of property,

plant and equipment
HE MsEyE -

= RBEER 2

B8/ (W) (140) 143 1,634 388 782 210 (1,930) 695 346 1,436
Provision/(write-back of

provision) for inventories

FERE/ (BEED) 1,515 1,997 8,215 7,568 840 1,694 (2,532) (163) 8,038 11,096
Impairment of debtors
JE W BR FURL B 1 203 227 92 - - - - 228 295
Non-current assets**
FmEEE* 111,606 118,796 19,976 24,339 15,979 24,978 8,587 13,371 156,148 181,484
*  Capital expenditure consists of additions of property, plant and equipment. * BARIBRERABWE  BEMEE -
**  The non-current asset information above is based on the location of assets and excludes deferred tax assets and * P EBERBAEY AR BB EEMEHIE  TaERE

the non-current portion of deposits paid.

ERIAE E M ENIRE 2 IEBNE R -
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30June 2012 —ZE—=FA=1+H

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 5. lEkEMEA
Group £H
Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents the aggregate of the net invoiced value of goods Was (BN B 2 25 DHKRREREMTNEC EEHRH
sold, after allowances for returns and trade discounts. REFE -
An analysis of revenue and other income is as follows: Was REMBAZ DT
2012 2011
in HK$ thousand —ET-=F —E——%F BT T
Revenue: Wezs
Retailing and distribution of garments 2,743,707 2,641,967 RIKEE kD
Other income: R NE
Interest income 3,928 3,202 FEHBA
Claims received 1,060 6,765 B RERIE
Royalty income 4,873 3,736 BEREBRA
Gross rental income 4,502 3,408 HEWAEE
Others 4,476 4,102 Hb
18,839 21,213
2,762,546 2,663,180
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6. FINANCE COSTS ELE= 9228
Group £H
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BEKAIHTIT
2012 2011
in HK$ thousand —E——F —E——%F BT T
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts wholly repayable BARAFANBHEEZRTERRES
within five years 8,798 7,548 Z B
7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX R B A1 3 A
Group =m |
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): REBBRFBANEFE MR (GEA) TFEE -
2012 2011
in HK$ thousand —E——F —T——F BT T
Cost of sales: SHEM A -
Cost of inventories sold 1,441,665 1,276,644 EHTFE 2K
Provision for inventories 8,038 11,096 FERE
1,449,703 1,287,740
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration — note 8): BTIWA(BIEEEIE —KES)
Salaries and wages 399,941 408,634 HFERIEA
Equity-settled share option expense 2,222 4,823 S EBRER S
Pension scheme contributions 37,388 33,984 RIRB I
Less: Forfeited contributions - - R U R
Net pension scheme contributions (note a) 37,388 33,984 RIS FFBDF AR (M 3Ta)
439,551 447,441
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): (continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Lupy RS e

30June 2012 —ZE—=FA=1+H

7. BR®BAIER (&)

AEEZBRBADEMEMR (GEA) THIEE : (8)

2012 2011
in HK$ thousand —E-—F —E——%F BT T
Depreciation (notes 14 and 15) 82,814 75,734 e (FsE14%15)
Minimum lease payments under operating leases: MERETHEREENRK
Land and buildings 390,042 367,984 itﬂz&@?
Contingent rents of retail shops and department stores 54,471 48,764 EEHEBERARZHATES
Plant and machinery 1,002 795 mﬁ&@% a8
445,515 417,543
Auditors’ remuneration 3,419 3,103 ZEET N &
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of property, HEMEmE  BRER&EEE
plant and equipment 346 1,436 ZEE
Impairment of items of property, plant and equipment (note d) 7,997 - M - BEREFHEIER 2 RE (Fizkd)
Impairment of debtors (note 19) 228 295 FEW AR FORE (FF5E19)
Write-back of provision (note 28) = (1,313) B R E (Pfsk28)
Foreign exchange differences, net (2,247) (19,588) HNE H IR ZERE - JFE
Net rental income (note ) (4,233) (3,152) He WA FEE (M5
Rental income on investment properties with no direct WREFAEELERT 2REMERSIA ()
operating expenses (note c) (4,232) (3,146)
Fair value loss/(gain) on a structured deposit 79 (433) EBETR AFEEE (k)
Fair value losses/(gains), net on derivative financial instruments mii T A AFEZFEE (W)
— transactions not qualifying as hedges (note b) (5.365) 4,202 —THEEEAEPEFNRS (HiEb)

Notes:

(@) Asat 30 June 2012, forfeited contributions available to the Group to reduce its contributions to the ORSO Scheme

in future years amounted to HK$172,000 (2011: HK$172,000).

(b) The fair value losses/(gains), net on derivative financial instruments — transactions not qualifying as hedges were
included in “other operating expenses” on the face of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

(c) Rental income on investment properties was included in net rental income.

(d) Impairment of items of property, plant and equipment was included in “other operating expenses” on the face of

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

GEE

(a) —ZFXNA=1A - AEE A AERIERFBERKT RS
z/xuﬁzf%m%,%%m 0007T (=& ——4 : E%172,0007T) °

b) TTESRMTAZATEFER (s -THAEAEPEDINZS
CEEERA2HRERZ [EMEEMS]

(0 KEMEHSWACBREBESBAZFER -
(d) g%ﬁz}%& RBHEEZRECBRESA KGR [Hitb & EH
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
Group
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

8. EEXEM=

%
Rig ETRAIREB AR EHIZ 6 AT RE 2 AEEEFHS
M

2012 2011
in HK$ thousand —E-——F —T——5F BT
Executive directors: HITES -
Fees - 81 we
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 6,408 7,869 e R REDRGS
Performance related bonuses 14 3,047 EAZRIRAHE 2 FEAT
Equity-settled share option expense 1,457 1,884 BmEEBRERS
Pension scheme contributions 36 35 RIKEFT B K
7,915 12,916
Independent non-executive directors: B EITES -
Fees 647 618 we
8,562 13,534

The total remuneration included performance bonuses payable to the executive directors of HK$14,000
(2011: HK$3,047,000).

Share options were granted to the directors in respect of their services to the Group under the share option
scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out in note 31 to the financial statements. The
fair value of such share options, which has been recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in the financial statements for the current year
is included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IR

30June 2012 —ZE—=FA=1+H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EEM< ()
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BAFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the year were as follows: RERNEXZNTEIIFNTESZZ2HESNT ¢
2012 2011
in HK$ thousand —E-CF —ET——%F BT T
Ms. LEUNG Mei Han 249 238 REMI L+
Prof. SIN Yat Ming 199 190 A=EEE €
Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond 199 190 EXEEE
647 618
There were no other remuneration payable to the independent non-executive directors during the year FALRENBILIFATESZ At (—F——F &) -
(2011: Nil). None of the independent non-executive directors waived remuneration during the year FRARREF  BEBYFNTETHEMS
and the prior year.
(b) Executive directors (b) HITE=E
Equity-
Salaries, settled
allowances Performance share Pension
and benefits related option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses expense contributions  remuneration
FEN 2R HERAIEHE BEEH Bire
in HK$ thousand ne REMRE ZTEAL HWREEX BE -3 %] BT T
2012 —EB--F
Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess - 1,411 5 280 12 1,708 BEEELT
Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund - 3,421 4 1,017 12 4,454 EEELE
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul - 1,576 5 160 12 1,753 PR 2ok 5 4
- 6,408 14 1,457 36 7,915
2011 —E——F
Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess (note a) 81 993 703 459 9 2,245 BeRiat (HFa)
Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund - 2,712 1,739 1,970 12 6,433 EEERAE
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul (note b) = 1,138 605 375 10 2,128 PR = 3k 55 A (FftsEb)
Ms. CHAN So Kuen (note c) - 3,026 - (920) 4 2,10 PR =5 20+ (Mistc)
81 7,869 3,047 1,884 35 12,916
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8. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Executive directors (continued)
Notes:

(@ Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess was appointed as a non-executive director on 1 November 2009 and subsequently
re-designated as an executive director on 1 October 2010.

(b) Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul was appointed as an executive director on 30 August 2010.

(c) Ms. CHAN So Kuen resigned as an executive director on 1 October 2010. All unexercised share options held
by her were forfeited on 1 January 2011 in accordance with the terms of the share option scheme.

There was no arrangement under which an executive director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year.

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
Group
The five highest paid employees during the year included two (2011: three) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining three (2011: two)
non-director, highest paid employees for the year are as follows:

8. EEM< (&)
(b) BMITESE (&)
B sE -

(@ BERXIN-_TTNF+—A—BEZERNFNTES HRR
R-ZB-—ZF+A—-HBAEARTES -

() REFEEN-_Z-ZFNA=+HEZERNTES -

© BREBXIER-_Z-ZF+AHBERTESE - EMBHEZ
FBERTEBRECREBREF B ZIGEFIR T ——F—F—
BORY

FAY BN TEETHEIRERETAMS 228k -

9. EEBREFES
£8
ERNALSSFREEREME (CE——F —R)8F HMe
BERINEXHES - HB=F (- T——F : MB) RoFHksE
ERENENZBE BT :

2012 2011
in HK$ thousand —E-——F —E——F BT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 5,931 3,688 e R REYMRE
Performance related bonuses 4 1,139 HRIFIERE 2 IEAT
Equity-settled share option expense 224 314 e w45 H HE AR B 2
Pension scheme contributions 91 22 BRIRESFTEIHE R
6,250 5,163
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued) 9. EEESHER (&)
The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands MeENnFTIERsaaHFESEEHBNT :
is as follows:
Number of employees EE#H
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——%F
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1 - 75 #1,500,001 70 2 74 #2,000,0007C
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 1 1 75 #2,000,001 7T Z 4 #2,500,0007C
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 1 1 75 #2 500,001 7T 2 74 #3,000,0007C
3 2
10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FRSBiBA X
&8

Group

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2011: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated
at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

BRNEHERFARE BRI (A ERTUE AR E16.5% (=
T——F:16.5%) TR AR - EEMMBEMSRRTUEN 2 HIA -
TRBAREEBEEMEREK RERR ZBITHEGH

2012 2011
in HK$ thousand —E-—F —E——%F BT T
Current — Hong Kong BVER— &%
Charge for the year 33,171 29,919 FAXH
Underprovision/(overprovision) in prior years (197) 13 BEFERETR/ (BEEE)
Current — Elsewhere BIVHA — H b 3th (=
Charge for the year 3,880 4,049 FAZT
Overprovision in prior years (5,418) (4,507) BT ERERE
Deferred (note 29) (1,991) 432 IEFE (F7E29)
Total tax charge for the year 29,445 29,906 FARIEX HRFE
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the statutory rate for Hong Kong in
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective
tax rate, and a reconciliation of the applicable rate (i.e., the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rate, are

&%ﬁﬁ%ﬁé(ﬂi T&Ekﬁlﬂ’ﬂﬁ% RIFTHEN) 2R EMRTER
BEARBBA M HERT BREERHEAE 2 HEASTHE -
VA K 3 ﬁﬁ%ﬂf(Eﬂxﬁi%ﬁf)iﬁifVWRKZﬁﬁEﬁﬂT

as follows:
2012 2011

in HK$ thousand —EB--F % —2——F % BB
Profit before tax 45,444 160,019 BR Bt A A
Tax at the statutory tax rate 7,498 16.5 26,403 16.5 REEREFEZHE
Effect of different tax rates for companies REMRZREEEE LD

operating in other jurisdictions (12,001) (26.4) (4,344) 2.7 XTAREZ2
Adjustments in respect of current st AR HTIE

tax of previous periods (5,615) (12.8) (4,494) (2.8) fEHRE
Income not subject to tax (2,881) (6.3) (3,057) (1.9 BEEH 2 WA
Expenses not deductible for tax 8,002 17.6 1,251 0.8 AERIBIR 2 X
Unrecognised tax losses and temporary differences 34,439 75.8 15,066 93 ARAVBEERERIEES
Tax losses utilised from previous periods (379) (0.8) (381) 0.2) BENECHBRTIEER
Others 382 0.8 (538) (0.3) Hit
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate 29,445 64.8 29,906 18.7 BASEERHRFEZHBEX

11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2012 includes a
profit of HK$11,109,000 (2011: HK$104,231,000), which has been dealt with in the financial statements
of the Company.

118 ANNUAL REPORT 2011/12 4%

11.

AATEBEAEEFERZF
HE - Z——H#XA=1+THIEEZAR wﬁﬁ}\r&’m%mﬂu*@
FESE A #11,109,0007T (= ——4F : j5%#104,231,0007T) °
REFEARQNRABHRENA o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Y 3% R 2 B

30June 2012 —ZE—=FA=1+H

12. DIVIDENDS 12. B2
2012 2011
in HK$ thousand —ET-=F —E——%F BT T
Interim — HK1.10 cents (2011: HK2.20 cents) per FE —FREBER1IA0BIL (ZZT——4F : 2.2081l)
ordinary share 17,822 35,583
Proposed final — Nil (2011: HK3.03 cents per BERA-—E(ZT—F : SREBIR3.035L)
ordinary share) - 49,061
Proposed special — Nil (2011: HK1.20 cents per BOREFR -\ (22 ——F : SRT®BR1.208110)
ordinary share) - 19,430
17,822 104,074

13.

For the year ended 30 June 2011, the proposed final dividend of HK$49,061,000 and the proposed special
dividend of HK$19,430,000 for the year were calculated based on 1,619,179,394 shares of the Company
in issue and was approved by the Company’s shareholders at the prior annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$15,999,000 (2011: HK$130,113,000), and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 1,619,843,328 (2011: 1,611,690,901) in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$15,999,000 (2011: HK$130,113,000). The weighted average number of ordinary shares
used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue of 1,619,843,328 (2011: 1,611,690,901)
during the year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 8,214,197 (2011: 21,075,739) assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the
deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

13.

BHE-_Z——F"A=-THLEE FRABRERBRSBE
49,061,0007T % ## K 5 Bl A% 8.4 #519,430,0007C JH IR IE AN A 7] B 2
1TR%191,619,179,394/% 518 - WER L FERRRAFAE LEAR
AR B -

AR ERESRAARLESREF

BIRERBF THIREA R R HEA ARG E NG S 15,999,0007T
(Z=——%F : %¥130,113,00070) R FANE 517 L BA INHEFHE
1,619,843,328/% (= Z——4F : 1,611,690,901 %) 5T & -

FRESERF TR QB AR A (L F A A A 115,999,000
T (ZZT——4 : 8 %130,113,00070) st E - A EFr A 2 LB K
MEFHHEEARRFESREABAN ZFRERITEREKRER
1,619,843,328/% (ZZT——% : 1,611,690,901%) * MR 118 Ve
BITERERAME AR N T RRALTBRMEZTREBEITZE
FRR INRE T 19 808,214,1978% (ZZ——4F : 21,075,739/%) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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30June 2012 =E—=F<XA=1+H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. 9% BERDLHE
Group £H
Furniture,
fixtures
Land and Leasehold Plant and and office Motor
buildings improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
HE RER B E£BR
in HK$ thousand T REF YERE g WAERME RE aE BT T
2012 —E-—C—fF
At 30 June 2011 and RZT——FRA=+HK
at 1 July 2011: —ET——FtH—H:
Cost 20,500 331,087 8 178,289 2,450 532,334 BXARME
Accumulated depreciation (6,709) (243,484) (8) (133,400) (1,099) (384,700) RIEWE
Net carrying amount 13,791 87,603 = 44,889 1,351 147,634 REEE
At 1 July 2011, net of RZFE——FtH—8 "
accumulated depreciation 13,791 87,603 - 44,889 1,351 147,634 HkEENE
Additions - 57,262 - 14,145 643 72,050 NE
Disposals/write-off - (4,551) - (739) (87) (5.377) e
Impairment - (7,898) - (99) - (7,997) B
Depreciation provided during the year (596) (58,488) - (21,658) (304) (81,046) FRTERE
Exchange realignment - (993) - (206) 1 (1,198) PE 5
At 30 June 2012, net of R-ZT——FXA=+AH"
accumulated depreciation MR EBETERRE
and impairment 13,195 72,935 - 36,332 1,604 124,066
At 30 June 2012: RZZE——FXA=+H:
Cost 20,500 328,784 8 175,864 2,482 527,638 B ANME
Accumulated depreciation E2RITE RRE
and impairment (7,305) (255,849) (8) (139,532) (878) (403,572)
Net carrying amount 13,195 72,935 - 36,332 1,604 124,066 IREDE(E
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Y 3% R 2 B

30June 2012 —ZE—=FA=1+H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14. Y% - BERKE (E)
Furniture,
fixtures
Land and Leasehold Plant and and office Motor
buildings improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
e RER B EEBR
in HK$ thousand T RIEF VESH a2 WRERE RE @iE U F T
2011 —E2——F
At 1 July 2010: RZE—TFLH—H:
Cost 20,500 325,697 75 159,140 1,091 506,503 AR B
Accumulated depreciation (6,113) (254,426) (75) (115,785) (856) (377,255) Z2RFE
Net carrying amount 14,387 71,271 - 43,355 235 129,248 R FE
At 1 July 2010, net of RZE—FTFLH—H -
accumulated depreciation 14,387 71,271 = 43,355 235 129,248 MR RBEITE
Additions = 66,182 = 22,216 1,342 89,740 NE
Disposals/write-off - (1,145) - (554) = (1,699) &
Depreciation provided during the year (596) (51,770) = (21,366) (234) (73,966) FRTERE
Exchange realignment = 3,065 = 1,238 8 4,311 PE 5 58 &
At 30 June 2011, net of R-ZE—F<A=1+H"
accumulated depreciation 13,791 87,603 = 44,889 1,351 147,634 nREBEHE
At 30 June 2011: RZE——FA=+AH:
Cost 20,500 331,087 8 178,289 2,450 532,334 K ANME
Accumulated depreciation (6,709) (243,484) (8) (133,400) (1,099) (384,700) 2ENE
Net carrying amount 13,791 87,603 = 44,889 1,351 147,634 BRTEFE
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30June 2012 =E—=F<XA=1+H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14. Y%~ BB k& (&)

Land and buildings with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$13,195,000 (2011: HK$13,791,000) as
at the end of the reporting period were valued as at that date by RHL Appraisal Limited, independent
professionally qualified valuers, based on an open market basis assuming sale with vacant possession, at
an aggregate open market value of HK$94,000,000 (2011: HK$89,000,000).

During the year ended 30 June 2012, the directors considered that certain property, plant and equipment
of the Group were subject to impairment loss because the cash generating units of those property, plant
and equipment were non-performing and suffered from substantial losses for the year.

The directors estimated the recoverable amounts of respective cash generating units are as follows:

“bossini” products cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the “bossini” products cash-generating unit has been determined based on
a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering the remaining
useful life of the respective property, plant and equipment which were approved by senior management.
Key assumptions used for the value in use calculation as at 30 June 2012 were as follows:

7% to 8%
52% 10 62%
6% to 14%

Sales volume growth rate
Gross profit margin rate
Discount rate

The directors determined the above sales volume growth rate and gross profit margin rate based on the
expectation of future market development.

An impairment provision of HK$6,369,000 was recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 30 June
2012.

“b.style de flyblue” products cash-generating unit
The recoverable amount of the “b.style de flyblue” products cash-generating unit was the fair value less
costs to sell. The fair value was determined by reference to the relevant active market.

An impairment provision of HK$1,628,000 was recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 30 June
2012.
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BEHTAERFHRMEREEAFE - R ——FXA=1H

ATEFERHEEMRAZEZ/EMT
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ENAES 52%%62%
Ah IR =% 6% % 14%

EEREBEBHURRTAZEREE LRHEERRERENEK -

BEZZ—FAA=THLFE RESRCERNERER
5 16,369,0007T
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Y 3% R 2 B

30June 2012 —ZE—=FA=1+H

15. REWXE

Group 55

2012 2011
in HK$ thousand —ET-=F —E——%F BT T
Carrying amount at beginning of year 32,686 34,454 REYREE
Depreciation provided during the year (1,768) (1,768) FRYTERE
Carrying amount at end of year 30,918 32,686 MR EREE

The Group's investment properties are situated in Hong Kong and are held under medium term leases.

The Group's investment properties were valued as at the end of the reporting period by RHL Appraisal
Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers, at HK$101,000,000 (2011: HK$87,760,000) on an
open market, existing use basis. All investment properties are leased to third parties under operating leases,
further summary details of which are included in note 33(a) to the financial statements.

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are included on page 168.

AEBMZREMEMNRES  URETFHHESEHE -
AEBZREMERBLIEESERGHEMXFITHEBRBERA
AIRHREBRIZ AR ™S MIRA Ak 2 ZEHEAE%101,000,000
TL(ZZF——4F : ##87,760,0007T) > FTEREMEHIRELEH
ERTE=F - BRE—PMBERFRY B RE N E33@) °

BRAKEREMR ZE—HHBHNE168H -
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IR RAR M L

30June 2012 =E—=F<XA=1+H

16. TRADEMARK 16. &
Group =
in HK$ thousand BT T
2012 —_E—_fF

Cost at 1 July 2011 and at 30 June 2012,
net of accumulated impairment

At 30 June 2012:
Cost
Accumulated impairment
Net carrying amount

2011

Cost at 1 July 2010 and at 30 June 2011,
net of accumulated impairment

At 30 June 2011:
Cost
Accumulated impairment

Net carrying amount

Indefinite useful life

The Group classified the acquired “bossini” trademark in Indonesia as an intangible asset with an indefinite
life in Indonesia in accordance with HKAS 38 Intangible Assets. This is supported by the fact that the
“bossini” trademark is a well known and long established fashion brand since 1987, its legal rights are
capable of being renewed indefinitely at insignificant cost and therefore are perpetual in duration, and
based on future financial performance of the Group, they are expected to generate positive cash flows
indefinitely. Under HKAS 38, the Group re-evaluates the useful life of the “bossini” trademark each year
to determine whether events or circumstances continue to support the view of the indefinite useful life of

the asset.
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16.

TRADEMARK (continued)

Impairment

In accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets, the Group completed its annual impairment test for
the “bossini” trademark by comparing its recoverable amount to its carrying amount as at 30 June 2012.
The Group has conducted a valuation of the “bossini” trademark as one corporate asset based on the
value in use calculation for the Indonesian market. The resulting value of the “bossini” trademark as at
30 June 2012 was significantly higher than its carrying amount. This valuation uses cash flow projections
based on financial estimates covering a three-year period, the expected sales deriving from the “bossini”
trademark in the Indonesian market and a discount rate of 6%. Management has considered the above
assumptions and valuation and also taken into account the business expansion plan going forward, the
current wholesale order books and the strategic retail expansion in Indonesia and believes that there is no
impairment in the “bossini” trademark. Management believes that any reasonably foreseeable change in

16.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Y 3% R 2 B

30June 2012 —ZE—=FA=1+H

AR ()

e

REBEEE ST ERNEISEEERE - A% B [bossini | RN —F
——FRNA=TAZAINRESELEEEEL LBATHKEGFR
BRI - AREEREREEFEHHEMHZ [bossini | AR (A
—EEEEE) ETRE - LG ENEMES 2 [bossinil | RN —F
——FRNA=ZTRZEBEERESNEREE - ZHEKREENR=F
2 MBAEERESRERR - TBEHR A [bossini | HIRNENEM 5 2
HERA6%ZMREXET - EEEEREN LBREMEEREZE
BAREB TS - BATHEFTERNEERKTERR - WA
{& [bossini | IR BHFEHAE - ERERETMALE2REREAE
MAEAAcHERISEYHE LA RAEBRAF KRS

any of the above key assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of the trademark to X o
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount.
17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. B ATRE
Company AT
2012 2011
in HK$ thousand —ET-=F —E——%F BT T
Unlisted shares, at cost 193,962 193,962 LMD - REAAE
Provision for impairment (50,800) (50,800) BB
143,162 143,162
Due from subsidiaries 210,010 276,979 JRE i B I8~ R R IR
353,172 420,141

Impairment was recognised for certain unlisted subsidiaries because these subsidiaries had net deficiency
in assets and had difficulty to repay the amount due to the Company. The amounts due from subsidiaries
included in the Company’s current assets are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand or
within one year.

BHRETIHLMHBARRBEEFBM I REERRNARRZ
R - AMZEFMNBARZRECKER - RARBRBEETA
Z N BN R FIRIS BRI - R B RIRERFHAN —FAREE -
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30June 2012 =E—=F<XA=1+H

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 17. B A RRE (&)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of incorporation/

Nominal value

TEMBRARZFHBAOT

Percentage of equity

registration and of issued share/ attributable Principal

Name operations registered capital to the Company activities

=L R/ GZMREE®RE BERITRE EMELZEE ARBEERET DL FTEXK

Direct B Indirect & #

Active Link Limited (note a) Hong Kong HK$%& #5,000,0007T - 100 Retailing and wholesaling of garments

SWBER A (FF5ta) BB eI T iR

Bossini Clothing Limited Hong Kong HK$Z#27T = 100 Retailing and distribution of garments

BB AR EE &5 8H

Bossini Distribution Limited Hong Kong HK$ZE %1 7T = 100 Retailing and distribution of garments

EBMEDHBR DA BB R ZE K5 84

Bossini Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$Z#27T = 100 Retailing and distribution of garments

EBMECEBRIA BB R EE &5 8H

Bossini Garment Limited Hong Kong HK$Z#27T = 100 Distribution of garments

Bossini Investment Limited British Virgin Islands US$11,928% 7t 100 = Investment holding

RERARRAS REERK

Bossini Onmay International Limited Hong Kong HK$Z#27T = 100 Retailing and distribution of garments

EfaE FEBEFEARA A BB R ZE 5 8

Burling Limited British Virgin Islands US$100%E 7T = 100 Licensing of trademarks
REBHEMRES EXEteE

BN EMEEXER AT People’s Republic of China RMBA R #1,010,0007T = 100 Retailing and distribution of garments

(notes b and d) ("PRC")/mainland China KKEE RS
(M 3E bXd) RE AR
([FRELL) /o BA R
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Place of incorporation/

Nominal value

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. B A ERE (1)
TERBARIZEHBOT : (8B)

Percentage of equity

IR

30June 2012 —ZE—=FA=1+H

registration and of issued share/ attributable Principal

Name operations registered capital to the Company activities

£ BRI/ EfREELE BRITRE EMELZEE ARBEERET DL FTEXK

Direct B Indirect & #

J & R Bossini Fashion Pte. Ltd. Singapore SG$2,000,000% hi3k 7T - 100 Retailing and distribution of garments

T hn3E KREE RS H

J & R Bossini Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$/B 27T - 100 Investment holding

BRMEEEBRAA] B RE R

Kacono Trading Limited British Virgin Islands HK$5 2,000 - 100 Investment holding

REERRAS K& R

Key Value Trading Limited British Virgin Islands US$1003 7T = 100 Investment holding

RERARRAES K& R

Land Challenger Limited Hong Kong HK$Z#27T = 100 Dormant

BAERRA A B Tz

Langzhi Fashion (Shenzhen) PRC/mainland China HK$/% #6,600,0007T - 100 Dormant

Co., Ltd. (notes c and d) PR B A RE Tmaz
SRS ORI BRA A

(Mt 3Eckd)

Lead Commence Limited Hong Kong HK$Z#27T - 100 Retailing and distribution of garments

SREEBR A A B BREERDH

Luhur Daya Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM$ 55 #5500,0007T - 100 Dormant

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2 EBREMAR AR
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30June 2012 =E—=F<XA=1+H

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

17. B A ERE (1)

i}

TEMBARLZFBNT - (8)

Place of incorporation/ Nominal value Percentage of equity
registration and of issued share/ attributable Principal
Name operations registered capital to the Company activities
£ BRI EfREELE ERITRE EMEXZEE AAFEERET DL FEER
Direct H # Indirect B
Rapid City Limited Hong Kong HK$Z#27T = 100 Property holding and letting
RENMAR DA BB MERFEREE
Sun View Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$Z#27T = 100 Property holding and letting
BREXERAF i MERFEREE

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Notes:

(@) The branch of this subsidiary in Taiwan was not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of
the Ernst & Young global network.

(b) BEIMTEMBEEEAERAF is a limited liability enterprise established in the PRC, which obtained its business
registration certificate on 14 July 1993.

(c) Langzhi Fashion (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. is a wholly-owned foreign investment enterprise with limited liability
established in the PRC, which obtained its business registration certificate on 14 June 1993 and is licensed to
conduct business for 25 years from the date of its business registration.

(d) These subsidiaries were not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst & Young
global network.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Y 3% R 2 B

30June 2012 —ZE—=FA=1+H

18. INVENTORIES 18. &
Group £H
2012 2011
in HK$ thousand —E-—CfF —F—%F BT
Raw materials 5,005 7,501 [
Finished goods 359,992 404,665 R
364,997 412,166
19. DEBTORS 19. EUER X
Group =m
2012 2011
in HK$ thousand —ZE-—F —E——4 BT T
Debtors 67,347 71,248 JE W R R
Impairment (228) = BE
67,119 71,248

Other than cash and credit card sales, the Group normally grants credit periods of up to 60 days to its
trade customers. Each trade customer has a maximum credit limit, except for new trade customers,
where payment in advance is normally required. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade customers relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or

other credit enhancements over its trade debtor balances. Trade debtors are non-interest-bearing.

BREMEABHEN  AKEE-—RBEATETEESITFPES
NTREEH -BHEHEF —REABNFEI  FEZEFHR
BERSEERE - AKEBNE R E 2 B AT BREZES] -
BMRFARREREEMELERN - SN EARARAEEZ
RUBRARDBRRERE 2 E2REHEF  BAKBEYERERS
ZIEERE - NREEW R EBURFEHRTEEMNERRIEMD
ERRAER - BEBRFXHRE -
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30June 2012 =E—=F<XA=1+H

19. DEBTORS (continued) 19. R AR (4R)

An aged analysis of debtors as at the end of the reporting period, based on the payment due date and net AT REBEMNRE AR B ERTERERNRE AR KRS
of provisions, is as follows: #r

2012 2011
in HK$ thousand —ET-=F —E——%F BT T
Neither past due nor impaired 54,000 53,569 AR A R RO E
Less than 1 month past due 6,648 5,397 BH DR —1E A
1 to 2 months past due 1,548 2,684 BH—EmE A
2 to 3 months past due 941 3,362 BEAR ZE = i A
Over 3 months past due 3,982 6,236 B HA A = 1E A

67,119 71,248

The movements in the provision for impairment of debtors are as follows: JEWEESR 2 BB ELEOT

2012 2011
in HK$ thousand —ET-=F —E——%F BT T
At beginning of year = 349 REA)
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) 228 295 BRERREEE (3E7)
Amount written off as uncollectible - (644) AU Bl 2 TR I 3
At end of year 228 - NGRS
Included in the above provision for impairment of debtors is a provision for individually impaired debtors Eirj\tﬁﬁ’é”ﬂﬁ%ﬂzWﬁ%’é%%?ﬂﬁ”&ﬁﬁﬁz1EUEJE%TE?%%ZZS,OOO
of HK$228,000 (2011: Nil) with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$228,000 (2011: Nil). The individually T(ZF——%F 1\??3?\) {ERE - HERE(E A/51228,0007T (;fg——
impaired debtors relate to customers with outstanding balances which are not expected to be recovered. F ) o ERIRE 2 AR KRBT AW B2 B PR EREAR

B -
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19.

DEBTORS (continued)

An aged analysis of the debtors that are not individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as

19.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Y 3% R 2 B

30June 2012 —ZE—=FA=1+H

P& W B R (48)
3 48 A 5l 3 R R AR R BB 2 FEU R SR 2 BRie D AT a0 T

follows:
2012 2011

in HK$ thousand —ET-=F —E——%F BT T
Neither past due nor impaired 54,000 53,569 AR AR R ROR(E
Less than 1 month past due 6,648 5,397 BH DR —E A
1 to 2 months past due 1,548 2,684 BH—EMmE A
2 to 3 months past due 941 3,362 B EAR = = {6 A
Over 3 months past due 3,982 6,236 B0 HA kR A = 1 A

67,119 71,248

Debtors that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large number of diversified customers for

whom there was no recent history of default.

Debtors that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of independent customers that have a
good track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

AEMTAREZERREFEARZETEFLPEHE  ZREPREA
BENESL -

ERHERRREZEBRRRERZ BAEERE RIFBEREZ
BUEPER - RIBEEKR  ARAREFEARR  HMEANZLE
SIEMERERE  HEEEERBEEAEH RARRDERS
A2 AR E o

20. DEPOSITS PAID 20. Eff &R &
Group &8
2012 2011
in HK$ thousand —E——F —E——%F BT T
Rental deposits 115,403 111,269 HEZe
Less: Non-current portion (75,909) (74,759) R FERNERER D
Current portion 39,494 36,510 B ERER 15

The rental deposits are paid for operating leases in respect of land and buildings, and are negotiated for

terms ranging from 1 to 11 years.

AEBRERET 2 EEROTNRERES  BEZAHNT
— B+ — 5%
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21. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. AT FRIE R H A FE U AR IR
Group %£E Company 727
2012 2011 2012 2011
in HK$ thousand —E——-F —T——F —E-CfF —T——% BB
Prepayments 27,712 42,842 199 182 T IR
Other receivables 31,839 33,150 - - o e U BR IR
59,551 75,992 199 182
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial assets included in the above balances B EI SR NORE - BIEE FMBEREYNARIE 2 AR AN
relate to receivables for which there was no recent history of default. MEEROEZENESL -
22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 2. B4 PESZEEEUREEREGFESR
Group 5%£E Company 2T
2012 2011 2012 2011
in HK$ thousand —E-=-F —T——F —E——F —E——%F BT T
Cash and bank balances 188,781 275,809 495 400 e RIRTTHE
Non-pledged bank deposits 83,971 182,233 - - EHERRITER
272,752 458,042 495 400
Pledged bank deposits with original SR E R BRI B
maturity of less than three months DR =@ A 2 BEPRITIFR
when acquired 779 1,701 - -
Total 273,531 459,743 495 400 HEt
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash equivalents of the Group denominated in Renminbi RFERKR  AEEUAREEECRERE2SEEEEREE
amounted to HK$114,863,000 (2011: HK$70,600,000). Renminbi is not freely convertible into other 114,863,0007T (= ZF——4 : ##¥70,600,0007T) - AREETEEE
currencies, however, under mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration HRB|EMER  MEARBR P B REEINE E SIERDI R ASE - S RS
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange EERRTE AEEBREFBERELESINEEL 2 RITHARE
Renminbi for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business. HIBINE o
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22,

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS (continued)

Cash at banks and pledged bank deposits earn interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.
Short term bank deposits are made for varying periods of between 7 days and 3 months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term bank deposit
rates. Non-pledged bank deposits of HK$83,971,000 as at 30 June 2012 classified as current portion are
made for varying periods of between 7 days and 3 months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at interest rates ranging from 1.2% to 3.2% per annum.

Pledged bank deposits of HK$779,000 (2011: HK$811,000) were pledged to a bank as security for a bank
guarantee for an overseas subsidiary of the Group as at 30 June 2012. The remaining pledged deposits of
HK$890,000 of last year were pledged to the local tax authority of an overseas branch of the Group.

Cash and bank balances, the non-pledged bank deposits and the pledged bank deposits are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Y 3% R 2 B

30June 2012 —ZE—=FA=1+H

2. BERASESERE UARFEPRITER (H)

RITERRERBRITERE BIRRITF R EEE 27 e FR5f
B GHRTERPMNTERE=EA IR TFAEE RS
SHEME  MREEZEBRITERAEFE - RZE—ZF X
RA=+8 ' JI{ERNEAER 10 2 IR 1T 157 OB #E83,971,0007T & Hf
+tXE=EA BIAKEZHNNESHTEMmME * WRN TFEHE
1.2%%E3.2%:T 8 °

RZZE——FA=18 - FEMRITFZEE779,000T (ZF——
F : B#811,0007T) B FIRITIEARNEE —RGINTE 2 FIE
BIRITHERZER - REF  REER —REIND EEFFHEIE
R 1717 ZUA 890,0007T F & HI B 75 /= ©

Re RRTHES BERRTEAREGERRTERE RO
W R W8T AE 8 2 RTT °

23. TRADE CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 23. ERIRM - HttEMAFIER EFTRIE
Group %£E Company AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
in HK$ thousand —E-—F —ET——F —ZT—-—F —T——F BT T
Trade creditors 78,839 83,792 = = JE < BR 3R
Other payables 37,713 52,852 436 358 H At & 5 5RIE
Less: Non-current portion (1,349) (380) - - R SERVERER 4
Current portion 36,364 52,472 436 358 BVER &8 15
Accruals 117,477 156,105 1,355 2,368 FEETERTE
232,680 292,369 1,791 2,726

o]

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2 EBREMAR AR

133



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Cipr e E
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23. TRADE CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (continued)
Group

An aged analysis of the trade creditors as at the end of the reporting period, based on the payment due

date, is as follows:

23. EARRR ~ EABME A TR K BT BRI ()

%8
BT AR BN B SR B SR 38 5 Mk 2 IR 5 7

2012 2011

in HK$ thousand —E--F —T——F BT T
Current 49,627 46,573 Bl BA
0 to 30 days 19,049 22,449 0£30K
31 to 60 days 3,557 6,091 31E60K
61 to 90 days 3,546 1,191 61ZE90K
Over 90 days 3,060 7,488 #BI90K

78,839 83,792

The trade creditors are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on terms of 30 to 60 days.

The other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average terms of one month.

24. DUE FROM/TO RELATED COMPANIES

The Group’s amounts due to related companies are unsecured, interest-free, and repayable within 30 days

from the invoice date.

The Group’s amount due from a related company is unsecured, interest-free, and repayable on demand.

Particulars of the Group’s amount due from a related company, disclosed pursuant to Section 161B of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, are as follows:

ENERREE R —RR=TRENTRAZN °

HMENREARE  FHHRA—@EA -

.FELBZ/FE‘HEQL’L\ﬁ*

AEBEZEMNBEE Iéﬁﬁ?fﬁ#ﬁ R B RANREEERBEE
=+ RAEE -

AEE 2 M E FIBTEER - £ B RARERFEE -

BRIREES D AEPIE161BEMHEARE 2 ERERARHR
ZREMT :

Maximum
amount
2012 during the year 2011
in HK$ thousand —E——F FAREHIE —F——F ST T
Lita Limited 777 840 =

A director of Lita Limited, who has beneficial equity interests therein, is a relative of Mr. LAW Ka Sing, a

substantial shareholder of the Company, and Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess, a director of the Company.
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25.

STRUCTURED DEPOSIT

The structured deposit of US$2,000,000 (the “Principal”) is a time deposit placed with a bank with a fixed
maturity date. On the maturity date, the Principal is guaranteed. The interest rate on the structured deposit
fluctuates based on changes in a basket of currency exchange rates. The Group uses the structured deposit
primarily to enhance the return on investment. The structured deposit was stated at its fair value as quoted
by Standard Chartered Bank at the end of the reporting period.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Y 3% R 2 B

30June 2012 —ZE—=FA=1+H

25. ERMEER
A7 5%2,000,0005% T (A& ) IEHRERTEEER A
ZERTFR - REHE  AMREBREARGHE - AEETFRZAMET
RE-—EFEREREHMELKNE - AEB 2 EBEFRETE
RRIBINIRE @R - SEEEFERDRIBERRE M RETRITARZ
NFETNER -

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 26. TE€@MT A
Group £H
2012 2011
—E——fF —ET——%F
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
in HK$ thousand EE aE BE 8E BT
Forward currency contracts 996 895 = 1,241 R EE SR

The carrying amounts of the forward currency contracts are the same as their fair values. The above
transactions involving derivative financial instruments are conducted with creditworthy financial
institutions of credit rating ranged from AA to A+.

During the year, the Group entered into various forward currency contracts to manage its exchange rate
exposures. These forward currency contracts are not designated for hedge purposes and are measured at
fair value through profit or loss. The net change in the fair value of these non-hedging foreign currency
contracts amounting to HK$5,365,000 was credited to profit or loss (2011: charged to profit or loss of
HK$4,202,000) during the year.

EZHRERARZERERKREZ A FEMRR - S RITESRT
B2 R GTEEEFNBNFAAEA+ Z EER TS BMHEET -

FR - AEEF L ZHEAELARANEREEXRRR - 25 &R H
EBARWIEETEIEEFAR  WIRAFEREBRKRE - FA
ZEIEE R INE S R A B R & B) & 55 #55,365,0000T B R 18 5
FEA(ZE——F : ERERF R AE%4,202,0007T) °
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27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 27. st REBRTER
Group £H
2012 2011
—g-CF =%
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
per annum Maturity Amount  per annum Maturity Amount
in HK$ thousand BERERER 2#A 8 ERFMNE |5 A i BETT
Current 0D
Bank loans - secured - - - 5%-7% 2011 58,986 ROEH - DER
—B——F
Bank loans - secured 7% On demand 24,432 7%-8% On demand 68,498 BOIEH - DER
24,432 127,484
2012 2011
in HK$ thousand —E-—=F —E——%F BT T
Analysed into: DI
Bank loans repayable within one year AR —FRNNIREKFFEE

or on demand 24,432 127,484 ZIRITER
Notes: M -
(@ The Group's bank loans were secured by corporate guarantees given by the Company amounting to () REBZBTERMAATRMNATERELSKR R ——4

HK$335,558,000 (2011: HK$260,233,000) as at 30 June 2012. N B =+ B A#1335,558 0007 (= ZE——4 : #1260,233,0007T) °
(b) As at 30 June 2012, the Group had total banking facilities of approximately HK$648,013,000 (2011: (b) R-T——HFXA=+A  AEEWBTEELENABE648,013,000

HK$582,426,000), which were secured by corporate guarantees given by the Company. T (ZZF——4& : #¥582 426,0007T) * BAD GHEEM A RIERES

A o

(©)  All borrowings were in Renminbi. (© FIBEZHUAARKEE-
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30June 2012 —ZE—=FA=1+H

28. PROVISION 28. B 1&
Group £H
2012 2011
in HK$ thousand —E-——F —E——F BT T
At beginning of year 2,747 3,643 R 7]
Settled during the year (879) - FRNER
Write-back of provision (note 7) = (1,313) B E (FE7)
Exchange realignment (78) 417 ME W S
At end of year 1,790 2,747 RE £

Provision is made in relation to a tax claim from the local tax authority on a Taiwan branch of the Group
relating to the underpayment of value added tax during the period from January 2001 to May 2003. The
provision is based on directors’ best estimation of the probable future payments.

29. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are as follows:

Group
Deferred tax liabilities — 2012

Depreciation
allowance in
excess of related

Revaluation

29.

AEEREHHBRAE -REEDEENR T —F A2
ZT=FHAPRI N2 BERIELEE  FHEBEDRESRIE
RIRATBE S 2 IR IE 2 R fE (AT »

IEER R
FRAZBEEHRBRBEREEZSHNT

£5
EEREBEEBE-——T——F

depreciation  of properties Total
HERBERB
in HK$ thousand HEATE YEEMR e BB T
At 1 July 2011 36 1,857 1,893 R=ZE—FtH—H
Deferred tax charged to the statement of FAEZER KNG Z
comprehensive income during the year EERIE (FFEE10)
(note 10) 384 - 384
Gross deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RZZE—ZFAA=THEGEUBNRRE
consolidated statement of financial position BRIELEHRIBEETHE
at 30 June 2012 420 1,857 2,277
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29. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
Deferred tax assets — 2012
Depreciation in Losses available
excess of related  for offsetting
depreciation  against future

29. JEFERLTH ()
EEBEEE-—F—_F

allowance taxable profits Others Total
REEHERE
HERB AR ZHERB
in HK$ thousand HERHE BH 2 ER Hity #E BETIT
At 1 July 2011 77 172 852 1,101 RZE——FtA—H
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to the FRNEZERERTA (GR)
statement of comprehensive income ZIEIERIE (F13E10)
during the year (note 10) 1,181 (94) 1,288 2,375
Gross deferred tax assets recognised in the RZE—ZFAA=THEREHBKIAE
consolidated statement of financial BRZELEHIBEEER
position at 30 June 2012 1,258 78 2,140 3,476
Deferred tax liabilities - 2011 EEHRBREE-—T——F
Depreciation
allowance in
excess of related Revaluation
depreciation  of properties Total
MERBERB
in HK$ thousand B E YMEER HE BET T
At 1 July 2010 140 1,857 1,997 R-ZZT—ZFF+HA—H
Deferred tax credited to the statement of FAEEEKRERTTAZ
comprehensive income during the year RERTE (FFEE10)
(note 10) (104) - (104)
Gross deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RZE——FH=+H
consolidated statement of financial position iR U BMRARERZ
at 30 June 2011 36 1,857 1,893 RIER BB EER
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29. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax assets — 2011
Depreciation in Losses available

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Lupy RS e

30June 2012 —ZE—=FA=1+H

29. JEFERLTH ()

EERREE-—T——F

excess of related  for offsetting
depreciation  against future
allowance taxable profits Others Total
REEHEBE %
MERREE ZERB
in HK$ thousand mERBE BRI ZEE Hit #E BT
At 1 July 2010 166 759 712 1,637 RZZE-TF+LH—H
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to the FREZARSERTA (H0K) 2
statement of comprehensive income R IE (HEE10)
during the year (note 10) (89) (587) 140 (536)
Gross deferred tax assets recognised in the RZZE——FA=1+H
consolidated statement of financial EReMBHRRARERZ
position at 30 June 2011 77 172 852 1,101 ERERIBEEEER

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had estimated tax losses of HK$4,447,000 (2011:
HK$653,000) arising in Hong Kong that were available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. The Group had estimated tax losses arising in
mainland China of HK$202,282,000 (2011: HK$87,579,000) and in Taiwan of HK$106,652,000 (2011:
HK$90,801,000) that can be used to offset against future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose for a maximum of five years and ten years, respectively. The Group had estimated tax losses
arising in Singapore of HK$40,056,000 (2011: HK$40,079,000) and in Malaysia of HK$6,628,000 (2011:
HK$5,388,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies
in which the losses arose. The Group also had deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$1,010,000 (2011: HK$7,687,000) and HK$8,356,000 (2011: HK$14,610,000) in Singapore and
Malaysia, respectively, at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses as in the opinion of the directors, it is uncertain if sufficient future taxable profits
will be generated against which the tax losses can be utilised.

REREIR - AEBREBEE Z G HIBBEAB4447,0007T
(ZZ——4% : #¥653,000T) I ERPAFEREELEEBEBNQ
AIB B Z ERBET c AEBRFRAER A EEL 2 BT HIER
B9 Bl &8 %202,282,0007T (—F ——4 : &#87,579,0007T) K&
#£106,652,00070 (== ——4F : ¥90,801,0007T) ' FTEL K EE
AAEREARREZ ERBEFHEZ R AFRTF - REER
Frhndg I B R PR g E A 2 fh RT A IEES 1B 9 Bl A 16 40,056,0007T (=
T ——F : B%40,079,0007T) K5 16,628,000 (=T ——F : /&
#£5,388,0007T) * FIEMRHAAERHEELBIBAR BB ZERM S
F o RS HIR - RE BRI & 5 R 75 50 71 A AT 3005 B 1 =
B B 4975 %1,010,0007T (= F ——F : #¥7,687,0007T) KB
8,356,0007T (= Z ——4F : #1£14,610,0007T) - =R A ARK
BT HB DRSS ENRERT A AKX SHARIEREE B
ERBEEVERZEBRETER -
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29. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 29. IEIERIE ()
Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to BEFBEPERENE - NP ERERZOINGIRE D ERINEIR
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in mainland China. The requirement BEEERKRBREM0O%TEHY - BEAREN_—ZFZTN\F—HA—H
is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding RER - WHEAR-ZZLE+_A=+—"HBEZHNEF - WEP
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign AR EINEIIR A B ) B ERE R AT SR LY - APl sE A RIK A8
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on ME - AAEEMS - BARERS% - Al - AKREARRFREKX
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in mainland China in respect of earnings generated eI EWB AR —T T \F— A — B ERIAZ TR’
from 1 January 2008. B MIEIR -
Company AT
There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends by the Company to its RN B[R] AR BRI AN AR B R BB AR P AR B o

shareholders.

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. R4
Company AT
Shares 5’5
2012 2011
in HK$ thousand —E——F —T——5F BT T
Authorised: EERA
2,000,000,000 (2011: 2,000,000,000) 2,000,000,000% (=% ——4F : 2,000,000,000/%)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 200,000 200,000 SREEAK0.10T 2 @R
Issued and fully paid: BT RBERA :
1,620,179,394 (2011: 1,619,179,394) 1,620,179,394/% (ZZF ——% : 1,619,179,394/%)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 162,018 161,918 SR EES K010 2 @k
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Shares (continued)
During the year, the movement in share capital was as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Y 3% R 2 B

30June 2012 —ZE—=FA=1+H

30. R4~ (&)

i (%)
FRZEARESHFHIIMAT

Number Share
of shares Issued premium
in issue capital account Total

in HK$ thousand ERITROHE ERITRE R % 18 AR BEr BETT
At 1 July 2010 1,601,919,394 160,192 6,674 166,866 RZE-—FF+tH—H
Exercise of share options (note a) 17,260,000 1,726 10,500 12,226 1TIE AR AE (MY sEa)
At 30 June 2011 and 1 July 2011 1,619,179,394 161,918 17,174 179,092 RZE——F R AA=FTHAER=ZE—F+tH—H
Exercise of share options (note b) 1,000,000 100 763 863 {8 B e (B 7))
At 30 June 2012 1,620,179,394 162,018 17,937 179,955 R-ZE——FxA=1H

Notes:

(@) The subscription rights attaching to 1,560,000, 1,200,000, 3,000,000, 1,500,000 and 10,000,000 share options
were exercised at the subscription prices of HK$0.333 per share, HK$0.355 per share, HK$0.357 per share,
HK$0.370 per share and HK$0.530 per share (note 31) respectively, resulting in the issue of 17,260,000 shares
of HK$0.10 each for a total cash consideration, before expenses, of HK$7,872,000, and the related share option
reserve of HK$4,354,000 was transferred to the share premium account upon the exercise of these share options.

(b) The subscription rights attaching to 1,000,000 share options were exercised at the subscription price of HK$0.530
per share (note 31), resulting in the issue of 1,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each for a total cash consideration,
before expenses, of HK$530,000, and the related share option reserve of HK$333,000 was transferred to the share
premium account upon the exercise of these share options.

Share options
Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share options issued under the scheme are included
in note 31 to the financial statements.

BisE

(@ 1,560,0001 * 1,200,0001% * 3,000,0003 * 1,500,00017 %% 10,000,000
DB AR IEREMT 2 SREEHE S BIZ R B E SRS 0.3337T « FAREME0.355
7T~ BB 03577 - BE¥0.3707T R AR E 0.530 T T E (Kt
F£31) + B{F34717,260,0000% F R EEE 0. 10T 2 k1D - BE SR
B RA¥7,872,0007t (RaTFS) @ RZSHREEITER - HREER
B A 154,354,000t B BREERMD RERA

(b) 1,000,00017 BE AR #EBE P 2 SR BB R 1R R BB (B B AR B #60.530 0 1T (5 (FfT
F£31) - B 3971,000,0000 F R EEA 0. 10T 2k fn - BIREKE
A E530,0007T (REFFSX) - Rz EMRAEREITER - A0 REARE
f#75#333,000C E R ER D EERA ©

BB

AR B BERAE A MR Lt B BT 2 B H Y NI R K
BfEE31 ©
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 31. BIREFTE

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of motivating and providing
incentives to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations, and to enable
the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources that are valuable to
the Group and any entities in which the Group holds equity interests (the “Invested Entities”).

Eligible participants of the Scheme include executive directors, non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors), and other full-time or part-time employees of the Company, the
Company’s subsidiaries and the Invested Entities. The Scheme became effective on 27 November 2003
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all share options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other future share option schemes of the Company (excluding share options
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Scheme or any other future share option schemes of the
Company) shall not exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue on 30 August 2005, the date of
the annual general meeting that the Company seeks the approval of the shareholders of the Company for
refreshing the 10% limit under the Scheme. The number of shares issuable under the Scheme was adjusted
to approximately 156,891,139, which represented 10% of the Company’s shares in issue at 30 August
2005. The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each participant in the Scheme
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue at
any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders” approval in a
general meeting with such participant and his associates abstaining from voting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their respective associates, are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors
(excluding any independent non-executive director who is a grantee of the share options). In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date
of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.
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ARRIRBEERE ([ZAt8l]) - EEAEREREAEEREA
EHERMZAERSEE  BHAEERFERIEBERES  UR
MEAREBRASERSERAZEMER((REER ) M=AEE
ZANER °

ZEt Bz ABERBEALTBEART  ARAFRMBRARIKEEHE
ZHTESE FUTES (BRBIUIFRTES) REMEBIGRE
BE - ZAER _ZET=F+ A +EBER  BIFLFEINUE
T AEHEIER]  BRIEZBRABARHRTE -

RIBZET B AR AT A5 R E A R IR AT Bl S TR 2 AT AR
ETER FHITZROEEE (TEEREESAQRME
] 38 SR E A AR AT BRI 2 FEARAE) - TRBBRAQA =T
TRFNA=+HEARAZF KRR EEFZTE LR10% 2 /%
RAFAEHZEBITRDEEI0%  BIEZAEIRI 21T 2D
EH B FHEEH156,891,139 ' (EARARIR=ZZTEZERAFE/NA=+H
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days from the date of offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, and commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a
date which is not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the share options. Options granted during
the term of the Scheme and remain unexercised immediately prior to the end of the 10-year period of the
Scheme shall continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of grant within the exercise period
for which such options are granted, notwithstanding the expiry of the Scheme.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the directors, but may not be less than the
highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant of the share
options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the 5 trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during the year:
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31. B AES & (&)

B2 B N B RES - T NBEREARAIT A AR
ITEBAREBREEN EXLBRELTENRESRER
I BETHRGBREEFARRBRER D BRE T FRER - ©
ST EIHRER H RS B AT 8 - B & A e R 1T 2 BB AR -
Bkt BT HR - DA RBER D FEFRN R LB RETTE R 4
BT AT ©

BEREZTEERETRER  EMBERATZERE : (IRE
B th BB R R D B SR P 2 W (B ¢ (DR R IR B iR R
X5 B AR R RO RE R FHRMIE - RiiDAR R E
E-

FRZFTE T HARITEZBRENT

2012 2011
—E-CF —F——%F
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of options
InREF I ITEE BRERE NEFIHTRE BB EE A
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
per share per share
FRE®T T4 BREB T F1n
At beginning of year 0.579 78,559 0.455 57,800 REF
Granted during the year 0.729 4,054 0.679 45,419 FAFRL
Forfeited during the year 0.503 (600) 0.510 (7,400) FrEIK
Exercised during the year 0.530 (1,000) 0.456 (17,260) FRNTTHE
At end of year 0.588 81,013 0.579 78,559 R
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the year was
HK$0.720 per share (2011: HK$0.872 per share).

31. BT 8 (])
FREITEBRENITER Az METHITEERERER0.720
T(ZE——%F : §R#EB0.872T) °
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options outstanding as at the end of the reporting R EEBRBARITEEREZITEERTEBRALT
period are as follows:

2012 —E-——-F
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
RS A TEE* T8
HKS
per share
BRAE T
2,600,000 0.530 4 July 2008 to 3 July 2017 —EE)\FtAMBE-ZE—+tF LA =H
3,900,000 0.530 4 July 2010 to 3 July 2017 - ZEZF+ANHEE-_ZTE—+Ft+H=H
12,500,000 0.530 4 July 2012 to 3 July 2017 - —_HFt+tAMNHE-_Z—tHF+A=H
480,000 0.370 19 November 2008 to 18 November 2017 —EENFt+—A+hBEE—+F+—A+N\H
1,020,000 0.370 19 November 2009 to 18 November 2017 —EENF+—At+hLBE_ZE—+tF+—A+/\H
2,400,000 0.370 19 November 2010 to 18 November 2017 —9:\ ZFE+—A+ABE-_E—+F+—A+/\H
3,000,000 0.357 26 March 2013 to 25 March 2018 —E—=F=ZA-+ARABE-_ZE—N\F=ZA=-+EHH
1,740,000 0.333 15 July 2011 to 14 July 2018 :%ffitﬂ JrﬁEl?t_? J\Etﬁ +I A
900,000 0.333 15 July 2013 to 14 July 2018 —E—=FtAt+HRAEZ-/\FtA+WMA
600,000 0.160 31 October 2009 to 30 October 2018 TETEAF+A=+-—HE-_Z—-N\FE+HA=+H
900,000 0.160 31 October 2011 to 30 October 2018 —E——%+A=+—HE-_Z—-\E+A=+H
1,500,000 0.160 31 October 2013 to 30 October 2018 —E—=FtA=1+— E?‘E_T NEFE+A=+H
480,000 0.456 4 February 2011 to 3 February 2020 —E——4F-_HNHEE=ZT=_FTF_-_H=H
720,000 0.456 4 February 2012 to 3 February 2020 —ET-_F_AWMAE :I:— T _ZF_HA=H
1,200,000 0.456 4 February 2013 to 3 February 2020 —E—=F_ANBE-—ZE-_THF_-_A=H
14,900,000 0.503 (note a) (Fffzxa)
5,152,000 0.780 12 October 2011 to 11 October 2020 —E——F%+A+-_BE_ZT-_ZTF+A+—H
648,000 0.780 12 October 2012 to 11 October 2020 —E——FE+A+-BRE-_ZE-_ZEE+A+—H
8,160,000 0.780 12 October 2013 to 11 October 2020 —f——¢+ﬂ+ Elét_?_7¢+ﬂ+ =
11,800,000 0.780 12 October 2015 to 11 October 2020 —E-hFtAt+-_BHE_ZEZ-_ZF+A+—H
974,000 0.780 (note b) (W%E\b)
216,000 0.922 3 January 2012 to 2 January 2021 2 —_H—AzZHE-ZET-_—F—HF=H
324,000 0.922 3 January 2013 to 2 January 2021 —E—=f—A=ZHAE=_T-_—F—H—H
540,000 0.922 3 January 2014 to 2 January 2021 —E-MNFE-F=ZHE-_T-_—F—HF_H
225,000 0.922 (note ©) (Bt Ec)
80,000 0.894 (note d) (M 5Ed)
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 31. B8 (])
2012 —_E-——-F
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
RS A TEE* T
HKS
per share
BRANET
216,000 0.880 4 July 2012 to 3 July 2021 —E-—F+ANBE-_ZE-—F+A=H
324,000 0.880 4 July 2013 to 3 July 2021 2=+t ANBEBE-_ZT-_—F+HA=H
540,000 0.880 4 July 2014 to 3 July 2021 —E-NNE+tANHEE-_Z-_—F+A=H
296,000 0.880 (note e) (Fff 5Ee)
240,000 0.720 1 November 2012 to 31 October 2021 - —H+—A—HBHE_ZET-_—F+HA=+—H
360,000 0.720 1 November 2013 to 31 October 2021 2 =%+—F—BE_Z-_—4F+A=+—H
600,000 0.720 1 November 2014 to 31 October 2021 —E—NNFE+—HF—HBHEE-_E-—F+A=+—H
86,000 0.720 (note f) (Bfd 5EF)
162,000 0.590 (note g) (FffzEg)
216,000 0.592 1 March 2013 to 28 February 2022 —E—=f=ZA—HE_ZE-_—_F-_AF=+//\H
324,000 0.592 1 March 2014 to 28 February 2022 —ZQ WE=R—RAZz=_Z2=-__F-_A=+N\H
540,000 0.592 1 March 2015 to 28 February 2022 —hAF=A—B&-_T-_—_F-_A=+\H
28,000 0.592 (note h) (Bﬁ =h)
122,000 0.550 (note i) (B 2D
81,013,000
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 31. BREFTE (&)
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
RS A TEE* T8
HKS
per share
BRAE T
2,700,000 0.530 4 July 2008 to 3 July 2017 :;ﬁ;ﬁ)\itﬂﬂag:g—titﬁza
4,800,000 0.530 4 July 2010 to 3 July 2017 —ZEFE+ANBE-_T—+F+A=H
12,500,000 0.530 4 July 2012 to 3 July 2017 _2 “Ft+tANBEBE-_Z—+HE+HF=H
480,000 0.370 19 November 2008 to 18 November 2017 —FEENFt+—At+hBE_ZE—+F+—A+\H
1,020,000 0.370 19 November 2009 to 18 November 2017 —EENFt+—At+hBEE—+F+—A+N\H
2,400,000 0.370 19 November 2010 to 18 November 2017 —E—TF+— ﬂHlEl;:g_f +tF+—A+N\H
3,000,000 0.357 26 March 2013 to 25 March 2018 = =A-t+AR"BE-_ZT—N\F=A_-+HH
1,740,000 0.333 15 July 2011 to 14 July 2018 —E——FtRAt+HRAEZZ— )\itﬂ +Pa 8
900,000 0.333 15 July 2013 to 14 July 2018 T =ZFtAt+HRBE-_ZT—-\FtA+WEA
600,000 0.160 31 October 2009 to 30 October 2018 —EERAFtTA=+—BZE_Z—N\Ft+A=+H
900,000 0.160 31 October 2011 to 30 October 2018 —E——F+A=+—HBE=E—N\F+A=1H
1,500,000 0.160 31 October 2013 to 30 October 2018 B =Ft+A=+-—HE-_Z—-N\FE+HA=+H
480,000 0.456 4 February 2011 to 3 February 2020 —E——F-_AMBEZZE-_TF-HA=H
720,000 0.456 4 February 2012 to 3 February 2020 —E——_F-_HAWMA §_$_ SHE_H=H
1,200,000 0.456 4 February 2013 to 3 February 2020 - _ANHE—_ZE_ZTF_H=H
15,500,000 0.503 (note a) (Fff5%a)
5,152,000 0.780 12 October 2011 to 11 October 2020 —F——Ft+A+=-BE=_ZE_FF+A+—H
648,000 0.780 12 October 2012 to 11 October 2020 B+ /t+-_HE_ZEZ-_ZF+A+—H
8,160,000 0.780 12 October 2013 to 11 October 2020 T E—=Ft+A+-_HE_ZE-_ZTF+A+—H
11,800,000 0.780 12 October 2015 to 11 October 2020 —F—RFtA+=-BE_ZE-_FF+A+—H
974,000 0.780 (note b) (Fff#Eb)
216,000 0.922 3 January 2012 to 2 January 2021 T —F—-HA=ZHE-_ZT-_—F—HF_H
324,000 0.922 3 January 2013 to 2 January 2021 —E—=F—A=RAE-_FT-_—F—H_-H
540,000 0.922 3 January 2014 to 2 January 2021 - NF—-—A=AE-_FT-_—F—HZ-H
225,000 0.922 (note ) (Bt 5Fc)
80,000 0.894 (note d) (P 7Ed)
78,559,000

*  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar
changes in the Company'’s share capital.
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Notes:

(a)

These share options are exercisable from the next business day of publication of announcement of the audited
consolidated results of the Group for the year ending 30 June 2013 to 4 July 2020. Vesting of the share options is
conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees and the achievement of 3-year corporate
goals for the 3-year performance period ending 30 June 2013, including but not limited to the achievement of
strategic goals, financial and operational performance targets. The share options or any portion thereof shall lapse
if the relevant 3-year corporate goals cannot be achieved.

These share options are exercisable from the next business day of publication of announcement of the audited
consolidated results of the Group for the year ending 30 June 2013 to 11 October 2020. Vesting of the share
options is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees and the achievement of
3-year corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ending 30 June 2013, including but not limited to the
achievement of strategic goals, financial and operational performance targets. The share options or any portion
thereof shall lapse if the relevant 3-year corporate goals cannot be achieved.

These share options are exercisable from the next business day of publication of announcement of the audited
consolidated results of the Group for the year ending 30 June 2013 to 2 January 2021. Vesting of the share
options is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees and the achievement of
3-year corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ending 30 June 2013, including but not limited to the
achievement of strategic goals, financial and operational performance targets. The share options or any portion
thereof shall lapse if the relevant 3-year corporate goals cannot be achieved.

These share options are exercisable from the next business day of publication of announcement of the audited
consolidated results of the Group for the year ending 30 June 2013 to 2 May 2021. Vesting of the share options
is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees and the achievement of the 3-year
corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ending 30 June 2013, including but not limited to the
achievement of strategic goals, financial and operational performance targets. The share options or any portion
thereof shall lapse if the relevant 3-year corporate goals cannot be achieved.

These share options are exercisable from the next business day of publication of announcement of the audited
consolidated results of the Group for the year ending 30 June 2013 to 3 July 2021. Vesting of the share options
is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees and the achievement of the 3-year
corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ending 30 June 2013, including but not limited to the
achievement of strategic goals, financial and operational performance targets. The share options or any portion
thereof shall lapse if the relevant 3-year corporate goals cannot be achieved.
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(f)  These share options are exercisable from the next business day of publication of announcement of the audited
consolidated results of the Group for the year ending 30 June 2013 to 31 October 2021. Vesting of the share
options is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees and the achievement of the
3-year corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ending 30 June 2013, including but not limited to the
achievement of strategic goals, financial and operational performance targets. The share options or any portion
thereof shall lapse if the relevant 3-year corporate goals cannot be achieved.

(g) These share options are exercisable from the next business day of publication of announcement of the audited
consolidated results of the Group for the year ending 30 June 2013 to 2 January 2022. Vesting of the share
options is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees and the achievement of the
3-year corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ending 30 June 2013, including but not limited to the
achievement of strategic goals, financial and operational performance targets. The share options or any portion
thereof shall lapse if the relevant 3-year corporate goals cannot be achieved.

(h) These share options are exercisable from the next business day of publication of announcement of the audited
consolidated results of the Group for the year ending 30 June 2013 to 28 February 2022. Vesting of the share
options is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees and the achievement of the
3-year corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ending 30 June 2013, including but not limited to the
achievement of strategic goals, financial and operational performance targets. The share options or any portion
thereof shall lapse if the relevant 3-year corporate goals cannot be achieved.

(i)  These share options are exercisable from the next business day of publication of announcement of the audited
consolidated results of the Group for the year ending 30 June 2013 to 1 May 2022. Vesting of the share options
is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees and the achievement of the 3-year
corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ending 30 June 2013, including but not limited to the
achievement of strategic goals, financial and operational performance targets. The share options or any portion
thereof shall lapse if the relevant 3-year corporate goals cannot be achieved.

On 4 July 2011, 1 November 2011, 3 January 2012, 1 March 2012 and 2 May 2012, the Company granted
share options of 1,376,000, 1,286,000, 162,000, 1,108,000 and 122,000, respectively, to its employees.
The fair value of the share options granted during the year was HK$1,343,000 (HK$0.331 each), of which
the Group recognised a share option expense of HK$422,000 in the current year. The Group recognised
an aggregate share option expense of HK$2,222,000 in the current year for the 81,013,000 share options
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period.
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the year was estimated as at the date of
grant, using a trinomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. The following table lists the inputs to the model used:
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31. BRAES & (&)
REAMR M Z EREEBREZ 2 FETIRE G B EGE - EF
R=AAREEER - 8ZEAE L EREZ R R R M
H o TREIFAERARAZFAIRR -

2012 2011
—E-C-F —E——F
Weighted average dividend yield (%) 3.39 3.01 INEE A% B 2R (%)
Weighted average expected volatility (%) 57.59 60.96 DN <735 78 B K Bh(%)
Weighted average historical volatility (%) 57.59 60.96 DN 39 FE 52K Bh(%)
Weighted average risk-free interest rate (%) 2.28 2.18 DN T35 10 [, B ) 22(%)

Expected life of options (year) 10 10
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) 0.729 0.652

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data over the past 10 years and is not necessarily
indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 81,013,000 share options outstanding under the
Scheme, which represented approximately 5.00% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date. The
exercise in full of the remaining share options would, under the present capital structure of the Company,
result in the issue of 81,013,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital
of approximately HK$8,101,000 and share premium of approximately HK$39,514,000 (before issue
expenses).

The 1,000,000 share options exercised during the year resulted in the issue of 1,000,000 ordinary shares
of the Company, as further detailed in note 30 to the financial statements.

TR F 8 ()
IHEF R E (FREET)

BRECEAFRNRBBETF2ELBEBRET - RUERKRA
RELIR 2 BB TT AR - FARIK B THIR IR S2 IR B 5 HE R AR KB
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REHE R EER I\ R AR R 2 B AR -

RIEEKR - NRRIZETEIIE T 2 ®AR1TE 2 BEAR#EE81,013,000
% HERZBARRQBEBEITRD45.00% ° 2R A BIRB /AL
BREITESR T 2 BIRE - BB R FE17481,013,0008% 585
LBARRE 1 - AR A R AR 195 (B 18 2 Bl 35 AN 4075 #58,101,0007T K 47
75 #639,514,0007T (RN EITHS) °
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 31. BT 8 (])

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 3 July 2012, a total of 158,000 share options were
granted to certain employees of the Company in respect of their services to the Group in the forthcoming
years. The vesting of these share options is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective
grantees and the achievement of the 3-year corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ending 30
June 2013. The share options have an exercise price of HK$0.490 per share and an exercise period from
the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of the Group
for the year ending 30 June 2013 to 2 July 2022. The price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant
was HK$0.490 per share, which was the Stock Exchange closing price on the trading day immediately prior
to the date of grant of the options. On the same date, a total of 1,200,000 share options were granted
to an employee of the Company in respect of his service to the Group in the forthcoming years. These
share options vest on the date of grant and have an exercise price of HK$0.490 per share and an exercise
period ranging from 3 July 2013 to 2 July 2022. The price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant
was HK$0.490 per share, which was the Stock Exchange closing price on the trading day immediately prior
to the date of grant of the options.

On 1 July 2012, 1,500,000 of share options granted to an employee on 4 July 2007 were forfeited with
an exercise price of HK$0.530 per share and an exercise period ranging from 4 July 2012 to 3 July 2017.
The price of the Company's shares at the date of forfeiture was HK$0.485 per share, which was the Stock
Exchange closing price on the trading day immediately prior to the date of forfeiture of the options. On
1 July 2012, 7 July 2012, 23 July 2012, 31 July 2012 and 1 September 2012, 540,000, 90,000, 210,000,
90,000 and 90,000 of share options granted to certain employees on 5 July 2010 were forfeited on the
respective dates. The exercise price of the share options forfeited is HK$0.503 per share with exercise
period from the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results
of the Group for the year ending 30 June 2013 to 4 July 2020. The prices of the Company’s shares at
the respective dates of forfeiture were HK$0.485 per share, HK$0.490 per share, HK$0.475 per share,
HK$0.460 per share and HK$0.420 per share, which were the Stock Exchange closing prices on the trading
day immediately prior to the respective dates of forfeiture of the options.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company had 79,851,000 share options
outstanding under the scheme, which represented approximately 4.93% of the Company’s shares in issue
as at that date.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Lupy RS e

30June 2012 —ZE—=FA=1+H

32. RESERVES 32. f#f&
Group 5
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the current and prior years are AEERBATFEASERERAPEEH 2 HE2NNT BT 2
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial statements. The amounts of RARREHBREAN - R —FRASTEHERFE305AE
goodwill arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries prior to the adoption of SSAP 30 in 2001, remaining WENBARMEEMNR - ——FA=THNERGEEER
in the consolidated capital reserve and consolidated retained profits amounted to HK$4,987,000 and HEREERBRMNAZEESED B HAB4,987,0007T 2B
HK$20,982,000, respectively, as at 30 June 2012. 20,982,0007T °
Company ATl
Share Share
premium Contributed option Retained
Notes account surplus reserve profits Total
in HK$ thousand s R 13 %3 (B AR BB RS REHER ®E BT T
At 1 July 2011 17,174 157,616 12,026 68,855 255,671 R-Z——F+H—H
Total comprehensive income for the year = = = 17,694 17,694 FAREW BT
Issue of shares 30 763 = (333) - 430 BITRG
Equity-settled share option arrangements 31 - - 2,222 - 2,222 %f}ﬁ% T R HE
Final 2011 dividend declared = = = (49,092) (49,092) BEER-ZT——FREARKRE
Special 2011 dividend declared = = = (19,442) (19,442) ﬁffﬁiiffiﬁ?ﬂ iR 2
Interim 2012 dividend 12 - - - (17.822) (17.822) — - FRHRE
At 30 June 2012 17,937* 157,616* 13,915* 193* 189,661 RZFE——FA=+H
At 1 July 2010 6,674 157,616 11,557 42,080 217,927 R-ZT— Ti‘tﬂ H
Total comprehensive income for the year = = = 104,231 104,231 FAZEMPEER
Issue of shares 30 10,500 = (4,354) = 6,146 BITRGD
Equity-settled share option arrangements 31 = = 4,823 - 4,823 iR BREL
Final 2010 dividend declared = = = (37,041) (37,041) EER-ZE-ZTEREARKRE
Special 2010 dividend declared = = = (4,832) (4,832) EER-Z-ZTEFARKRE
Interim 2011 dividend 12 - - - (35,583) (35,583) —E——FhHRE
At 30 June 2011 17,174% 157,616* 12,026* 68,855** 255,671 S ——HFXA=+H

*  These reserve accounts comprise the reserves of HK$189,661,000 (2011: HK$255,671,000) in the statement of

financial position.

#  The retained profits comprised the proposed final dividend of HK$49,061,000 and proposed special dividend of

HK$19,430,000 for the year ended 30 June 2011.

* EHERESSRTBEMRRRAZ FEAE189,661,000T (=ZF
——4F : #¥255,671,0007T) °

# REENESBRE-T——FNA=TRALFEZHRRAREEE
49,061,0007T, K #E Ik 5 51l i 8,78 % 19,430,0007T, ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Cipr e E

30June 2012 =E—=F<XA=1+H

32.

33.

RESERVES (continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company originally represented the difference between the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange for the issued share capital of the subsidiaries and the
aggregate net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired at the date of acquisition, at the time of the Group
reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares in 1993. Under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, the Company may make distributions to its shareholders out of the contributed surplus.

The share option reserve of the Group and the Company comprises the fair value of share options granted
which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy for share-based payment
transactions in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will either be transferred to the share
premium account when the related options are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits should the
related options expire or be forfeited.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

Group

(a) As lessor
The Group leases its investment properties and sub-leases certain of its retail properties under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from 2 to 6 years. The terms
of the leases also require the tenants to pay security deposits.

At 30 June 2012, the Group had total future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

32. s (&)

33.

RARZEABBRIIN—NAN=ZFRREIKRG EHAELEE
EAR  ARABRXBMMB AR ETRAMBT ZROEE &
BB MBARRKBENEEFERANZIERE REAFRE
—NN—FREE  ARBABHARBRD KT EBCR -

REBRARRZ BREREREBEESRLERRTEBREZ AT
B HBEHIRMBEEREAME24ABAUBRND XA RAZR S 2 &5t
BEAN - BERESREEBREETERERERMEER - 3
i 451 A s A i Sk 08 B B AR BR R )

REHE R

EE]

(a) FERHBEA
AEBAELEHEZZHT  BHERENERSBEEETE
EWE FEIHEBPBMERNFENE - ZBEHZGHITRER
ERABNRERSE

R-F—ZFXRA=1TH AREERBEFHET 2 TAIREHEZ
KREMET  BRFERERRERFEERMANT

2012 2011
in HK$ thousand —EB——F —E——%F BT T
Within one year 4,961 2,550 R—FNK
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 1,781 1,989 REZFZERF  BEGEMF
6,742 4,539
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33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)
(b) As lessee
The Group leases certain of its offices, retail stores and warehouse properties under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 11 years.

At 30 June 2012, the Group had total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Y 3% R 2 B

30June 2012 —ZE—=FA=1+H

3. REME 2= (8

(b) EREBEA
FEBAELEHEZRYT HRETHAE ZTEEHLE
BYME ZEVNERECHPE—FET—FI%F-

RZZF-—ZFXA=1TH AEEETAIREKLLHEET -
BREEBEENKEERIHALT

2012 2011
in HK$ thousand —B——F —E——%F BT T
Within one year 387,243 401,071 R—FR
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 450,710 387,437 RE_FZFZRF  BEEEMSF
After five years 4 13,547 &
837,957 802,055

The operating lease rentals of certain retail stores are based solely on the sales of those stores. In the
opinion of the directors, as the future sales of those retail outlets could not be accurately estimated,
the relevant rental commitments have not been included above.

Company
At the end of the reporting period, the Company did not have any future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases.

ETEEERMZ L EHcERREERMIHERME
ERR ARBAERGHAZETEERHARIHEER E&LA
LY EBEERBESALE-

I>

AH
KRS RATETTRBEERET - WRIETE R RIER
B3
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30June 2012 =E—=F<XA=1+H

34. COMMITMENTS 34, &L
Group £H
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 33(b) above, the Group had the following BRI £ B aE33(b)atitt 2 & & E ARSI - REERHERRZE
capital commitments at the end of the reporting period: AAEENT :
2012 2011
in HK$ thousand —E-—-F —ET——%F BT T
Contracted, but not provided for: BRI B R B
Leasehold improvements = 1,495 HEYHEEE
Computer software 2,518 700 B
2,518 2,195
Authorised, but not provided for: ERREERREE
Computer software 63 203 B
Company NG|
At the end of the reporting period, the Company did not have any significant commitments. RS AR - AR A3 A ] 8 R AEHE -
35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 35. RAEE
Group =8
2012 2011
in HK$ thousand —ET-=F —E——%F BT T
Bank guarantees given in lieu of utility and property REKERERYWELZESZ
rental deposits 7,166 5,438 RITHER
The Company has given guarantees in favour of banks to the extent of HK$769,013,000 (2011: ARABIHETHEBARMER 2RI EEEMBTIEL B
HK$693,688,000) in respect of banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries. These facilities were 769,013,0007C (=& ——4F : B %693,688,0007T) < R - K==
utilised to the extent of HK$66,803,000 (2011: HK$179,175,000) as at 30 June 2012. ——FXA=1+HE#HAZZE%EAH%66,803,000T (=ZF——

£F 1 5%#179,175,0007T) ©
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Y 3% R 2 B

30June 2012 —ZE—=FA=1+H

36. BEALRS

Group 58
(a) Material transactions with related parties (a) HEAEATZERRS
In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had the BRI IS MR R 5 RGBS REBRFAEBEALT
following material transactions with related parties during the year: ETZEARSGAT -
Note 2012 2011
in HK$ thousand P —E-—F —ET——%F BT T
Purchases of garments () 168,279 180,672 BB BRI
Note: B&E -

(b)

(i)  During the year, garments totalling HK$168,279,000 (2011: HK$180,672,000) were purchased from certain
wholly-owned subsidiaries of Laws International Group Limited (“Laws International”). The purchases were
determined by reference to the prevailing market prices. Certain directors of Laws International, who have
beneficial equity interests therein, are relatives of Mr. LAW Ka Sing, a substantial shareholder of the Company,
and Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess, a director of the Company. The balance owing to these suppliers as at 30 June

2012 was HK$11,203,000 (2011: HK$12,734,000).

The related party transactions above also constitute continuing connected transactions as defined in

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Outstanding balances with related parties

Details of the Group’s balances with related companies as at the end of the reporting period are

included in note 24 to the financial statements.

iy FR-ARFRAETERKBEREEERAR ([RRER]) 2EHEB

DR E A H#1168,279,0007T (ZE——4F : % %180,672,000
TO) ZRREK - MBS BERMEER  c ERBR2ETHEE
ERAERZEENARAEERRBERELEERARAESH
SRLZTZHEB - R —F X NA=-THHRZSEEFZ&
B A5 %11,203,0000T (=& ——4F : B#12,734,0007T) °

Mz BAEATRGMER EMRBNEUAZRTRE 2 HERM
x%

(b) E}EE AE AT 2 REBERE
REERR - A E HEEE
40

TZ%@%%’I%%Z%EM%%&% B E

N

(c) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group () XEBFTEEBEAEZHE
2012 2011

in HK$ thousand —E——F —T——F BT

Short term employee benefits 20,387 20,724 HHEESRT

Performance related bonuses 33 7,251 Eﬁiﬁfﬁﬁﬁ 82 FEAT

Pension scheme contributions 252 238 BIRSFT B R

Equity-settled share option expense 2,046 3,586 RS EBRERY

Total compensation paid to key management YIRNTEEBEBEABCRELSR
personnel 22,718 31,799

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 to the financial statements.

ExMe - SRBE RN U BRKRMES -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Lupy E e

30June 2012 =E—=F<XA=1+H

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37. ST ES
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the end of the reporting R|ERR SEeMTAREENT :

period are as follows:

Group £H
Financial assets — 2012 ctRMEE-—ZT—_F
Financial
assets at fair
value through Loans and
profit or loss receivables Total
RAFEREBRE BERR
in HK$ thousand JIEzERMEE FE U BR X st BT T
Deposits paid = 115,403 115,403 [RENEEE
Debtors - 67,119 67,119 JEHBR X
Bills receivable = 31,852 31,852 R EE
Financial assets included in prepayments BEFATERFIE K& H b R Y ARIE
and other receivables (note 21) = 31,839 31,839 Z2amBEE (F:E21)
Due from a related company = 777 777 e A 2E R R 5RIE
Structured deposit 15,779 - 15,779 HEBIEER
Derivative financial instruments 996 - 996 PTESMITEA
Pledged bank deposits = 779 779 BEMBITIFK
Cash and cash equivalents - 272,752 272,752 Re kR EHEEE
16,775 520,521 537,296
Financial Financial
liabilities at fair liabilities
value through at amortised
profit or loss cost Total
BRATFERERER RBHEKKSIE
in HK$ thousand JifRz e maE ZeRmBE #st BT T
Financial liabilities included in trade creditors, BEETAERRE - Bt ENFIER
other payables and accruals - 201,062 201,062 JEFTERIEZ RLAE
Bills payable = 35,038 35,038 ANE S
Due to related companies — 11,203 11,203 FERT R R A FUE
Derivative financial instruments 895 - 895 TEEMIEA
Interest-bearing bank borrowings - 24,432 24,432 FTEIRITER
895 271,735 272,630
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Financial assets — 2011

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Y 3% R 2 B

30June 2012 —ZE—=FA=1+H

37. €M I EDE (&)
SHEE-—F——F

Financial
assets at fair
value through Loans and
profit or loss receivables Total
RAFERBRE BR R
in HK$ thousand PR & MEE JE AR 3K @5t BT T
Deposits paid = 111,269 111,269 BEffiEse
Debtors - 71,248 71,248 FEN AR TK
Bills receivable = 7,033 7,033 FERERE
Financial assets included in prepayments B ET ATERTFRIE K A FE U AR TE
and other receivables (note 21) = 33,150 33,150 zerEE (MaF21)
Structured deposit 15,858 - 15,858 HEBMER
Pledged bank deposits = 1,701 1,701 BEMRITER
Cash and cash equivalents = 458,042 458,042 RekReEHHEEE
15,858 682,443 698,301
Financial liabilities — 2011 SRAE-—ZT——F
Financial Financial
liabilities at fair liabilities at
value through amortised
profit or loss cost Total
RAFERBRER IR S AN
in HK$ thousand R zeMBE NEZeRAR 5t BT T
Financial liabilities included in trade creditors, ERT AR - HAENRIER
other payables and accruals = 249,776 249,776 JEFTERIE 2 R A &
Bills payable = 46,107 46,107 FENZE
Due to related companies = 12,734 12,734 FERSRAZE R RIFIE
Derivative financial instruments 1,241 = 1,241 MESRMIA
Interest-bearing bank borrowings = 127,484 127,484 STERITER
1,241 436,101 437,342
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30June 2012 =E—=F<XA=1+H

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 37. €M T B9 ¥ (&)
Company AT
Financial assets EREE

Loans and receivables

BERREWRR
2012 2011
in HK$ thousand —E-——F —F——%F BT
Due from subsidiaries 210,010 276,979 JE U FfY B8 R R FR08
Cash and cash equivalents 495 400 RekFeEFMBEER
210,505 277,379
Financial liabilities SRIAE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
REBERNIEzSHEE
2012 2011
in HK$ thousand —E-——F —F——%F BT
Financial liabilities included in other BT A K th FE S FUE KBS BRIE
payables and accruals 1,791 2,726 ZemBE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Y 3% R 2 B

30June 2012 —ZE—=FA=1+H

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s and the Company’s financial instruments are as

38. R FERQFERSE
AREBENARRGRTIEZ REERAFENT

follows:
Group 55
Carrying amounts fRTEI{E Fair values 2 (&
2012 2011 2012 2011
in HK$ thousand —E——F —T——F —E——F —E——%F BT T
Financial assets TRMEE
Cash and cash equivalents 272,752 458,042 272,752 458,042 ReERREEFMBEIER
Pledged bank deposits 779 1,701 779 1,701 BEMRITER
Deposits paid 115,403 111,269 115,403 111,269 EffiEe
Debtors 67,119 71,248 67,119 71,248 JE W BR R
Bills receivable 31,852 7,033 31,852 7,033 U= R
Financial assets included in B ET AT SR & A b fE W AR 1E
prepayments and other Z e mAE (K21)
receivables (note 21) 31,839 33,150 31,839 33,150
Due from a related company 777 = 777 - FEU B8 A R FUIE
Structured deposit 15,779 15,858 15,779 15,858 B IETE
Derivative financial instruments 996 = 996 - PTESBMTA
537,296 698,301 537,296 698,301
Financial liabilities cRMEE
Financial liabilities included in trade EET AR - EfbERFRIA
creditors, other payables and accruals 201,062 249,776 201,062 249,776 REGIRBE 2HEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 24,432 127,484 24,432 127,484 SFEERITER
Bills payable 35,038 46,107 35,038 46,107 AN
Due to related companies 11,203 12,734 11,203 12,734 FET A& A A5k IE
Derivative financial instruments 895 1,241 895 1,241 PTESBT A
272,630 437,342 272,630 437,342
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30June 2012 =E—=F<XA=1+H

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued)

38. AP ER A FEREE (&)

Company AT
Carrying amounts fREE Fair values A&
2012 2011 2012 2011

in HK$ thousand —s——F —E—— —E—— e — S
Financial assets SREE
Due from subsidiaries 210,010 276,979 210,010 276,979 eI PNGIE
Cash and cash equivalents 495 400 495 400 RekBEeFHEEE

210,505 277,379 210,505 277,379
Financial liabilities EMasE
Financial liabilities included in other B AEMEMRBEREREZ

payables and accruals 1,791 2,726 1,791 2,726 TRIBE

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument
could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits, deposits paid, debtors, bills receivable
and payable, financial assets included in prepayments and other receivables, financial liabilities included in
trade creditors, other payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank borrowings, amounts due from and due
to related companies, and amounts due from subsidiaries approximate to their carrying amounts largely
due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments (i.e., forward currency contracts) with creditworthy
financial institutions with credit ratings ranging from AA to A+. The fair values of the derivative financial

instruments are based on quoted prices.

The fair value of a structured deposit is based on a price quoted by Standard Chartered Bank.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Y 3% R 2 B

30June 2012 —ZE—=FA=1+H

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued) 38. A FER R FERE (&)

Fair value hierarchy AFEERE

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair values of financial AEBEATIRABEEABEReRIAZATE:

instruments:

Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets F—E: REBEHAREEXEBEETEIRMS 2 HE (CRERAR)HE
or liabilities /NS =]

Level 2: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for which all inputs which have a significant F= BEMEEEXEZEHEINRATEEEEXEZAH
effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly REMZHERNGEZ2ATE

Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for which any inputs which have a FE=E: WIHBBRUBERzmBEE GERSRER) e 5k

significant effect on the recorded fair value are not based on observable market data NHEREERXEZ ERMEH 2 HERMNGFEZ R TFE
(unobservable inputs)

Assets measured at fair value: R FEGTEZEE -
Group £H
Level 2
=]
2012 2011
in HK$ thousand —E-—F —F——%F BT T
Structured deposit 15,779 15,858 EBEFR
Derivative financial instruments 996 = PTHEEmMT A
16,775 15,858
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

38.

DFERDFEREE (A)
DPERE (&)

Liabilities measured at fair value: R FEFTEZERE
Group £H

Level 2

£=E

2012 2011
in HK$ thousand —E-—F —F——%F BT
Derivative financial instruments 895 1,241 PTHEEmMT A
39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 30. iR REEEERBER

The Group's principal financial instruments, other than its structured deposit and derivative financial
instruments, comprise cash and bank balances and time deposits, bills payable and interest-bearing bank
borrowings. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as debtors, deposits paid and trade
creditors, which arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including principally forward currency contracts. The
purpose is to manage the foreign currency risks arising from the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group'’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below. The Group’s accounting policies in relation to derivatives are set out
in note 2.4 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Y 3% R 2 B

30June 2012 —ZE—=FA=1+H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 3. iEREEEERBEK (8)
Interest rate risk = =2 b
Group £5
The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s AEBASIMBFREE ZEAREZEFERRNEBRF A2 FEFI KT
interest-bearing bank borrowings during the year with floating interest rates. BERITER -
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with TRETEHMAAZRAZIEHNBERLT - FIEXZSIRA e Z 8 H AR
all other variables held constant, of the Group'’s profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate SERBNEN (BRFEERNTE) RASEE S BURE -

borrowings) and the Group’s equity.

Increase in Decrease in profit Decrease in Increase in profit
basis points before tax and equity basis points before tax and equity
H2hiEhn BRBEBR R R R R D B BB A1 0% I Kz A 3 8 An
2012 2011 2012 2011

in HK$ thousand —E-CfF —=——% —E-CfF —=——% BB T T
Renminbi 100 115 1,275 100 115 1,275 AR
Foreign currency risk Fhitk = B
Group £8
The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise from the sales and the investments AEBAERSEBRR - EERRKE UETRABEUIINEEHET
in foreign operations in currencies other than the United States dollar and Hong Kong dollar. ZIHEREE c NEEK43% (ZE——F 1 47%) ZHETIAETT
Approximately 43% (2011: 47%) of the Group's sales were denominated in currencies other than the KABBIIN EEHE - AEBZBR A L RIAEE SR LURE
United States dollar and Hong Kong dollar. It is the Group's policy to enter into forward currency contracts INETRBEAIINEEA B2 EAR G ESEZIMNERER

to mitigate foreign currency risk arising from material transactions denominated in currencies other than
the United States dollar and Hong Kong dollar.

At 30 June 2012, the Group had forward currency contracts with an aggregate nominal amount of RZZE—ZFAA=+H AEEHEEEES LEE18ET (=
HK$158 million (2011: HK$107 million) to manage its foreign currency risk in Singapore dollar and Taiwan E——F BEI07ET) 2EREEERANEREENMETRE
dollar. 2 SN LB

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED @i &EARAR 163



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Cipr e E

30June 2012 =E—=F<XA=1+H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 39.
Foreign currency risk (continued)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the Renminbi, Singapore dollar, Taiwan dollar and Malaysian Ringgit exchange rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax and equity (due to changes in the fair value
of monetary assets and liabilities).

g E b B B R R BUR ()

%MJ—H@(Q")

TRETHEEMAUSEREZIENBERT - ARE - FHHT 8%
REBERZ IR e B BN E HIRE AR EBRADR M R s
MR (ERNEEEERABZAFERS) -

Increase/(decrease) Increase/(decrease)
Increase in in profit before Decrease in in profit before
exchange rate tax and equity exchange rate tax and equity
ERIEM  BRBADER RERE M, Ol D) i S 3l BB AR A R RERIE M, (D)
% 2012 2011 % 2012 2011
in HK$ thousand —E-CZfF —=——% —E-CfF =% BB T
Investments denominated AT & B 5 E & 6
in and investments THIE a8
linked to currency of: ZERE
Renminbi 5 13,210 6,952 5 (13,210) (6,952) AR
Singapore dollar 5 (423) 884 5 423 (884) T
Taiwan dollar 5 (1,466) 80 5 1,466 (80) a
Malaysian Ringgit 5 734 1,161 5 (734) (1,161) ke
Credit risk EE R
Group £5

The Group trades primarily in cash and credit cards, and it is the Group’s policy to trade on credit terms
with recognised and creditworthy third parties only. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The Group places cash and cash equivalents with reputable banks to minimise the credit risk thereof.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments. Concentrations of credit risk are
managed by customer/counterparty and by geographical region. There are no significant concentrations

of credit risk within the Group.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to credit risk arising from debtors are disclosed
in note 19 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 3. iEREEEERBEK (8)
Liquidity risk mENE € Rk
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool AEENBEEERBRE TASEEESERER ZTAEES
considers the maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., debtors) and projected MTARGRMEE (WMEKERF OB HAAENSEESNR S
cash flows from operations. e
The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility by keeping AEEZBEEREEEZHBEHRERBRITRIEAMEERCESR
adequate credit facilities from banks. The Group had credit facilities from banks of HK$648,013,000 and EMERSTE R ZFBE—ZFA=1TH AKEREZRTE
approximately HK$66,803,000 was utilised as at 30 June 2012. B 58 1648,013,0007T @ & 4975 %66,803,000 T EE A °
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on the RBERR - AEBERBFTNVERMBRNRZERAEDHER
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows: U N
Group &8

On demand or less than 1 year

BERROR—F

2012 2011
in HK$ thousand —E-—-F —E——fF BB T
Financial liabilities included in trade creditors, EEt ARERBRSR - HAth BT RIE &
other payables and accruals 201,062 249,776 EETRRIBE SRAE

Bills payable 35,038 46,107 JE %
Due to related companies 11,203 12,734 FET R E A R FIE
Derivative financial instruments 895 1,241 TEemIA
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 24,497 129,323 FRIRITER

272,695 439,181
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on
the contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

39. MR EE B R RBUER (&)

HEE S ER ()
REE  ARAERBTOEABENRZ 2BE HEHER
mF :

Company AT
On demand or less than 1 year
RERRDA—F
2012 2011
in HK$ thousand —E--F —T——% BB
Financial liabilities included in other B AT AE M E S FIE R E R BRIE
payables and accruals 1,791 2,726 ZeRmEE
Guarantees given to banks in connection BHTE R PR 2 EE R RITIREER
with facilities granted to subsidiaries 66,803 179,175
68,594 181,901

Capital management

Group

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended 30 June 2012 and 30 June 2011.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio calculated on the basis of interest-bearing bank
borrowings over total equity. The Group targets to maintain a gearing ratio of 70% or below.

166 ANNUAL REPORT 2011/12 %%

EXER

£H

AEFREAEENEZRR  AEAANKEABKARRNE
BAERBRENEARLE - UFEEBERF - FMEANBRREE -

AEERBEEBANEGRABEENRRSE  BEEEARSE
BAEHAE - BEFIAREAERE  AEET LSRR RIKE
BB MBRRKEEARBTHR -BE_T——FR_FT——F
NAZTHALFE UYEFXEREANER BHRIJEFRF -

AEERABRTERR ARG EZEEARBL TERERR
N AEBZBERREFEERBLERR[/IONHIAT »



39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 39.

Capital management (continued)
The gearing ratio is regularly reviewed by senior management. The gearing ratios as at the end of the
reporting periods are as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Y 3% R 2 B

30June 2012 —ZE—=FA=1+H

MEEREEREREE (&)

BEREE (F)

SREEECTHEHNEEAGBL R -NBEPRNEEBBEL XN
™

2012 2011
in HK$ thousand —E-—F —B——4%F BET T
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 24,432 127,484 FPERITER
Total equity 725,714 797,434 B
Gearing ratio 3% 16% BEAFRHEE
40. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 40. B iRz 2 H

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
19 September 2012.

EXZRER-ZT—_—FNATNBHERRERMBARBTHRRE -
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES
E S

30June 2012 =ZE—=FxA=1+H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REYE
Attributable
interest of
Location Use Tenure the Group
it 2 Jiik= FH AEBEEER
Unit 1 and 2, 8th Floor, Unit 1, 9th Floor Industrial Medium 100%
Car Park No. L12 on 1st Floor term lease

Cheung Fung Industrial Building

No. 23-39 Pak Tin Par Street

Tsuen Wan, New Territories

FARTE [ RBE23-29% I hHEE
RETEAESEIR2E »

9E1E R1EL125HE
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COMPANY INFORMATION A 8] & ¥}

Executive directors HITES Principal share registrars and transfer office FERGBFERTE
Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess (Chairman) BEEZT (XF) Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited
Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund EEERE Rosebank Centre Rosebank Centre
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul PRE KL 11 Bermudiana Road 11 Bermudiana Road
Independent non-executive directors BV FHITES Pembroke HV1 08 Pembroke HM 08
Bermuda Bermuda
Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond FENHREE
Ms. LEUNG Mei Han REML L Hong Kong branch share registrars ERRGBFERIE
Prof. SIN Yat Ming %t B AR Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited &H#EPREHBTERAAF
Company secretary ATRE Shops 1712-6, 17th Floor EEMTEREAER183%
Ms. WONG Suk May IWLL Hopewell Centre SHMHFRT7E
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai 1712-6E
Principal bankers FEARBIT Hong Kong
: . < FERAT
Thzol-:zzc;;:tci);\: If\ir:nditsefzjangha| Banking EELBEMRITERAT Registered office T
Standard Chartered Bank BITHRT Canon’s Court Canon’s Court
Citibank, N.A. BT 22 Victoria Street 22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM12 Hamilton HM12
Auditors =B E Bermuda Bermuda
Ernst & Young RKEEHEASHR
Principal office BWER
Principal solicitor FELM Level 1, The Long Beach EEAEAAE
Deacons KR ZE{T 8 Hoi Fai Road IEE N\
Tai Kok Tsui R — i
Kowloon
Hong Kong
Website #ur

www.bossini.com

www.bossini.com
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